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2.17 6,569 -
2.3 5,169 215
823,182 792,275
2.9 - 34,030
823,182 826,305
2.7 207,949 200,626
2.8 55,137 36,507
2.8 10,769 4,092
2.19 - -
2.2 72,152 95,090
2.17 21,430 21,107
2.17 98,429 100,259
2.4 30,369 35,753
496,236 493,436
1,319,418 1,319,741
25,738 11,523
2.3 215 646
2.17 24,446 33,815
431 646
43,722 37,907
25,199 23,476
2.6 8,938 8,077
2.5 161,320 111,567
290,009 227,657
2.9 - 5,385
290,009 233,041
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2.17 10,554 8,831
646 754
2.5 5,923 4,523
307,132 247,149
2019
31 2018 31
4,800,000, 000 2,400,000, 000
4,335,954, 462
2,173,312,301 20,324,982 10,801,956
36,507 20,461
29,830 26,599
1,211,297 1,247,804
323 -
41,353 26,276
1,077 969
(309,070) (249,518)
1,011,317 1,072,592
969 -
1,012,286 1,072,592
1,319,418 1,319,741
2.6 2.7

2.17 2.21
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31 2019 2018 2017
2.10 11,799 10,939 10,208
7,687 7,001 6,446
4,112 3,938 3,762
638 552 535
778 727 707
1,416 1,279 1,242
2,696 2,659 2,520
2.14 411 513 459
2.9 (39) (18) -
2.9 (65) - -
2.19 - (11) ©)
3,003 3,143 2,974
2.17 803 657 834
2,200 2,486 2,140
2.12
2.17 ®3) 9 @)
IFRS
2.3 - - )
2.2
2.17 10 1 [€H)
7 10 (13)
2.2
2.17 - - &)
2.3
2.17 3 (6) 6
(560) 18 198
(57) 12 202
/ (550) 22 189
1,650 2,508 2,329
2,199 2,486 2,140
1 - -

2,200 2,486 2,140
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1,649 2,508 2,329

1 - -

1,650 2,508 2,329

0.51 0.55 0.47

0.51 0.55 0.47

2.18

4,347,130,157 4,510,664,644 4,571,278,894
4,353,420,772 4,515,147,740 4,572,793,490
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2.10 1,270,634 1,178,021 1,099,300
827,813 753,938 694,170
442,821 424,083 405,130
68,706 59,445 57,614
83,783 78,291 76,137
152,489 137,736 133,751
290,332 286,348 271,379
2.14 44,261 55,245 49,430
2.9 (4,200) (1,938) -
2.9 (7,000) - -
2.19 - (1,185) (538)
323,393 338,470 320,270
2.17 86,475 70,752 89,813
236,918 267,717 230,457
2.12
2.17 (323) 969 (754)
IFRS
2.3 - - (538)
2.2
2.17 1,077 108 (108)
754 1,077 (1,400)
2.2
2.17 - - (215)
2.3
2.17 323 (646) 646
(60, 306) 1,938 21,323
(59,983) 1,292 21,753
/ (59,230) 2,369 20,353
177,689 270,087 250,810
236,810 267,717 230,457
108 - -

236,918 267,717 230,457
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177,581 270,087 250,810
108 - -
177,689 270,087 250,810
55 59 51
55 59 51

2.18
4,347,130,157 4,510,664,644 4,571,278,894
4,353,420,772 4,515,147,740 4,572,793,490
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2016
2,285,621,088 199 570 11,083 - - (2,528) 9,324 9,324
2017 31
- - - 2,140 - - - 2,140 2,140
*  2.12
2.17 - - - - - - ) ) @
* 2.3
2.17 - - - - - 6 - 6 6
* 2.2
2.17 - - - - - - (€)) (€h) (€]
IFRS
2.3
- - - - - - ®) ®) ®
2.2
2.17 * - - - - - - (@) @ @
- - - - - - 198 198 198
- - - 2,140 - 6 183 2,329 2,329
2.16 34,062 - - - - - - - -
2.13
- - - (142) 142 - - - -
2.13 - - - 142 (142) - - - -
2.16 - - 17 - - - - 17 17
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) (1,033) (1,033) (1,033)
2017 31
2,285,655,150 199 587 12,190 - - 6 (2,345) 10,637 - 10,637
2018 31
- - - 2,486 - - - - 2,486 - 2,486
* 2,12
2.17 - - - - - - - 9 9 - 9
* 2.2
2.17 - - - - - - - 1 1 - 1
* 2.3
2.17 - - - - - - ) - ®) - ®)
- - - - - - - 18 18 - 18
- - - 2,486 - - ®) 28 2,508 - 2,508
2.16 700,629 - 1 - - - - - 1 - 1
2.13
- - - (340) 340 - - - - - -
2.13 - - - 96 (96) - - - - - -
2.16 - - 12 - - - - - 12 - 12
2.13 (113,043,478) ©)  (346)  (1,680) - - - - (2,035) - (2,035)
2.13 - - @ - - - - - @ - Q)
2.13 - - - ©) - 9 - - - - -
(
) ) } ) ) } ) ) }
) @,156) (1,156) (1,156)
2018 31
2,173,312,301 190 247 11,587 244 9 - (.317) 9,960 - 9,960
2019 31
- - - 2,199 - - - - 2,199 1 2,200
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0000000
2.12
17 - - - - - - - ®) @ - ®
)
2.17 - - - - - - - 10 10 - 10
* 2.3
17 - - - - - . 3 - 3 . 3
- - - - - - - (560)  (560) - (560)
- - - 2,199 - - 3 (553) 1,649 1 1,650
2.16
392,528 - - - - - - - - - -
2.13
™ 2,173,704,829 150 - - - . - - 150 . 150
2.13
™ . . - (150) . . . - (150) - (150)
2.13
1,196,804 . 1 . . B} B} _ n ) 1
2.13
(12,652,000) w ) - . - - (289) - (289)
2.13
- - - - - - - @ - @
2.13 - - - w - 1 - - - - -
. . - - - . - - . 8 8
. . - (346) 346 . - - . . -
2.16 . . - 206 (206) . - - . . -
2.16 . . 28 - - . - - 28 . 28
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(
y» . . - @,957) . . . - (1,957) - (,957)
2019 31
4,335,954, 462 339 277 11,248 384 10 3 (2,870) 9,301 9 9,400
*
@
Q) 2019 31 2018 31 2017 31 2016
20,324,982 10,801,956 11,289,514 11,323,576 2018 31 2017 31

2016 2018
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@
2016
2,285,621,088 21,430 61,383 1,193,528 - - (272,240) 1,004,102 - 1,004,102
2017 31
- - - 230,457 - - - 230,457 - 230,457
*  2.12
2.17 - - - - - - (754) (754) - (754)
* 2.3
2.17 - - - - - 646 - 646 - 646
* 2.2
2.17 - - - - - - (108) (108) - (108)
IFRS
2.3
- - - - - - (538) (538) - (538)
2.2
2.17 * - - - - - - (215) (215) - (215)
- - - - - - 21,323 21,323 - 21,323
- - - 230,457 - 646 19,707 250,810 - 250,810
2.16 34,062 - - - - - - - - -
2.13
- - - (15,292) 15,292 - - - - -
2.13 - - - 15,292 (15,292) - - - - -
2.16 - - 1,831 - - - - 1,831 - 1,831
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(
y» . . - (111,244) - - - - (111,244) - (111,244)
2017 3
2,285,655,150 21,430 63,214 1,312,741 - - 646 (252,533) 1,145,499 - 1,145,499
2018 3
- - - 267,717 - - . - 267,717 - 267,717
212
2.17 - - . - - - . 969 969 - 969
)
2.17 - - . - - - . 108 108 - 108
* 2.3
2.17 - - . - - - (646) - (646) - (646)
- - . - - - - 1,038 1,938 - 1,038
- - - 267,717 - - (e46) 3,015 270,087 - 270,087
2.16 700,629 . 108 - - - - - 108 - 108
2.13
- - - (36,615) 36,615 . - - } B} .
2.13 . . - 10,338 (10,338) . . . . . -
2.16 . - 1,202 . - . . - 1,202 - 1,202
2.13 (113,043,478)  (969) (37,261) (180,919) - . - - (219,149) - (219,149)
2.13 . - (754) . - - - - (158) - (58)
2.13 . . - (969) - 969 . . . . -
(
y» . . - (124,490) - . . - (124,490) - (124,490)
2018 3
2,173,312,301 20,461 26,599 1,247,804 26,276 969 - (249,518) 1,072,502 - 1,072,502
2019 3
. . - 236,810 . . - - 236,810 108 236,918
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2.12
.17 - - - - - - - (323) (323) - 323)
2.2
2.17 - - - - - - - 1077 1,077 - 1,077
23
17 - - - - - - 323 - 323 . 323
- - - - - - - (60,306) (60,306) - (60,306)
- - - 236,810 - - 323 (59,553) 177,581 108 177,689
2.16
392,528 - - - - - - - - - -
2.13
™ 2,173,704,829 16,154 - - - . - - 16,154 - 16,154
2.13
™ . - - (16,154) - - - - (16,154) - (16,154)
2.13
1,196,804 . 108 - - . - - 108 . 108
2.13
(12,652,000)  (108) - (31,015) - . - - (31,122) - (31,122)
2.13
- - - ) - . - N ) - @)
2.13 . . - @o8) - 108 - - . . -
. . - - - . - - . 862 862
- - - (37,261) 37,261 - ; _ B} ) }
2.16 - - - 22,184 (22,184) - - - - - -
2.16 . - 3,015 - - . - - 3,015 - 3,015
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. . 108 - - - - - 108 - 108
(
y» . . - (210,749) . . - - (210,749) - (210,749)
2019 3
4,335,954,462 36,507 29,830 1,211,207 41,353 1,077 323 (300,070) 1,011,317 969 1,012,286
*
(€]
) 2019 31 2018 31 2017 31 2016
20,324,982 10,801,956 11,289,514 11,323,576 2018 31 2017 31
2016 2018
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2019 2018 2017

2,200 2,486 2,140

2.7 2.8 287 289 254

(130) (129) (51)

2.17 803 657 834

10 3 6

34 5 20

2.9 39 18 -
2.9

65 - -

- 11 5

29 13 17

(15) (20) 7

(411) (237) (260)

(120) (58) (70)

131 51 ®)

) 1 1

48 104 66

269 122 (24)

3,237 3,316 2,942

2.17 (975) (1,059) (843)

2,262 2,257 2,099

(349) (310) (411)

2 4 4

2.9 @) '0)) -

(€)) ®) ®)

2.9 (30) - -

® (20) (25)
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79 67 32
(145) (16) (638)

123 18 1

16 5 -

©)) O] (10)

©)) O] )

5 } _

(342) (1,032) (1,167)

791 1,503 -

(70) (45) -

43 - -

2.4 (37) - _
(11,184) (9,628) (8,083)

10,965 9,953 7,759

(225) 482 (2,547)

(118) (2,042) -

1 1 -

(1,956) (1,156) (1,032)

(2,073) (3.197) (1,032)

(36) (458) (1,480)

(184) 18 34

2.1 3,049 3,489 4,935
2.1 2,829 3,049 3,489
2.1 52 82 88
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31 2019 2018 2017

236,918 267,717 230,457

2.7 2.8 30,907 31,122 27,353

(14,000)  (13,892) (5,492)

2.17 86,475 70,752 89,813

1,077 323 646

3,661 538 2,154

2.9 4,200 1,938 -
2.9

7,000 - -

- 1,185 538

3,123 1,400 1,831

(1,615) (2,154) 754

(44,261)  (25,523)  (27,999)

(12,923) (6,246) (7,538)

14,107 5,492 (323)

(215) 108 108

5,169 11,200 7,108

28,969 13,138 (2,585)

348,593 357,100 316,824

2.17 (104,998)  (114,044)  (90,783)

243,595 243,056 226,041

(37,584)  (33,384)  (44,261)

215 431 431

2.9 (8,292) (431) -

(323) (538) (538)

2.9 (3,231) - -

(323) (2,154) (2,692)
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8,508 7,215 3,446
(15,615) (1,723)  (68,706)

13,246 1,938 108

1,723 538 -

(323) (431) (1,077)

(323) (431) (431)

215 - -

(36,830)  (111,136)  (125,674)

85,183 161,858 -

(7,538) (4,846) -

4,631 - -

2.4 (3,985) - -
(1,204,405) (1,036,839)  (870,458)
1,180,821 1,071,839 835,567

(24,230) 51,907 (274,286)

(12,707)  (219,903) -

108 108 -

(210,642)  (124,490)  (111,136)

(223,241) (344,285) (111,136)

(3,877)  (49,322)  (159,381)

(19,815) 1,938 3,661

2.1 328,347 375,730 531,450
2.1 304,655 328,347 375,730
2.1 5,600 8,831 9,477

143/319

oOoOooodn



ADS
ADS

ADS
2019

1.2

1.3

1.4
IFRS

1.5

19

EDINETOOOO
00000000000 0O(E05959)
oOoOooodn

NYSE

ADS 2018

IFRS

2.19

1.5
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2016 13 IFRS 16 IFRS 16
IAS 17 IFRS 16
IFRS 16
12
IFRS 16
IFRS 16 IAS 17
IFRS 16 2019
IAS
IAS 17
IFRS 16 IFRS 16
2019 2019 31
395 60
495
IFRIC 23
1ASB IFRIC 23
IFRIC 23 IAS 12
IFRIC 23
(H
IFRIC 23 IAS

(ii)IFRIC 23

IFRIC 23 2019
2019 2019
IFRIC 23
IAS 12 -
2017 12 1ASB IAS 12
2019

IAS 19 -
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2.1
31
2019 2018
2,052 2,021
777 1,020
2,829 3,041
2.9 - 8
2,829 3,049
2019 31 2018 31 52 82

2.3
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2019 31 2018 31
ANZ - 1
1 -
4 2
1 -
168 180
15 4
1 -
WBK S.A. - 3
6 6
BNP 4 14
- 1
N.A. 13 34
N.A. 5 2
N.A. 10 18
N.A. 2 1
N.A. 2 1
N.A. EEFC - 1
N.A. - 1
N.A. 3 3
N.A. - 2
N.A. 1 1
N.A. 11 1
N.A. 3 5
N.A. 1 1
N.A. 2 -
N.A. 1 -
2 4
1
3 2
1 1
3 -
3 3
16 16
6 7
5 2
1 4
- 1
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1 1
1 1
- 1
2 3
5 5
6 12
EEFC 3 5
EEFC 1 -
EEFC 31 5
EEFC 1 1
9 -
ICICI 6 8
ICICI EEFC 5 6
ICICI EEFC 1 2
ICICI EEFC 1 -
HSBC 3 1
HSBC 1 -
1 -
ICICI 4 3
3 -
7 8
- 1
20 26
- 2
2 -
D.D.
2 1
7 -

421 418
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134 -

BGZ BNP 34 22
72 31

19 36

26 35

- 4

18 32

HDFC 7 383
HSBC 29 -
ICICI 469 568
1DBI - 38
IDFC 354 230
80 154

72 -

25 69

289 -

3 -

- 1

1,631 1,603

HDFC 600 836
LIC 177 184
777 1,020

2,829 3,041
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2.2

2019 31 2018 31
3 -
258 12
267 117
72 45
358 808
958 982
274 291
310 493
15 21
- 2
66 66
3 -
2 10
670 883
1,628 1,865
277 291
1,022 1,484
329 90
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2019 31 2018 31 12 12
2.3

2019 31

1 - 1

€h) - €h)

9 1 10
2018 31

@ - @

3 Q) 2

1 - 1
2017 31

€H) - €H)

€H) - €H)

D) - D)
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31
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258 12
66 66
307 330
577 610
72 45
358 808
15 21
3 -
- 2
2 10

1,658 1,904

154/319



EDINETOOOO
00000000000 0O(E05959)
oOoOooodn
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IFRS 2018 2016
2015

IFRS
2017

2.3.1

(i) FVOCI

(iin) FVTPL

@iv)

IFRS
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2.1 2,829 - - - - 2,829 2,829
2.2
- - 258 - - 258 258
- - 66 - - 66 66
277 . _ _ 577 gs4  gaa®
- - - - 358 358 358
. - § § 72 72 72
. . 3 15 . 18 18
. - 2 § . 2 2
2,144 - § § . 2,144 2,144
® 303 . - - . 303 303
2.4 ) 529 - - - . 529 5179
. . 43 - 5 48 48
6,082 - 3an 15 1,012 7,481 7,499
239 . - - . 239 239
. . 2 - . 2 2
( 25 ) 1,263 . 27 - . 1,290 1,290
1,502 - 29 - - 1,531 1,531
€))
@ 12
(©)
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2.1 3,041 - . . - 3,041 3,041
2.2
- - 12 . - 12 12
- - 66 . - 66 66
201 - . . 610 901 920P
- - . . 808 808 808
- - - - 45 45 45
- - . 21 - 21 21
- - 10 - - 10 10
- - 2 - - 2 2
2,016 - - - - 2,016 2,016
654 - - - - 654 654
2.4 ) 456 - - - - 456 443
- - . . 2 2 2
6,458 - 90 21 1,465 8,034 8,060
107 - - - - 107 107
- - 6 - - 6 6
( 2.5 ) 836 - 8 - - 844 844
943 - 14 - - 957 957
(€))
@ 13
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2019 31
2019
31
( 2.2 ) 258 258 - -
( 2.2 ) 66 - 66 -
( 2.2 ) 884 630 254 -
( 2.2 ) 358 - 358 -
( 2.2
) 72 - 72 -
( 2.2 ) 18 - - 18
( 2.2 ) 2 - - 2
48 - 48 -
2 - 2 -
( 2.5 )* 27 - - 27
* o 16%
2019 108

49
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( 2.2 ) 940 701 239 -
( 2.2 ) 808 - 808 -
( 2.2
) 45 - 45 -
( 2.2 ) 21 - - 21
( 2.2 ) 10 - - 10
( 2.2 ) 2 - - 2
2 - 2 -
6 - 6 -
( 2.5 )* 8 - - 8
* 10%
2018 130

276
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31
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201 260 352
92 106 28
- 1 4
24 39 18

317 406 402
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2019 31
237 38 16 31 161 483
1,438 267 148 76 140 2,069
540 111 36 40 63 790
66 15 5 5 45 136
(102) (19) (20) (12) (15) (168)
(98) (15) (€)) (30) (24) (170)
(509) (66) (28) (25) (86) (714)
1,572 331 154 85 284 2,426

2018 31
197 33 23 54 183 490
1,276 269 129 121 120 1,915
356 98 46 24 57 581
49 4 4 2 15 74
(42) (12) an ®) © (85)
(88) (13) ® (28) (20) (153)
(263) (50) (29) (14) (72) (428)
1,485 329 152 154 274 2,394

2019 2018 2017 31

0.47% 0.50% 0.50%
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2019 31 2018 31
120 60
135 100
25 20
8 5
13 20
176 91
550 550
16 16
40 40
140 5
- 25
50 50
25 21
955 623
80 51
10 20
13 -
60 45
5 5
433 320
10 25
2019 2018 2017 35 89
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640 434
1,001 701
501 378
2,232 1,513
2019 2018
2019
31
2019 31 2018 31
- 6
17 (14)
(13) 6
€H) 2
3 -
2019 31 2018 31
/ 48 © 3 ©)
- - €)) 1
48 [¢)) 2 (6)
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777 654
10
( )
31
2019 2018 2017
3.6 3.4 3.4
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2019 2018
100% 100%
S. de R.L. de C.V. 100% 100%
AB 100% 100%
100% 100%
DO LTDA 100% 100%
LLC 100% 100%
EdgeVerve Systems Limited EdgeVerve 100% 100%
GmbH(l) 100% 100%
GmbH
Skava Systems Pvt Ltd Skava Systems 100% 100%
Kallidus Inc.(Kallidus) 100% 100%
SpA(2) 100% -
6 70% 70%
Ltda ® 99.99% 99.99%
c1s LLe®® - -
S ar 1N 100% -
100% 100%
100% 100%
O]
100% 100%
USA
(23)
24)
BPM BPO 99.98% 99.98%
99.98% 99.98%
s.r.o.(5)
Sp Z.0 0(5) 99.98% 99.98%
99.98% 99.98%

McCamish LLC(S)

217/319



)
BPO
AG
(6)(15)
©)
)
s.C.
@
®
cmbH®
LLC
Q1)
@

LLe®

(©)

Ac®

GmbH®

sas®
©

gy ©®

Sp. z.o.o.(G)

(©)

S.RLD

s.R.L.®
\V

©O1C))

®

(10)

12

(MENAYDMCC )

218/319

99.98%

99.98%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

99.90%

100%
100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

EDINETOOOO
00000000000 0O(E05959)
oOoOooodn

99.98%

99.98%

100%

100%

100%

100%
100%
100%
100%

100%

100%

100%
100%

100%

100%
100%

99.90%

100%
100%

100%

100%

100%

100%
100%

100%



Fz LLc®®
(13)(18)

AB  Extero)

ass®
ass9

S. r.o(lg)

Newco AB(lg)

Infosys Compaz Pte. Ltd
(20)

ey

WongDoody as

WoW (16
(16)

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

60%

100%

100%

100%
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100%

@

(2)2017 11 20

(€))

(C))

(5) BPM

(6) AG
Q) AG
®

(9)2017 11

(10) 2017 12 20

(11)2017

(12)

(13)

(14)2018 22 WongDoody 100%
(15)2018

(16)WongDoody

(17)2018

(18)2018 10 11
100%

(19

(20)2018 11 16
60%

(21)2018 12 19
(22)2018 11 29
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(23)2018 11 27
(24)2017

2018 LLC 11
DWA LLC 2017 11 17

2017 AG AG

AG
2019 2018 2017
AG

2018 130
2018 27

2018 S.C. S.R.L.

AG
2019 2018 S.r.o
AG
2019 2018 B.V.
AG
BPM BPM
BPM BPM

EdgeVerve Systems Limited EdgeVerve
EdgeVerve Systems Limited EdgeVerve
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KMP
2018 2018
2023 2018 20
2017 18 U.B.
2018
2017 18 2017 24
M. 2017 24
2018 13
2017 24 2018 11
D.N
D. 2017 14
S. 2017 24
R. 2017 24
W. 2017 24
2019
S.
2017 14
2018 11 17 2019
M.D. 2018 11 16
2017 14
2017 24

K 2016 10 13 2018 31
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KMP
IAS 24
31
2019 2018 2017
OLOGM® 14 8 12

1 2 2

15 10 14
(12019 2017 2018
(2) 2017 2016 12 31

0.87
(3) 2017 12 2018
(@) 2018
2.16
2.20
IFRS
2018 30
IFRS
OEM
CODM
OEM
Finacle
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2.20.1

2019 31

3,778 1,935 1,488 1,483 1,163 882 743 327 11,799
2,021 974 816 808 644 506 394 202 6,365
775 385 312 312 255 154 147 109 2,449

982 576 360 363 264 222 202 16 2,985
289

2,696

2.14
2.9 411

2.9 (39

2.9
(65)

3,003

803

2,200

287

107
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2018 31

3,594 1,760 1,378 1,287 1,035 796 729 360 10,939
1,876 878 702 652 602 431 378 208 5,727
731 371 269 261 235 140 135 122 2,264

987 511 407 374 198 225 216 30 2,948
289

2,659

2.14

2.9 513

2.9 (18)

1
3,143

657

2,486

289

29
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2017 31

3,357 1,711 1,253 1,137 948 772 661 369 10,208
1,747 863 602 552 538 403 328 220 5,253
701 368 257 245 213 134 129 133 2,180

909 480 394 340 197 235 204 16 2,775
255

2,520

459

®
2,974

834

2,140

254
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Infosys Limited and subsidiaries
Consolidated Balance Sheet as of March 31,

(Diollars m muihons sncepl squary share data)

Nate i &

ASSETS
Curremt avseis
Cash i sl evpinvallents 11 18 M
Current mvesiments 12 958 LU
Trade recenvables 2144 2,0Me
Unhullad revemnss, T B4
Preyavments snd other carent assets 14 i 62
Inconss fax assels N7 L1 -
Drenvative fnancial instraments 3 48 2

Thdd R
Assety held for wale 1% — ile
Total current Bssers Thad 7T
Non-cuirenl aseels
Property, plant and equnpeest 17 1931 1,863
Croostwill iz 2 33
Inmingsble Hueh 18 100 kL]
Investmienl 1w assocale e — —_
Nom-currenl myesiments 12 L 883
Deferred income i gty T 199 19
Incoins LN GLeets 17 914 LEN
Cher nom-current assets 14 282 1
Tutal son-curreml asiels 4. HHI8 4,582
Tutal aiseis 11,250 12,258
LEABILITIES AXD EQUITY
Cmrremt Babdlivies
Trade pavables b w7
Drenvative fmancis] nstramenls 153 2 L]
Current moome tax lsbaite 17 227 4
Claent depeorals 4 &
Umsranmed revemmes A0 142
Emplover henefir ablipanons 134 s
Provissoms 16 B3 75
Oher current hatulshes 25 1408 1038

2683 2114
Lighahries direcly snsocisted with aseets hedd for sabe 19 — 30
Tutsl curvent labilies par L 164
Nan-curren! Halslities
Dreferred moome tax lsabshitzes 17 k] L &)
Emploves benefir sbligatnon. [ 7
Cher nom-current liabiloes 13 55 42
Torsl Habdlities 18852 1,193
Equity
Share cagatal — 25/~ (50 16) par value 4, 500 000 000 (2, 400 000 (400 mathonzed
sty shaares Mﬂma,;:s,mﬂzqz 173 512 300 ) equaty shaarey
fully paid uwp, met of 20,374,982 (10 801 956) reasury shares each as ot March 31,
2019 (March 31, M08 respachively L] 180
Tl peemimEn I 247
Retimnid #armiig- i.r48 11,587
Cmh flow hedge resenve 3 -
Ohier reserves 1ga 244
Capital pedeangiwd feuere 14 L]
Oty compessn of squiry {2870} @17
Tursl equiry amvibarshibe to equiry holders of the company .0 0,060
Nem controbhng mieresss b —
Tutsl equity bR 2.960
Totsl Hallities and equaty 12,292 12284
C ol coentumyerun bkt AT 217 mnd 220

The accompanying motes jorns an integral part of the consolidated financial starements.
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Infosys Limited and subsidiaries.

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income for the vears ended March 31,
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(Doliars m mullions except equty share and per squity shase data)
Note 019 018 7
Revennes 210 11,799 10,930 10,208
Cost of sales T.687 7001 G446
Gross profit 4,112 1938 A.T62
Operating expenses:
Selling and e keting expenses GEH 552 £33
Administrative expenses 178 127 0T
Total operating expenses LA16 1,279 1.242
Operating profit 1696 1.659 150
Ol ancoaing, netl 2.14 111 3 430
Reduction in the fau value of Disposal Croup held for sale 9 (3 (18) -
Admshnent m respect of excess of camying amount over
recoverable amount on reclassification from "Held for Sale™ 29 (54) — —
Shage in associate's profit' (loss ). inchading impainmednt 219 - (11 (%)
Profit before ncome taves A003 L1443 1.974
Income fax expeise 217 S04 6357 £34
Nt profit 1,200 1486 AL
Oileer comprehensive mcomse
Tremis thai will wor be pecimssiffed tubseguenthy ro prafit or lags
Re-nwasirsments of the net defived bewefin habulry / asset, pet 212 and 2.17 (3 9 ("}
Cunmelanve mgssct on reversal of mmrealized g on quoted
debt securities on adoption of [FRS 9 LY — — (5)
Equary instmuments through other comprehensmve income. net 22and 2.17 10 1 (1)
7 1n (13)
e that will be reclassified subseguently fo prafit or loss:
Faar valuation of investments, net 22md 217 - - (2)
Fair value changes on derivatives designated as cash flow
hedge, ner 23and 207 3 (6} L
Foreign currency translation {5600 18 198
(557) 11 i
Total other comprebensive ncome (hess), nel of tay (550) 11 150
Tatal comprehensiive incoine 1,650 1508 139
Profic attvibatable to:
Oramsers of the conypany 2199 2486 2140
Non=comtrolling wmferests 1 e
Llo0 1486 L0140
Taotal comprelensive imcome attriliatalide to:
Cramers of the company 1649 2508 2320
Non-coptrollng mterasts 1 — —
1,650 =S0R 1119
Earnings per equiiy share
Basic (i 3 per share) 051 055 047
Diluted {im & per share} 051 055 047
Welghted average equiry shares nsed in computing earnings
per equity share 218
Basic (in shares) 4347130 15T 45100664644 45T127HEN4
Ditluted {m shares) 4.353420,772 4515147740 4.572.793.490

The accompaning nofes forne an inregral part of the comsolidared financial starements
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Infosys Limited and subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equify

Cadl

Flow
Sambisn ol hare hare  Relamed Oherr pwedd i Healgs e wembrelling  Telad
Epjors &
Mslamce a5 of I 2016 L IR 611 088 1% 70 DL0E% - e —
Changes i eqmity for rhe vear
enibed Sarch 21, 217
Nt profic i it b Ll i . s - 1140 — Ll
Re-mewmeme of he net
e it bewe [ hatnlary aaecet®
(Rorfer o Note 2 12 and 2 IT) - —_ - —_ - - - M ] —_ ™
Fiu viahie chiges im den alaies
drapnaird s cash Bow hedes™
(Reder mote 2 Fand 2 1T) — — — — — — & — & — ]
Frquity mstrumesss Syough oiher
cmmperheraoe moome "R fer
soie 12l 21T - - - - - - - 1] i - il

ERNSArTI—— - = — — — — — 198 158 — 1w

ot 113 i e = (1473 142 = - —

arshaatn (Befen pose 11 — —_ —_ 142 143 - - = — —
Emploves ook compenwinon

expense [Refier oo noie 1 | 6) — _ 17 - - - -— = 17 — 1
st ek

—p— ) — = —  {1Lad - e — — L1 0EL — (L%
Balswcw a5 of Masch 31, D17 I,I8E 655 150 %% SHT 11,180 -— — L] (2,345} 10E37 — I0,E37
Change: mn eqmity for the vear

endeal Mlarch 31, 2H8

Mer Profn - - -_ Lkt -_ - - - Ladd — L%
Re geaamement of the ner

derfined bemerfin habnliee gt

{Ferfer in Nowe 2 12 and 2 1T} — — —_ — - = - 2 g . #

{Beder moie 2 3 and 2175 - — - —_ - — i - il - (L1
Exchamge &fference on

! ol B s, oy - = = == e s == 18 18 —
Teasl camprebenon # ineome
fur Ehy pee i = e — 1486 o - {6 i 148 - 1508
Shares immed on eweroiae of
emphves sock opnons (Befer o
swiv I LE) OO 20 — 1 - s — - - 1 a—
Teansfer e other reverves (Fefsr
mie 1 L3) - - - [+ 34 b - - et - —
Transfer from nthey reseroes am
wtabuaen (Reler none 2 13) —_ _ —_ pn ] —_ —_ _ _ — -
Euspluver ok Cougsinaton
expense (Refier s noie 1 L6} - — 1z — - — - — 12 - 1
Aot pnd s ek
Ry motw 2 13} (113,043 4763 iy (E) (15805 - . - - 2,035 — [LEIS)
Transacton oo relared an
tarvhack® (Rorfer moie T [ 7) - - M -_— — - -— -— ™ — i}

=
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Amanne sanadrned an capil

O { EE E U

Bearybinck (Refew nane 2,15} — — — o — ¥ . . — — .
Drrdends {mehdang corp

divaedensd EaaF! —
Balawce a3 of March 31, 300§ 117011 M]
Changes in syuify for the year

endel March 31, 210

Hex prodic — - — 1199 - e - i Lise 1 L8
Rr-mevawrmrn: of the net

e i e 1 haabnlary whner®

(Beder 1 Mo 2 12 aad 217 - — = - - - - h Eh - L1}
Equiry insmamenas shromph other

conugm el wcome” (Refe

mante 1 2 el 20T - - - - - -— - (1] 14 - j
Faur valve changes om denvmmey

drapnrird m cash Gow hedge®

(Rerfer mote 7.3 and 2170 - - - —_ - —_ 3 —_— 3 - 3

and il Iiﬂ — -_ - —_ {1, 155) = II...I!'I_I
0 — i e — a0

1l
£
g
E

smploner sok optums - befme
o isvne (Refer s note 1 16) L — — —_ _ —_ - - - = -

mante } LEF0 2ATA M2 150 — — — — — — 150 — 1w
Amovmrs whzed for b wwowe

{Rorfer 10 mose 2 | 3FL - — e (§500 — - - e (150 = (15
shares raued on svscis of

amphves sock opnons - after

basams issne (Refer v noie 1 13} 1196 S — 1 — — — — — 1 — 1
Bervheck of rquity shares (Barfer

o ke 25 amal 2 10) (12852 000 o — v ] — — — — (i e ]
Transactin oot relaed e

buvhack® (Reder mote * 17) - — e o
At W amisderied o Cgnial

I
I
I
I
B
I

uerlrmpisom | fET E i

Boarvbasck {Raefer navie 211} - - — il
*on-conirolling mirresis on

acquisiton of subadisry (Fef o

w1 ) - i - -
Tranafer oo othey reservey —_ _ — [ 1]
Tramiter froi ot iewrves on

i ihim — - - o]
Emploves sk comgensancn

expenee (Refier to note 2 L6) - - b ] -
hwomr b benefil sosmp o

exercie of vock opaies — —_ 1 —
Thdemads [melndmy corpoie
PS——— = = — _ (1957)

Balswiv a5 of dlareh 31 2009 4308 854462 159 gl 11 248

|§I|

- - - bl ] s m

- - — o — [T

I]
=,
H
i
£

* et af aves

T8 et af tremsuny shares

2 excludes reaswy shaves of 20324952 as of March 21, 2009, 10.801,956 as of March 21, 2018 amd
11,280,514 as of March 31, 2017 and 11,323,576 April 1, 2016, held v consolidated tist. The measury
shares as ar March 31, 2008, March 21, 2007 and April 1, 2016 have not been adinsted for the September
2018 borus isswe.

The accamparving nofes forn an integral part of the consolidated financial stafemenis
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Infosys Limited and subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Accounting policy
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Cash flows are repoited wsuig the indisect method. whereby piofit for the vear s adjsted for the effects of
wansactions of a non-cash nanre. any defermals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or pavments and

item of mcome or

associated with wvestmg or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating,

investing and financing activities of the Group are segregated. The Group considers all highly liguid invesnments that
are readily convertible to known muounts of cash 1o be cash squivalems.
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i G g

Effect of exclunme e chmpes m sty el kil
Tnganmrns krs usaden enpecird coedk Loss el
Rrdhation = Faar valie of Diwposal Camug held for vale

Adquasmend m egprct of evres of carrping amourd eoer eecovrrahle amao on

rerlanuifiramon from “Held for Sale”
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Sl ORI ENpeTs

Ot syt

Changrs im wor king capital

Trase revenables xxad anhlied recrvaes.
Trepramenes and e e

Tradde paryahles

< vt depeis.

Uneiued 167 Fuses

O kb and pres v,

£ wnh geasa ated fom ops sbiorn

o fanrs pnd

St ¢l provided by aper animg acinine:

Twvesting senvites
Expenhinit o properTy, plai ol squipnem
Lt 1 pragirvess

Prvment for scquvsnon of aswess, wer of caah aoqpesd
Prvment of connngem consderanog ey v s of buanes
Adcance pavmoent iowack. acquminon of lspess
Dieperaims placed Wil comporaen

lorewest ased divadesd pecered

L il s e dEb e
Erdempnom of quoned debr seommnes

Froveeds from e af sqrare aned preference scames
Irreeanmen @ sy and preference woarmes
ISl i RS IR NI

Lucrom and caher depaoae peraning o Bevhack

Ireeestmmen @ biped morsd fund s asd fwed morare pla wecnes
Resdemgnoa oof ligiid sl fumad unes and Smed mannry plan o
Spl ml imed) genesaisd monsesting srbyies

Finamcimg actiities:

Hunhark of shoe e udeg ol
mmumd_ﬂlﬂtﬂqﬂ

Parviment of diadesb (i

waumun-qm

S mopease | decyease) m cash and cash equrvalenn

Effect of enchange rve changes oa cash and cash equivalenn

sk anad cady eqervalenes o the Bepunning

i amel ¢ aclh ey alemts ar e el

applemenar informatien

mis

i i

17and 28 w
i

BO3

Iy

1]

7

8

L L
=
A

iy
Lk
(111

mit

2488

e
ik ]
3
i

5

i®

1
i3
2

2
158}
i

1

14
12

2040

ol

m? )

(X
]

ar

1 ]

o
&

14
=]

ey
aT

21
2 7]

21 2

R d rah balaner

The accompanyving notes forw an integral part af the corsolidared finaneial starements

232/319

Oooooooa



EDINETOOOO
O000000000000(E05959)
Oooooooa

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
L. Overview
1.1 Company overview

Infosys Limted (‘the Company’ or Infosys) is a leadmg provider of consulting. technology. outsourcing and next-
generation digital services, enabling clients to execute strategies for their digital transformation. Infosys strategic
obyective 15 to build a sustamable orgamzation that rematns relevant to the agenda of chents, whale creatmg growth
oppormities for emplovees and geperating profitable renums for investors, Infosys strategy is to be a navigator for
our chients as they ideate, plan and execute on their journey 1o a digial fisnure,

Infosys together with its subsidianes and controlled tusts is herein after referved 1o as the “Group™.

The Company is a public lmuted company mcorporated and domiciled i India and has us registered office at
Bengalurn. Kamaaka, India. The Company has s primacy listings on the BSE Limited and National Siock
Exchange of India Limited in India. The Company’s American Depositary Shares representing equaty shaves are
listed on the New Yok Stock Exchange (NYSE).

Further, the Company's ADS were also histed on the Evwronext London and Euronext Paris. On July 5, 2018, the
Company volantanly delisted its ADS from Evronext London and Evronext Paris due 1o low average daily mading
volume of its ADS on these exchanges.

The Group's consolidated fnancial statements are anthorized for issue by the company’s Board of Directors on June
19, 2019,

1.2 Basis of preparation of financial statements

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in cowpliance with Intemational Finan<ial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board, inder the lustonical cost convention on
the acenual basis except for certain fnancial mstmuments wlich have been measured at far valoes. Accounting
pohicies have been applied consistently to all penods presented m these consolidated financial statements.

As the vear-end figures are faken from the source and rounded to the nearesi digits, the figures reported for the
previous quarters might not always add up to the year-end figures reported m this statement.

1.3 Basis of consolidation

Infosys consolidates entities which it owns or controls. The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of the company. its controlled msts and its subsidiaries. Control exists when the parent has power over
the ennity. is exposad, or has rights, to variable remums from its involvement with the entiry and has the ability to
affect those returms by using its power over the entiry. Power is demonstrated through existing nights that give the
abiliry o direct relevant acrivities. those which sigmficanthy affect the enniry’s renums. Subsidianies are consolidated
from the date control conunences until the date control ceases.

The finaawcial statements of the Growp companies are consolidated on a line-by-line basis and intra-group balances
and transactions meluding unrealized gan |/ loss from such transactions are eliminated upon consolidation. These
Mnancial statements are prepared by applying unifonn accounting policies m use at the Group. Nog-controlling
interests which represent part of the net profit or loss and net assets of subsidianies that are not, directly or mdirectly,
owned or controlled by the company. are excluded.

Refer to note 2,19 for the list of subsidiaries and controlled tusts of the Company.
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1.4 Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of the financial statements i conformary with IFRS requires management o make estmates,
judgmenrts and assumprions. These estimates. judgments and assumprions affect the application of accounting
policies and the reported amounts of assets and lisbilites., the disclosures of contingent assets and hiabilities at the
date of the financial statements and repornted mnounts of revenues and expenses during the penod. Application of
acconnting policies that require critical accounting estimates mvolving complex and subjective jndgments and the
use of assumptions m these fnancial statements have been disclosed in Note 1.5, Accounting estimates could change
from period 1o period. Acmal results could differ from those estunates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as
management becomes aware of changes m circumstanoes swyonding the estimates. Changes i estimates and
judgments are reflected in the consolidated financial starements in the period in which changes are made and, if
material, their effects are disclosed in the notes 1o the consolidated financial statemeants.

1.5 Critical sccounting estimates and judgements
a. Revenue recognition

The growp uses the percentage-of-completion metdod in accomnting for s fixed-price contracts. Use of the
percentage-of-completion method requires the group to estimate the effors or costs expended o date as a proportion
of the total efforts or costs to be expended. Efforts or costs expended have been used to measure progress towards
completion as there is a direct relationship berween mput and productviry.

Further, the Group uses sigmificant judgements wihile determming the transaction price allocated to performance
obligations using the expected cost plus margin approach.

Provisions for estimated losses. if any. on mcompleted contracts are recorded in the perod in which such losses
become probable based on the expected contract estimates af the reporting date.

b. Income taxes

The company's rwo major tax jurisdictions are India and the 1.5, though the compamy also files rax renums in other

overseas junisdictions. Significant judgments are involved in determining the provision for income taxes, including
ammowmnt expected to be paid'recovered for uncertain (ax positions.

In assessing the realizability of deferred incomse tax assets. management considers whether some portion or all of the
deferred mcome 1ax assets will not be realized. The ultiinate realization of defeived ncome tax assets is dependent
upon the generation of funwe taxable income during the periods in which the temporary differences become
deductible. Management cousiders the scheduled reversals of deferved moome tax Lalalines. projected future taxable
income and tax planning strategies in making this assessiment. Based on the level of historical taxable income and
projections for fumme taxable mcome over the penods i which the deferted income tax assets are deducnble,
management believes that the group will realize the benefits of those dedwcrible differences. The amount of the
deferred income tax assets considered realizable. however. could be reduced in the near renn if estimares of fumire
taxable meome during the carry fooward penod are reduced. (Refer 10 Note 2.17)

©. Business combinations and intangible assets

Business combinanons are accounted for wsing IFRS 3 (Revised). Business Combinations. [FRS 3 requires the
identifiable intangible assers and conningent consideration to be fair valued in order 1o ascerain the net fair value of
wdentifiable assets, habihbes and contingent habilities of the acquimee. Significant estunates are required 1o be made
in detenmining the value of contingent consideranon and intangible assets. These valuanons are conducted by
mdependent valuation experts (Refer ro Note 2.8 and 2.9),
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. Properiyv, plant and equipment

Property. plant and equipment represent a significant proportion of the asset base of the Group. The charge m respect
of periodic depreciation is derived after determining an estimate of an assei’s expected useful life and the expecred
residual value at the end of its life. The useful lives and residual values of the Group's assets are determuined by
management at the time the asset 15 acquired and reviewed periodically, imcluding at each financial year end. The
lives are hased on historical experience with similar assets as well as anticipation of furure events, which may impact
thewr life. such as changes i techoology (Refer 10 Note 2.7).

e, lmpairment of Goodwill

Goodwill is tested for nupaimeent on an annual basis and whenever there is an mdication that the recoverable amount
of a cash generating wmit is less than its carrving smonnt based on a number of factors including operating results,
busmess plans. fumre cash flows and economie conditions. The recoverable amownt of cash generating umts 15
determined based on higher of value-in-use and fair value less cost o sell The goodwill impairment test is
pertormed at the level of the cash-generating unit or groups of cash-generating wnits which are benefitting from the
synergies of the acquision and whech represents the lowest level at which goodwill 15 monitored for mternal
mANAZSEnt purposes

Market related informanon and estunates are used to detenumne the recoverable amount. Key asswmptions on wlich
management has based its detenmmnation of recoverable mmount mcinde estimated long ternm growth rates, weighred
average cost of capital and estimated operating margms. Cash flow projections take info account past experience and
represent management's best estimate about funwe developmenrs (Refer to Note 2.8).

L Non-current assels and DMsposal groups held for sale

Assets and habilines of disposal growps held for sale are neeasured at the lower of chmying amount and faor value less
costs to sell, The determination of fair value less costs to sell includes wse of management estimates and
assunprions. The faar value of the disposal groups have been estimated wsing valuation rechniques including incoms
amd market approach which inchudes unobservable inputs.

Now-current assets and Disposal Group that ceases 1o be classified as held for sale shall be measured at the lower of
canmymg amount before the Non-cuoment asset and Disposal Group was classified as held for sale adjusted for amy
depreciation’ amortization and its recoverable amount at the date when the Disposal Group no longer meets the "
Held for sale” criteria. Recoverable amounts of assets reclassified from held for sale have been estimated vsing

management s assuupions wiich consist of significant wmebservable mputs.
L6 Recenf accounting pronsuncements
L6.1 Standards issued but not vet effective

IFRS 16 Leases: On Jamuary 13, 2006, the luternational Accounting Standards Board issuwed IFRS 16, Leases
replacing the existing leases Standard. 1AS 17 Leases and related Interpretations. IFRS 16 sets out the principles for
the recoguition. measurement, presentation and disclosuwre of leases for both parties to & contract 1.¢.. the lesses amd
the lessor. TFRS 16 infroduces a single lessee acconmting model for a lessee and requires the lessee to recognize
assets and habalities for all leases unless the lease term is twelve months or less or unless the underlving asset is low
value in nanwe. Curently. operating lease expenses are charged to the statement of comprehensive income. [FRS 16
will result in an mcrease m cash mflows from operating activities and an increase i cash outflows from financing
activities on account of repavment of lease liabilities. The Standard also contains enhanced disclosure requirements
for lessees. [FRS 16 substannially camies forward the lessor accounting requirements in [AS 17,

The effective date for adoption of [FRS 16 is annuwal periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019 and the standard
permits two possible methods of mansition:

*  Full retrospective — Retrospectively 1o each prior period presented applyving 1AS 8 Accounting Policies,
Changes in Acconnting Estumates and Errors
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. Modified retrospective — Retrospectively. with the cumulatrve effect of witally applying the Standard
recognized at the date of inital application

Under modified retrospective approach. the lessee records the lease liability as the present value of the remaining
lease payments. discounted at the mcremental borrowing rate and the right of use asset either as:

*  Its canymg amount as if the standard had been applied since the commencement date. but discounted at
lessee’s incremental bomowing rate at the date of intial application or

* An amount equal o the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accmed lease pavinents
related 1o that lease recognized uder 1AS 17 munediately before the date of initial application.

Certain practical expedients are avalable under both the methods.

Om completion of evaluation of the effect of adoption of IFRS 16, the Group is proposing o use the “Modified
Retrospective Approach” for mansitioning o [FRS 16, and take the cumulative adjustment 1o retained eamings. on
the date of initial application (April 1. 2019} Accordingly. comparatives for the vear ended March 31, 2019 will not
be retrospectively adjusted. The Groap has elected certain available practical expedients on transition.

The effect of adoption as on ransition date wounld majorly result in an increase in Right of nse asset approximately
by $395 mullion, net mvestment m sub-lease approxumately by 360 mulbon and an mcrease m lease habahiy
approximately by 5495 million. The cummlative effect of applving the standard would be adjusted in retained
eanungs, et of taxes

IFRIC 23, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments: The Intemational Accomnfing Standards Board (IASB)
issmed IFRS imterpretation IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treanments which is to be applied while
performing the determination of faxable profit (or loss). tax bases, unused tax losses, mumsed 1ax credits and tax rates,
when there is uncertainty over mcome tax treatments under IAS 12, According to IFRIC 23, companies need to
detenune the probabality of the relevant tax authority accepting each tax treatnent, or group of tax weatments, that
the companies have wsed or plan to use i their mcome tax filing which has to be considerad to compute the most
likely amowmt or the expected value of the tax treatment when detenmiming faxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused
fax losses, wnnsed tax credits and tax rafes.

The standard permts rwo possible methods of tansition - 1) Full retrospective approach — Under this approach,
IFRIC 23 will be apphed retrospectively 1o each prior reporting period presented in accordance with IAS § -
Accounting Policies. Changes m Accoumting Esnmates and Errors, without using hindsight and 1) Retrospectively
with cumulative effect of mitially applying IFRIC 23 recognized by adjusting equiry on initial applcation, withour
adjusting comparatives,

The effecuve date for adoption of IFRIC 23 is aunual periods beginning on or after January 1. 2019, though early
adoption 15 permutted. The Group will adopt the standard on April 1. 2009 and has decided to adjust the comulative
effect in equiry on the date of imnial applicanon i.e. Apnl 1. 20019 withowt adjusting comparatives.

The effect on adoption of IFRIC 23 would be insignificant in the consolidared financial statemsents.
Amendment fo IAS 12 - Income taxes: In December 2017, the IASE ssued mnendments 1o the guidance in IAS
12, Income Taxes', in connection with acconnting for divedend distritmtion taxes,

The amendment clarifies that an entity shall recognize the mcomse tax consequences of dividends in profit or loss,
other comprelensive mcome of aquity according 1o where the ennty onginally recognised those past ransactions of
evenls.

Effective date for application of this amendiment is annual period beginning on or after JTanwary 1, 2019, akhongh
early application is permitted, The Growp 15 cumently evaluating the effect of this amendment on the consolidared
fimancial statements.
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Amendment to [AS 19 - plan amendment, cortailment or settlement- On Febmary 7. 2008, the [ASB issued
amendments to the gnidance in IAS 19, ‘Emploves Benefits', in connection with accounning for plan amendments,
curtaliments and semlemenrs.

The amendments require an entity:

. to use upddated assumptions to detenume cment service cost and net mterest for the remamder of the
penod after a plan amendment, cwtailment or seftlement. and

. o recoguize m profit or loss as part of past service cost. or 4 gain oo loss on seftlement. any reduction i a
sunrplus, even if thar surplus was pot previously recognised becanse of the impact of the asser ceiling.

Effective date for application of this amendment is anmual period begiming on or after Jamary 1. 2019, although
early application is permitted. The Group does pot have any impact on acoount of the amendment.

Amendment to IFRS 3 Business Combinations - Ou October 220 20018, the [ASE issued amendments 1o the
defiuanon of a business in IFRS 3 Business Combnatons. The amendments clanfyv the defuunion of a business. with
the objective of assisting enbibies o determmme whether a fransaction should be accounted for as a busimess
combination of as an asset acquisition. The amendment also introduces an opfional concentration fest that permmits a
simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of activiries and assets is not a business.

The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginnmg on or after January 1. 2020, although
early adoption is permitted. The Group is cwmently evaluating the effect of this amendment on the consolidated
financial statements.

1 Notes to the consolidated financial statements

2.1 Cash amd cash equivalenis

Cash and cash equivalents consist of the following:

{Doblars o melhons
Asaf

March 31, 209 March 31, 2018
Cash and bank deposits 2,052 2,021
Dreposits with financial instimtions 777 1.020
2,829 3,041

Cash and cash equivalents incinded under assets classified as held tor sale
{Refer note no 2.9) — ]
1,829 3,049

Cash and cash aquivalents as of March 31. 2019 and March 31. 2018 mclude restricted cash and bank balances of
$52 million and 582 million. respectively. The resmctions are primanly on account of bank balances held by
urevocable mists controlled by the company and bank balances held as margin money deposits agamst puaranlees.

The deposits maintainsd by the Group with banks and financial instimtion comprise of time deposits. which can be
withdrawn by the Group at any pomt without pricr notice or penalry on the puncipal.
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Refer wore 2,3 for accounting policies on fsanciol fnstrmmeins,
The rable below provades details of cash and cash equivalents:

{Dollars m mmllons)

As o
March 31, 1019 March 31, 2008

Current secommts

ANT Bask. Taiwan

Axis Bank < Uspaid dividend sccoun
Banamex Bank. Mexico {175, Daller socount)
Bapamex Bank. Mexico

Bank of Amenea, US4

Bank of Amenca, Mexwea

Bank of Lewnum , Tsrasl

Bank of Zachodn WHE 5.A., Poland
BXP Paribas Bank. Korsay

Chima Merchants Bank. China
Crtbank M_A . Australia

Cittbank N_A._, Brazil

Civbank N_A ., China

Civhank N.A ., Chana (U 5. Deallar sccount)
Citvhank N.A., Dubas

Citihank M.A_, EEFC (U5, Dioflar sccount)
Citibank N.A., Hungary

Cinhank M.A., Japan

Civbank N_A ., New Tealand

Citibank M_A_, Persugal

Cinvbank N_A ., Smgapare

Civbank N_A ., Sowth Afnca

Citibank N.A., USA

Chtthank N_A ., South Korea
Citghank N_A ., Luxembourg

Dieutsche Bank, Belgium

|l wnwBwitl sl —G8-u-1
-
E | a8l !l =

- 13
— R e e e e e e e e DO R e P e B R

l ===l wl

Deutsche Bank, Ceoch Republic

Dieutsche Bank. C zech Repwbbe (Ewro agoouml}
Dicutsche Bank, C sech Repubbe (U 5. dollar account}
Deutsche Bank, Franes

Deutsche Hank, Germany

Deutsche Bank, India

Deutsche Bank, Netherlands

Dieutsche Bank. Philippines (1.5, dollar sccoust)
Deutsche Gank. Poland (PLN accoant)

Dienrsche Bank, Poland | e socoum)

Dieursche Hank, Russe

Dieursche Hank, Russe (115, dollar account)
Dieairsche Haik, Sugapore

Deutsche Bank, Switzerland

Dieursche Bank. United Kingdom

Dieutrche Bank-EEFC (Eure accosmt)

Deutsche Bank, EEFC {Swiss Frane account)
Deutsche Bank-EEFC (U5 dollar account)
Dieursche Bank-EEFC, ladia (United Kingdom Pousd Seerling acecant)
Dieutsche Bank, U5

1CTICT Bank, India

ICIC] Bank-EEFC, lndia (1.5, doller sccount)
ICICT Bank-EEFC, (United Kingdom pound sterling sccount)
ICIC] Bank, EEFC {Euro account)

HSBC Bank, United Kingdom

HSBC Bank, India

L -
- W S g e | e | oo R e
- -
- TR G [
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(Dallars n malhons;
s all
March 31 T Mwrch 31 2008
Kotak Bank 1 —
ICICT Bank - Unpaid dividend sccouns 4 3
Worden 3 .
Nordhenken, Sweden T i
Pafferen Bank. ©eech Repubhis - 1
Royal Bank of Canada. C amada a0 P
Prnab National Bank, India — ]
Silicon Valley Bk, USA 2 —
Splitska Banka D D, Societe Generabe Groug, Croatia 3 1
Washington Trost Bank T —_
dll 18
Theprsin aseounts

Anrs Bank 134 —
Bank BGE BNF Paribas 5.4 i n
Harelays Bank T2 5
Canara Bank. Indea 12 36
Crvbank 26 s
Deutsche Bank, AG —_ i
Deutsche Bank. Poland 18 n
HDFC Bank T 383
HSBC Bask bl -
ICICT Bank A6 jad
1LET Bank - 38
IDFC Bask pLT] 180
Indusisd Bank B 154
Kotak Mahmdra Bank Tz —
South Inchan Bank 5 &
Stendand Chartered Bank 89 —
Wmshangton mast bank 3 -
Yeu Bank == 1
b 1002

Dheprirsivs withs Rmancial lnstiwrhon
HOFC Lamited, India Lot LEL)
LIC Housmng Finases Limsted 177 184
7 1,030
Total 111% LML

239/319



EDINETOOOO
00000000000 0O(E05959)
oOoOooodn

2.2 Investments
The carrying value of investments ave as follows:
{Dhollars i millions

As of
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2008

Current Investments
Amortized cost:
Quoted debi securities
Cost 3
Fair value through profit and joss:
Ligpuied mmtual Dumads
Fair value 258 12
Fair Value through Other comprehensive income:
Quoted debil securities

Fair value 267 117
Commercial paper
Fair value 12 45
Certificates of deposit
Fair value 358 B3
58 982
Non-Current investments
Amortized cost:
Quoled debi securities
Cost 274 291
Fair valie through Other comprelicnsive bacome:
Duated debi securities
Fair value Mo 493
Unquoted equity and preference securifies
Fair value 15 21

Fair value throungh profit and boss:
Unguoted convertible promissory nofe

Fair value — 2
Fixed maturity plan securithes
Fair value G (19
Ungunoted Preference securities
Fair value 3 —
Dihers:
Fair value F 1
670 853
Total Investments 1,628 1,865
Investment cumied st amortized cost 27 291
Investments carned af fur valwe through other comprehensive mcoms 1.022 1.484
Investments carmied at fair value throngh profit and loss 329 90

Nore: Uncalled capital commimments owstanding as of March 11, 2008 and March 31, 2008 was $1.2 million and
£12 wrilfion, respectively.

Refer note 2.3 for accouniing policies on fvancial instronents.
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Dretails of amounts recorded in other comprebensive income:

(Dillars i nullions |
Net gain / (lows) on Year ended March 31, 2019
Girmss, Tax et
Cuoted debd securinies | e |
Certificate of deposits (1) — (1}
Uniguoted equity and preference secunities 9 1 10
Nt gain | (loss) om Year ended March 31, 2018
Larass Tax Net
Cuoted deln securinies (2) —_— (2}
Certificate of deposits 3 (1) 2
Unguoted equiry and preference secunines I — I
Net gain | (loss) om Year enaded March 31, 2017
o Tan Nt
Cmoted debt securinies (1 e [y
Certificate of deposits i1y —_ {1y
Unguoted equity and preference securities i1} — iy
Method of fair valustion:
{Dhollars an inallions »
Fair valae
As at March 3
Cliss of imvestinent Method 019 pLIE ]
Laguid nmmal funds Quoted price 258 i2
Fixed Mamrty Plan securities Market observable mputs 66 (23
CQueoted price and market
Quoted debn secunities- camied at amortized cost observable mputs 307 330
Omoted debt secunities- camied at Fair value through  Ouneoted price and market
ather comprehensive mcome observable inputs 577 610
Commercial paper Marker observable inpurs 72 45
Centificate of deposits Muarket observable mputs 358 HOE
Uniuoted equity and preference securities at fair Discounted cash flows method, 15 21
value through other comprehensive income Macker nmliiples method,
Option pricing mode], efc
Unguoted equity and preference secunities- camied at - Discounted cash flows method, 3 —
fair valne throngh profit or loss Market multiples method,
Option pricing model, etc
Discounted cash flows method.
Macket nnltiples metlod.
Ungquoted convertible promissory note Option pricing mode], etc —— b
Discounted cash fows metlsod,
Market nmltiples method,
Crhers Option pricing model, etc 2 10
1.658 1,904

Nore: Certain guoted mvesiments are classified as Level 2 in the absence of active markes for suel fmvestents

241/319



EDINETOOOO
O000000000000(E05959)
Oooooooa

2.3 Financial insbruments

Acconnting policy

Effective April 1. 2016, the group has elected to ealy adopt IFRS % - Financial Instuments considering Apnl 1.
2015 as the date of imtal application of the standard even though the stipulated effective date for adoption 15 Apnl 1.
2018.

The group has classified its financial assets wto the following categones based on the business model for managing
those assets and the contractual cash flow characreristics:

* Furancial assets carmed at amortized cost
* Finaucial assets fair valued through other comprehensive income
. Fnancial assets fair valued through profit and loss

The adoption of [FRS 9 did not have any other material imopact on the consolidated financial statements, hence prior
period figures have not been restated and the cumulatve mnpact of 85 million has been recorded m other
comprehensive incoane for fiscal 2017,

2.3.1 Initial recognition

The group recopmzes financial assets and financial habilities when it becomes a party to the contraciual provisions
of the instrument. All fimancial assets and habdlities are secogmized ar foaar value on mutial recogmition. except for
trade recervables which are minally measured at ransaction price. Transaction costs that are directly atmibutable to
the acquisition or issue of fnancial assets and financial Liabilities thar are oot at fair valve thoough profic or loss are
added 1o the fair value on initial recognition. Regular way purchase and sale of financial assets are accounted for ar
trade date.

1.3.2 Subsequent measurement
a. Non-derivative linancial instrmmenis
i) Financial assets carvied af amortized cost

A financial asset is subsequently measured ar amortized cost if it is held within & business model whose objective is
1o hold the asset i ovder 1o collect contractual cash flows and the contractual tenus of the financial asset give nse on
specified dates 1o cash flows that are solely pavinents of principal and inferest on the prncipal anount curstanding.

{iip Finamncial assers af fair valie thirough other comprehensive mcome (FIOCT)

A financial asset 1s subsequently measured at far value through other comprehensive meome 1f 1 15 beld withm a
business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contracmal cash flows and selling financial assefs and
the contractual renms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates 1o cash flows thar are solely payments of
principal and wnterest on the principal amount outstanding. The Geoup has made an rrevocable election for s
investments which are classified as equity mstnmments to present the subsequent changes i fair value m other
comprehensive income based on its busimess model.

{iiiy Financial assers ar foir valne through profis or lass (F1TPL)

A financial asset which 1s not classified m any of the above categories are subsequently farr valued through profit or
loss,

fiv) Financial Habilities

Financial liabilities are subsequently camed at amorized cost using the effective interest method. except for
contingent consideration recognized m a business combimation which 1s subsequently measured at far value through
profit or loss. For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the balance sheet daie. the carving
anounts approximate fair value due to the short manmry of these mstnuments.
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b. Derivative Minancial instroments

The Group holds denvanve financial imstruments such as foreign exchange forward and option contracts to mutigate

the risk of changes i exchange rates on foreign curmrency exposures. The counterparty for these contracts is generally
a bank.

(i) Financial asseis or financial labilities, at failr value through profit or less
This category includes derivative financial assets or liabilities which are not designated as hedges.

Although the group believes that these derivarives constinue hedges from an econcmic perspective. they may mof
qualify for hedge accounting under IFRS 9, Fmancial Instriments. Any denvahive that 15 ether not desigmated a
hedge. or 1s so desiznated bur is meffective as per IFRS 9. is categonized as a fnancial asset or financial liabilicy. at
fair value through profit or loss,

Deerivatives not designated as hedges are recognized initially ot fair valne and armibumable transaction costs are
recoguized m the statement of compreliensive income when mcwred Subsequent to mntial recopmition. these
derivatives are measured ar fair value through profit or loss and the resulting exchange gans or losses are inchided m
other mcome. Assets’ habulies i this category are presented as cument assets/'cumvent habilities if thev are either
held for rading or are expected to be realized within 12 months afrer the balance sheer dare,

(1) Cash Mow hedge

The group designares certain foreign exchange forward and options contracts as cash flow hedges 1o nutgate the risk
of foreign exchange exposwre on highly probable forecast cash transactions.

When a derivanive is designated as a cash flow hedging instmument. the effective portion of changes in the fair value
of the derivanive is recognized in other comprehensive incomse and accommlated in the cash flow hedging reserve.
Any meffective portion of changes in the fair valoe of the dervanve is recogmized mnmediately n the net profit in
the statement of comprehensive income. [f the hedging instmiment oo longer meets the cnteria for hedge accounting.
then hedge accountmg s discontmued prospectively. If the bedmng mstroment expires or 15 sold, temmmated or
exercised. the cummlative gain or loss on the hedging instnument recognized in cash flow hedging reserve till the
period the bedge was effective remains in cash flow hedging reserve wtil the forecasted mansaction occuwrs. The
cumulative gam or loss previously recopnized in the cash flow hedgmg reserve is transferred 1o the net profit in the
statement of comprehensive income upon the occurrence of the related forecasted wransaction. If the forecasted
transaction 1s no longer expected to occur, then the amount sccumulated in cash fow hedging reserve 15 reclassified
1o the net profit in the statement of comprehiensive mcome.

133 Devecognition of fnancial instruments

The Group derecognizes a financial asset when the contractal rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire
or it transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecogmition under [FRS 9. A financial liabilicy {or a
part of a fimancial habdity) is derecogmzed from the group's balance sheet when the obligation specified m the
contract is discharged or cancelled or expires.

21.2.4 Fair value of financial instroments

In determinme the fair value of its financial mstmuments. the Group uses a variety of methods and assumptions thar
are based on market conditions and risks existing at each reporting date. The methods nsed 1o determine fair value
inchude discounted cash flow analysis. available quoted marker prices and dealer quotes. All methods of assessing
fair value result in general approximation of value. and such value mayv never acmally be realized.
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Refer 1o able *Fuaancial msinmpents by category” below for e disclosure on camrving valee and fair valne of
finnpeinl assets and habilities. For financial assets and liabilities matung within ove year from the balance sheet
date and which are pot carmed at fadr vahee, the canying ansounts approximate fair valuee duoe to the short manmity of
these instmmients.

135 Impaivment

The Group recogmzes loss allowapces using the expscted craxdit boss (ECL) mwocle] for the finmacial assets and
unbilbed revenue which are not fur valeed hrongh profit or kess, Loss allowance for rade recenables and unlalled
revente with no significant financing component is measured ot an amount equal 1o lifetinve ECL. For all other
finamcial assets. expected credit losses are measuzed at an amount equal to the | 2-month ECL. unless tere has been
a significant mcrease mm credit nsk from imitial recognition in which case those are maeasured at lifetune ECL. The
amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance ar the reporting date to the
amound teat is required fo be recopnized is recognized as an inpainment gain of loss in statement of comprehensive
o,

Financlal instrments by eafegory

The carrying vahse aned fair vialue of fusascil matruments by categories as of Magels 31, 2009 were a5 follows:

ADballars in mnllens )
Fimamcial assets’ Habillitbes
at Tulr valus through Fimamsial museen liabiliiies
prefid or lass at fair value thasugh OC1
Equiiy instromemis Toial
Dedgnaied upes designaied mpon carrying
Amortied cost  imdtial Imitkal Total fsir value

Anaely]
Cash amd cash
equivalents {Refer to
MNole 2.1} 2829 -_ - -—_ —  LEW 2529
Tervesments (Refes
Mae 22
Liigenid muinaal g
fimids - - 258 - - 258 o
Frxed matunty
plan securities - — &6 —_ — 66 6
Cuited detd
securities. 277 — - - i 54 3.2
Certificates of
deposit - - — - i i%g Bk
Comumercial paper —_ - _ - 72 72 T
Unigaated ecquty
apxl preference
SECHrines = m— 3 15 — 18 18
Unnioted
investments others - - 3 - - . 5
Tmde recervables 2144 - - _ - 2044 2144
Unballed revemmes 303 - - — — 05 jo
Prepayments and other
assets {Refer to Note
14) Lk} - — - - 520 s
Derrvalive Ginancial
STCL TS TTEY —_ — 43 — 5 48 &
Total G082 = i 15 LOE: 7481 T4
Lialilities:
Trade paynbies 239 — — - - 239 238
Derivative financial
mstrinnents — — r —_ —_ 2 2
Onhier Habilinies
mehading costingent
consideration (Refier
mate 2.5 |.263 — 27 — — 1.200 1250
Total L.502 — Fod - — 12M L2

244/319



EDINETOOOO
00000000000 0O(E05959)
oOoOooodn

i Om accoumt of fair value changes necluding merest accred
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2 Exchules interest acermied on quoted deb secunities caamied of amartized cost of 512 maillion.

e Exchudes umbilledd revenne for fixed price development contracts where nght 1o consaderntion is conditonal o
factors other than passage of Hime.

The carrying vahse and fair value of fsuscial strumens by categories as of March 31, 2008 were s follows:

(Dollas in milliors)

Finameial ascees Halilities

at fulr valos ithroogh Flmameial avsetn labiliies
parofi or lass st falr value through (0T
Equity insrruments Total
Deshgnsted upan dealgnared wpon caTTing
Amartied costisbtial recogubiion Mandatory inbtlal recogaltion Mandabery value  Toial fxlr value

Assrisy
Cash amd cash
eipmvalents (Refer ta
Note 2.1) 3040 — — — - 2041 Tl
Tevestments (Fefer
Noe 2.2

Liigaid mumaal

fiands = = 12 = -_— 12 1z

Frxed mananty

plan securities - - 23 - - L o

Quioaed dieb

securites 291 - - — 610 Lol il

Certificates of

depossit — —_ —_ — e B5 o

Ceomumercaal Paper — - -— — &5 45 45

Uinqaobed ecquaty

apd preference

SECNTIES — — — 3] — a1 k(|

Unpacied

investments ofhers - - L - - 10 1o

Unquated

convertibie

IO DObE —_ _ 2 —_ - 2 2
Trade receivables 1015 — — — — 20016 26
Umbslled revemses 654 — — — - 684 L8]
Prepayuents and other
assels (Refer 1o Note
24) 454 — —_ — — A56 B350
Demvative fimancial
FITLLTT 1T — — — — 1 L 2
Toial 6,458 i [ 1 1468 BO3d &,
Liabilities:
Trade pamyables 1057 —_ —_ — - 107 107
Derrvative financial
SIELR TS 1LY . == 6 === — & [
Orher Einbilities
mclading comtingent
comsideration (Refer
male 2.5) BiH - B — — 244 B4
Todal 043 — 14 — — 957 0ET

e O accoumt of faar value changes uschiding interest accrbd
20 Excludes interest accried on quoted debt securities carmied a1 smortized cost of 513 million

Fair value hierarchy
Level 1 - Quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for sdentical assets or liabalities,

Level 2 - Ingaits otlser than quated prices included witlsin Level | that ase sbservable for Qe asset or labubiry, euher
cirectly (n.e. as prices) or indirectly (1.¢. denved from prices).

Level 3 - Inpus for the assets or liabiliies that are nof based on observable mazker dars (unobservalile mgus),
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Fair valiue hicrarcly of assels and lalilities as of Aarch 31, 2009:

(Dl loers: i s e

Al Fair valee measarement at emd of
March 31, 2009 il FeporTing vear idng
Level 1 Lovel 2 Level 3
Assely
Invesements in lgnid munsal fiand wisis (Refer to Note 2.2) 258 258 — —
Investments in fived nsamrity plan secunties (Refer Mote 2.2 L2 — i —
Tnvestments m quoted debt secunhies (Refer to Note 2.20 884 G300 254 -
Investiments i certificate of deposin (Refer Note 2.2) 358 . 358 —
Investments i conunescial paper (Refer Nowe 2.7) 72 — 12 —
Investments i unquoted equity and preference secunries
(Reefer to MNote 2.2) 18 — — 18
Investment in nnqueted investiments others (Fefer Mote 1.2) 2 — — z
Dremivative financind instrunsents- gam on outstashing foreign
exchange forvard and option contracts 48 — 48 —
Liabilities
Denivative finaneinl instobents- loss ob outstanding Foreig
exclamge forwasd and ophion contracts 2 — 2 —
Linbility towards condingent consideration (Refer note 2.5)* 7 — — 27
ko Discoumt rafe pertaining lo contingent counsideration ranges from 956 to 6%

Drrang fiscal 2009, quoted debt securities of 3108 million were tamsfered Gom Level 1 1o Level 2 of fur value
hierarchy. since these were valued based on market observable inputs and quoted deld secunties of 549 millon were

tragsferred froamn Level 2 to Level | of fair value lierarchy. since these were valued baséed on quoted price.

Fair value hierarehy of assets and labilities as of Maveh 31, 2018:

(Deollars i millions )

Asaf Fadr valios séaireinenl ot e of

Parrviculars Afareh 31, 2018 il reporting period adeg

Level 1 Leved 2 Level 3
Assels
Investments i ligoid munsal find units (Refer to Note 2.2) 12 12 — —
Investments in fixed nuaturity plan securities (Refer Mote 2.2) 23 — i -
Tnvestiments i queted deld secunties (Refer to Note 2.2 940 Tol 239 -
Investiments us certificate of deposit (Refer Mote 2.7) 08 - 808 -
Investments in conamercial paper (Fefer Note 2.2) F L — F L —
Investments in ungonted equity and preference securities
{Refier to Mote 2.2) 21 — —
Investment in nqueoted investments others (Refer Noge 2.2 1o —_ —
Tnwvestments 1 wxpoaited convenibile promassory note {Refer
o Note 2.2 ] —_ — 2
Dremivative finnncan] instoissents- gam on otitstanding foreign
exclanige forwand and option contracts 2 - 2 —
Liabilities
Drerivative financial mstmuments- loss on outstanding foreign
exchange forwand and option conlracts fi —_ fi -
Liabilary towards contingent consideration | Refer note 2.57° B — — &

. Discoumtedd contlingent conifderation ar It
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During fiscal 2008, quored debit securities of 130 million were wasferred from Level 1 o Level 2 of far vahue
hierarchy. since these were valued based on market observible inpuls and quoted debr securnities of 5276 nuallion
were transfiamed from Level 2 ro Level 1| of fair value lnerarchy. since these were valued based on quoted price.

A one percentagze poant change m e unobservable inpins used in fair valuanon of Level 3 assers and lzabilines does
not have a sigmaficant imgact i ins valie,

Income from Mnancial assets

{Dodlars mn musllioms
Vear embed March 3,

018 101F 2007
Inferest incoms on financial assets carmied a1 amortized <ost 201 260 352
Interzst inconre on financial assets fuar valued twongh otler
comprehiensive income v 3 28
Dividend inconse on iyvesmeents camried ar fair valne throngh
profit or loss - I 4
Gaan | {loss) on ivesmeents carried ar fur value deeugh profit or
loss 24 EL) 18

37 b 402
Financial risk management

Fimanclal risk Iactors

The Group's activities expose it toa vanety of fisancial risks: market sk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's
primary focus is o foresee the unpredictability of financial markets amd seck to minumize potential adverse effects on
its financial performance. The prinary oearket risk 1o the Group is foreign exchange risk. The Group uses derivative
financial insmusents 10 mitigate foreign exclange relared risk exposuses. The Group's exposure 1o credit sk is
mifheenced maindy by the imdividual characteristic of each custonrer and the concenration of nsk from the top few
CASEOIRETS..

Market risk

The Group operates memationally amd a major portion of the business s mansacted m several currencies amd
comsequently the Group 1 exposed to forengm exchmage msk through its sales ad services i the United States and
elsewhere. and purchases from overseas suppliers in various foreign currencies. The Group holds denivative financial
urstruments swch as foreign exchange forward and option contracts to mitigate the nsk of changes in exchange mates
on foreign cuwmency exposures. The exchange rate between the Indian nipee and foreign cwmencies has changed
substantially i recent years and may fluctuate substammially in the fumre. Consequently. ihe results of the Group®s
operations are adversely affected as the mpee appreciates’ depreciates against these currencies.

The following table analvies foreign cumency nsk iom nwaetay assets aisd labilitees as of March 31, 2019:

(Daorlbars is enillions |
United Kimgdom

U5 doliars  Ewro  Found Sterling  Awstralian dollars  Other curvescies  Total

Casl and cash equivalents 37 i 16 il 161 483

Trmle recervables 1438 267 148 TG 140 20069

Unbilled revenies 540 ! 36 40 63 790

Olser assets [ 1% 3 L1 45 138
Trade pavables {2y (19 (20 (12 (13} (188)
Emgrlovee benefit obligations (98} (15} (3 {30 (24} (170)
Otber labilinies (509} (68) (28} (25% (B6h (714)

Nt aseets /| (Halsllitbes) 1.572 A 154 85 284 2425
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The following nble amalyzes foreign cumrency rsk from nsonetiy assets and Lialalines as of March 31, 2018:

i Dollars im enildions)

Undred Kimgien

U5 dollars  Ewre  Pousd Sterliog  Ausiralian dollars  Ovher curvemiies  Toral
Casl and cash equivalents 157 iz 23 54 183 490
Trmbe recenvables LI76 63 122 121 120 195
Unbilled revenes 156 a8 46 24 57 531
Oilser assets A 4 4 2 15 T4
Tirwde pavables 423 {12} (17 {5 9 (BS)
Emgrloyes benelit obligations (58) (13} (4} {28} (20} (152)
Onlser liabiliries (263} (50) {29) {14} {72y (428)
Nt assrets | (laledlities) 1,485 329 152 154 T4 2amd

For the years ended March 31, 2019, 2008 and 2017, every percentage point depreciation / appreciation i the
exchange rate between the Indian mpee and the US. dollar lias affected the company’s incremental operating
margins by approcimately 0474, 0.50% and 0,507, respechively.

Semsatvity analyie s compiedd based om the changes 10 the mcone and expenses m foreign CUrmency wpon
conversion o functional curency. due to exchange rafe fluctuations between the previows reporfing peniod and the
cument reporting period

Devivarive Nnancial insiraments

The Group holds derivative financial msmunents such as foreign exchange forward and opeon coniracts o onigane
the misk of changes i exclange rates on foreign cumreney exposres. The comnerparty for these comtraces i generally

a bank These denvative financial mstnunents are valued based on quoted prices for sinilar assets and Labilines in
nctive markers or mputs than are dirsctly or nwlirecily observable 1 i markerplace
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The following table gives detals i respect of canstauding forgizn excliange forvard and options comleacts:

{ En muslll s

Asal
Mareh A, I010 Mareh 31, 2018

Derivatives desigmated as cash flow hedges

Oplion Contracis
In Anstralian doltars 120 il
In Euro 135 Ly
In United Kingdom Pound Sterding 5 20

Other derivatives

Farward contracts
In Australian dollars 8 5
In Canadian dollars 13 el 1}
In Euro 176 41
In Japanese Yen 550 550
In New Zealand dollars 16 13
In Norwegian Krone 40 A0
In Singapore dollars 14 5
In South African Fand — it
In Swedish Krona S0 50
In Swiss Frause % 21
In 115, Dollars G458 633
In United Kingdom Pound Sterling B k3|

Option comtracts
I Australian dollars 1o 20
In Canadian dollars 13 -
In Euro o) 45
In Swiss Franc 5 5
In 1.5, Dollars 433 320
In United Kingdom Pound Sterling 10 25

The Groip recogiired a pet gain of 535 million, less than 51 malliea and 89 mullion oi denvative fsancial
HystmiEsents 01 designated as cash flow hedges for fiscal 200%, 2008 axd 2017, respectively, whicly ase included
under ofher incoame,

The foreizn exchange forward and option comrscts manwe witlun 12 momhs, The table below analyzes e
denivative financial insmunents nto relevant manenity groupings based on the remaniing period as of the balance

shest dare:

{IDodlars m mallioss
Asaf

March 2. 2019 March 31, 1018
Mot later than one month fis i 434
Later than one nzonith anc not later than three months 1001 Tl
Lates tham e ainonths aawl not laker than oqe vear 591 378
1182 1,513
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During fiscal 2009 and 2018, the Group has designated certnin forergn exchange forward and option contracts as
cash flow bedges to autigie the sk of forelgn exchange exposure on lughly probable forecast cash mansactions.
The related hedge mansactions for balance in cash flow hedging reserve as of hMarch 51, 2009 are expected to ocour
aned reclassified to statement of comaprehensive mcome within 3 months.

Hedge effectiveness is detennuned an the inception of the bedge relanonship, and tduough peniodic prospecrive
effectiveness asséssments 1o énsure that an economic relationship exists between the hedged tem amd hedamg
sstrvnent. micheding whether the hadgiug mstument 1s expectad to offset changes 10 cash flows of bedged ihems

If the hedee ratio for risk management parpeses is no longer oprinsal bur the risk management objective remains
upchinged and the bedge comumees to qualify for hedge nccoumtmg. the hedge relanonship will be rebalanced by
mchjustang earther the volune of e bedgmg msmunent or Qe vohuoe of the hedged e so 1hat the bedge ratio abigns
watly e ratio used for nsk manageaent parposes. Ay hedgze meffectiveress is caleulated and accowmed for w profin
or loss at the e of the hedge relationship rebalancing.

The following rable provides dee reconcilianion of cash flow hedge reserve:
[ Dollars. i el

Wear emded Year ended
Mareh 31, 2001% March 51, 2018

Galm / (Loss)

Balapce ar the begimaung of the pervod — &
Gain [ (Loss) recognized m other comprebensive income during the period I7 (14}
Amount rechassified to profit or loss dunng the period (13} 6
Tax impact oo above {1k 2
Balance at the end of the penod 3 —

The Growp offsets a financial asset and a financial liability when it currently has a legally enforceable right to set off
the recognized amounts and the group intemds either fo seftle on a net basis, or 1o realize the asset amd settle the
liability simaltaneowsly.

The following table provides quantitative mfonpation about offsemtmg of denvative financeal assets and denvative
fimnneial labilines:

(Ewolkars b gillions)
Asof As of
March 21, 200% March 3. H1E

Derhvative Derivative Derivatie Derhvative

fnancial paeed  fmsncial lakility  finascisl asved Gnancis Msbilin
Gross amout of recognized financinl assev/labaliny 4% (23 i {71

Amount set off — — (1 1
Nel amount preseated in balance sheel 48 {2) F] (6

Credit visk

Credit risk gefess o the risk of defaulr on its obliganon by the counmterparty resulting i o fooncial loss. The
msaximn exposure 10 the credin risk ar e repommg dare is primarily from reade receivables amoumting 1w 32,144
million and 52,006 million as of March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018, respectively and unbilled revenue amounting
o 5777 awlhion awl S654 millon as of March 31, 2009 and March 31, 2008, respectively. Trade recewvaliles aid
unbilbed revenue are typrcally unsecured asd are denved from revenue gamsed from customers pramarnily Jocated m
the Udred Srates. Credit psk s ossaged through credit approvals, establislung credit bmits and contimsosly
menitoring the creditworthiness of customers 1o which the Growp grmats credit terms in the nonnal course of
business, The Group uses expected credit loss mwsle] 10 assess the impainnent boss of gam. The group uses o
PrOVISION mErix 10 coanpute the expected credit boss allowance for trade recenvalbles ad wsballed revennes, The
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provision watreg takes mo account available external amd dnrerial credit nsk factors such as credit defaul swap
quotes. credit mtings firom mtemational credit mhng agencies and the Gronp's lustoncal expenence for customms,

The following table gives detmils in respect of percentage of revenues generated from top custoanes amd fop ten
RIE T

(En Yl
Vear ended March 10,
200% O 2007
Revemse froan top customes i 34 34
Revernse from top fen customers 190 19.3 210

Credil visk exposure

The allowance for ifetime expected credit bess on customer balances was 534 mallion. 55 million and 320 million for
fiscal 2005, 20HE and 2007, respecrively.

Movemewt in eredit loss allowance

i Dodlars: i il
Wear enibed March M.

0% 2018 2017
Balance at the beginning &8 63 1
Transhation differences (2} 4 (1}
Tpamment loss recognized | reversed) £ | 5 20
Write offs (10} (1 -
Balance at the end Rl 649 63
The Group's credit period genenlly rnges from 30-60 days.
Credit exposure
{Dhollars e millicns )
Avaol
March X1, 2019 Mareh 31, 2018
Trade receivables 2144 2016
Unbilled revemes 17 G54

Days Sales Cutstanding (D50} as of March 31, 200% and March 31. 2008 was 66 days and 67 days respectively.

Credit risk an cash and cash equavalents 15 linxited as we geperally invest in deposits with banks and financial
wstimtions witlh high credit ranngs assigned by mdemational and domestic credit ratmg agencies. Investments
primarily mchde investment in liguid mumal fund wnits, fixed mamty plans, quoted bonds issued by govenuent
and quas) EoVernment organrEanons. nop-convertible debennwes, cemficates of deposit, commercial papess and
SOVEITIIEIN seclities.

Liquidity risk

The Grouwp's pnncipal sciwces of Liquidity are cash and cash equivalents and the cash flow that &5 generated from
operaticns. The Group has no outstamding bormowings, The Group believes it the working capatal is sufficient to
mieet ils CruTend requinements,

As of March 31, 2009, the Growp had a2 working capital of 54.951 million including cash amd ¢ash equavalents of
$2.829 snllion aid Gimrent mvesiients of $958 muillion. As of March 31, 2018, the Groap had o working capital of
55,243 pnlhon ichxbng cash awd cash equavalents of $3.041 mallion and cusrent mveshimeds of 3982 mllion.
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As of March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2008, the owstanding emploves benefin obligations were 3240 million and
5225 mallion. respectively, which lave been substannally fiuded. Accordingly. no houadity nsk s perceived.

Under the Company’s buyback program asinated in March 2019, fde maxunnm buyback size is "RG0 crore
{approximanely $1_184 million). The compary has bouglr back shares amounting 10 “$13 crore (approximarely S118
maillion) (mclnding wasaction costs) il March 31, 2019, (Refer 1o note 2.13)

The table below prowvides detadls regarding the cowmtracnial mamntes of significam financial liabilities as of
March 31, 2014

{Doflars im nsillions)
Partioulbars Lesstham L year 12 vears  Pdwears 47 vears Toaal
Tewde pavables 139 — — — 139
Other liabilities fexcluding labilities towands
contingsnt consideration - Refir 1o noge 2.5) 1.260 2 1 - 1.263
Laability towards comingent consideration ¢m an
undiscounted hasis - (Fefer to MNote 2.5) 17 [ = 5 3d

The toble below provides detmls regarding the contractual matunbes of sigmficant financial babilities as of
March 31, 2018

{Dollars. im millions

Particubars Less than 1 year 1-3 years p 2 | A a7 yeAry 1'1&
Trale pavables o7 - — = 107
Olser liabilities {excluding liabilities towards

contingent considemtion - Refer to note 2.5) B — — — f36
Liability towards contingent consideration on an

uniisconted basis - (Refer o MNote 2.5) [ 1 1 — 8
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L4 Prepayments and other assels

Prepavments and other assets consist of the following:

(Dedlars an nallvsm )

Anal
March M, 201% Muarch 31, 2015
Current

Rental deposits 2 2
Secunity deposits 1 |
Loans o eniplovess 35 37
Prepand expenses (1 106 72
Tnterest aceribed and pot die 131 17
Withodding taxes and others't 215 158
Advance payvments to vendors for supply of gooads (0 16 18
Dreposit with corporation 242 236
Escrow mud other deposits pertaning to bindeack (Refier to Note No 2,13} 37 —
Deferred comract cosr (1F B 7
Otlver asses 32 i4
827 [

Nap-carrent
Loans to enaplovess 3 G
Secunry deposity E 8
Dreprosits with cofporation 1o k
Prepaad gramiry (Refer note 212,130 3 7
Prepasd expenses (1) 23 17
Deferred coniract cost A0 R
Advance towards purchase of busimesst (Refer to Mote No 2.9) 30 -
Witlihobding mxes and sthers () 134 e
Renral deposits 2% 26
182 332
1109 994
Financinl assets in prepavisents and ot amssets 328 456

- Neow-financinl assen

Witholding races and otleers primsanly consist of input 1y credits amd Cenvat recoverable from Governaent of
India. Cenvat recoverable mchiles 76 million which are pending adjudicanon. The Group expects these amount w

be sustainable on adpslicaon and recoverable on final reselurion,

Secunty deposits relate priscipally o leased telephone lines and elecinicity supplies. Deferred comract costs are

upfront costs incurred for the contract and are amortized over the term of the contract.

Deposit with corparation represents amsamts deposited 1o setthe centam enaplovee-related obligations as and when

they arise during the nonmal course of business,
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IS5 MMher linbilities

Other liabilities comprise the following:

{Dicdlass i nullions)
Asof
March M. 2019 Muarch 31, 2008
Current
Accrmied compensation to enplovess 372 igs
Accrued expenses 480 iTe
Witliholding taxes and others (2 215 190
Retention nwney 16 20
Lanbilities of contmolled tmsts 4 ral
Laabiliry towards contingent consideration (Refer note 1.9) 14 L]
Financial labiliry oo account of buyback™) 174 —
Deferred renr 1) 4 |
Capital creditors. kU |
Others i 1
1498 1,036
Naon-carrent
Liabilaty towards contingent consaderation {Refier note 2.9) 13 .
Accred compensalion bo emiplovess 3 -
Acerued granuty (Refer mote 2,02,1) 40 4 4
Deferred income - govermment grant o laid wse righas (0 [ T
Dreferved mcome & 4 5
Deferved rent 10 a5 ol
35 42
1,883 1078
Financinl labilities meloded nn other halnlimes 1.290 B4
Financial liabiliry towands contmgent consideration on undiscoumted basis
(Refer note 2.9) 34 8

Hr Nownofinancial liobilities

B8 Jn accordance with [AS 32 Financial Instruements: Presemtotion, the Couypany s vecordsd o finaucial
liability af $1 74 million for the obligation fo acguire its awn eguity shares To foe extent of standing insirctions
provided te its registered broker for the bivback as af March 21, 2019 frefer fo wate 2030, The financial
Hability i recognised at the present value of the maximmr ¢ thart the Campany wonld be required fo pay
to the rr_gr's.'mff Ilro.i'gr_,l"ﬂr By Back, winh a mmjpmrd.l’ng dehis in _gwmrml reserve O reteined mn.lhrg;

Acerued expences prunasly relate 1o cost of technreal sub-contrsctors, Rlecommmupeanion charges, legal ssd
profisssional charges, brand buklding expenses, overseas wavel expenses and office mamvenance,
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2.4 Frovisions
Accounting policy
a.  Provisions

A provision i recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Groap lns a presen legal o0 comstructive obligntson tlat
15 reasonably estomable. and at is probable thar an ouwnflow of ecopomic benefiis will be required o serle the
obhgation. Provisions are determumed by discounting the expected futire cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects
curent market assessments of the fmne vahse of money and the risks specific to the labiliry.

b, Post sales client support

The Groug provides its clients with a fived-period post-sales suppoent on all its fixed-price. fixed-tumetmme contracts.
Costs associated with such support services are accrued ar the tine related revennes are recorded and included in cost
of sabes. The group estimates such costs based on listorical experience and estunates are reviewed on a penodic
basis for any material changes m assumptions and likelibood of ocoumence.

. Dhrerous coniradis

Provisions for operolis conlzacts are recognized when e expacted benefits 1o be demived by the Growp from o
coneract are bower tean the unavokbable costs of meeting e fanre obligations under the contract. The provision is
nxeastred af the present vabue of te lower of the expectad cost of temmimanng the comract and the expected n2t cost
of contmmang with the contract. Before a provision 15 established the Group recogmazes any ingpamnent boss on the
assets associated with that contract

Provisions comprise the following:
{ Diollars i ouilbons )
ol
March 31 2019 March M. MI18
Provision for post sales client suppert and other provisions. 53 75
LE] 75

Provision for post sales client support and other provisions represents costs associded with proveding sales support
services which are acemeed at the timse of recognition of revennes and are expected 10 be uiilized over a period of &
nsomthas bo | vear, The movemsent i the provision for post sales chisnt suppost and other provisions is as follows:

| Dodlars m nulhoms
Year ended March

LN
FTE
Balance ar the beginming 75
Translation differences —
Prowision recogmized | (reversed) 24
Proadsion italized (16}
Balance at the end B3

Provision for post sales chient support and ofher provisions is inchuded in cost of sales in the consolidated statement
of comprelnsive incomee.

As of March 31, 2001% and March 31, 2018, clains ogainst the Group. not acknowledged as debis, wet of anrounts
paad {exchiling densds from nxome ax suthorites- Refer 10 Note 2,17 amouwted 1o $33 mallion (2230 crore) and
540 million (X260 crore). respectively.
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2.7 Property, plant sod equipment
Accounting policy

Property. plant and equipment are stated at cost, less accnnmilased depreciation aiwd bnpainmsent. if any. Costs direcily
attributable fo scquisition are capitalized unnl the property, plant and equipment are ready for use, as intended by
management. The group depreciates property. plant and equipment over their estinated useful lives wsing the
stranglu-Jine nsetliond. Tee estumated usefud lives of assets ase as follows:

Buildings 22 - 15 years
Plaait and imaclinesyi! 5 Years
Cowpiter equipanent 3e8 years
Furniture and fixnires 5 years
ehicles 5 years
Lessehold improvemenits Crver lease femu

F Inclwdes solar plaur with a aseful Hife of 20 vears.

Depreciation methods, usefl lves and resihial vahees age reviewed perochically, including at each financial year
el

Advances paad twwards the acquasinion of property, plant and sqpupment outstanding at ench balace sheet date amd
the cost of assers not ready to use before such date are disclosed umder “Capital work-1n-progress”, Subsequent
expendinires relating o property, plaot and equipaent is capitalized only when it s probable thar funwe sconomic
benefits associnted with these wall flow 1o the Group and the cost of the item cam be measured reliably. Repairs and
mianilenance costs are recogized in the stateinent of congpeehensive meome When mumed. The cost and related
acctmilated depraciation are elimanated from tee financnl statsments upon sale or retiranent of the aset axd the
resuliant gains or bosses are recognized i the net profit in the statenzent of comprelensive incoume.

Impainnent

Property. plant and equipment are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes i circumstances idicate
that their carrying amounts may nod be recoverable. For the purpoese of impainnent testing. the recoverable amwoant
{i.e. the lizher of the fair value less cost to sell and e value-in-use) 15 detenmined on an wdivideal asser basis unbess
the asset does not generate cash flows thar are largely idependent of those from otber assets. [n such cases, the
recoverable amount is detennined for the Cash Generating Undt (OGLT) 10 which the asset belongs.
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I sisch nssets are considersd to be impaired, the impamnent 1o be recognized i the net profit i the statement of
comprebensive meome is measured by the amow by which the canrying value of the assets exceeds the esnmmated
recoverable amount of the asset. An impainnent loss is reversed in the net profit in the statement of comprehensive
come if there has been a cleange m the estimates used 10 determine the recoverable amwount. The camying amount of
the asset is mcreased o its revised recoverable amowm, provided that this amount does pot exceed the camying
amount that would have been detenmined (et of any sccumubated depreciation) had po mnpaimeent loss been

recogiized for the asset in prior years.

Following age the chaiges in the camying valae of property, plant and equipment for fiseal 2019:

i Dollars i enilbions

Flant amd  Compuier  Furniture

Lasd Buillings _machinery _equipmest  aod foosres  Vehicles  Total
Coross carrying vahee as of Apddl 1,
018 m 1247 I8 T40 285 5 3096
Addinens 8 132 98 173 58 1 470
Addinons- Business Combimtions
(Refer note 2.9) - - 1 1 2 - 7
Deletions (7} (17 {15} {35} (9} - (83)
Reclassified from assers held for sale
(refer pote 2.9% — - — ] 4 — 10
Translation difference (17} (7L} (30} (421 (173 (1] 178)
Coross carrying value as of
March 31, 2019 176 1,291 572 B55 313 bl 3,322
Accumulated depreciation as of
April 1, 2018 (51 0417 (358} (557) (203) (5) (1544
Deprecuation (1 {45) (62} (L0} (37} {1y (255)
Accumulated depreciation o
deletions - 15 i2 23 [ - 56
Reclassified from assers held for sale
(refer pote 2,9) - - —_ (4} (3} - (7}
Translation difference 1 4 19 3l 12 | &8
Accumulated depreciation as of
March 31, 2019 %) (423} [ (616} (225 (3) 162y
Capital work-in-progress as of
March 31, 2019 171
Carrying valae as of March 51,
1% 7l 868 182 239 a8 2 1,931
Capital works1n-progress as of
Apnl 1. 2018 31
Carrying valae as of April 1, 2018 187 830 1580 192 #2 F] 1863
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Following are the claspes m e camving value of property, plant and squipment for Gscal 2018:

| Dollars i sullions

Plant amd  Computer  Furnitare

Land _Buiding machinery _equipmest _asd fioansres  Vihieles Torsl_
Gross carrving value as of April 1,
T 272 1,123 466 TiH} 26l 5 2827
Additmons 21 13 54 13 29 1 302
Dreletions. — - (3} (17} (3} (1 (24)
Reclassified umder held for sale (refer
nate 2.9 - - - (6} (43 - (o)
Translation dafference (1 2 {1} (1} 2 - 1
Gross carrying value as of
March 31, 2018 192 1.247 518 T49 285 5 3096
A minnilaled ﬂﬁeprrﬂ.ﬂ}l}ln s ol
Aprdl 1, 2017 (41 (376 (3 (471 (168) (51 (13I3)
Depreciation (1 (43} (62} {107} (40% (1 (254])
Accummlated depreciation o
deletrons - - 2 17 i 1 2%
Reclassified under beld for sale (refer
nobe 2.9 = = . 4 3 . -
Transkation difference — 2 2 -— (13 — i
Accumulated depreciation ns of
March 31, 2018 (51 4173 (3393 (557 (203 Ry EET]
Capital work-in-progress as of
March 31, 2018 3l
Carrying valae as of March 31,
018 287 Ll 150 192 2 ] 1863
Capital work-in-progress as of
Aprdl 1. 2017 Jna
Carrying valae as of April 1, 2007 168 747 165 229 93 2 1,807
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Follewing are the claspes m e camving value of property, plant and squipment for Gseal 2017:

| Dollars i sullions

Plant amd  Coanpuier Furninare

Land Bulldings machinery  equipment  amid fixnsres Vielibeles Toral
Gross carrving value as of April 1,
2016 244 955 392 Gl5 218 4 1428
Additions 22 147 T3 120 57 | 420
Dreletrons — - () 47} (17} (1 (73]
Translation dillerence fi 21 @ F 3 1 =¥
Giross carrving valne as of
March 31, 2007 172 1.123 Ak T} 261 5 2A27
Accumnulated depreciation as of
Al 1, 2016 E}] {332) (243) (395) (149) (31 (1.125)
Depi'ﬂ:m[“iun i1 {35) (57} {E01) (31 in}y (226)
Accummlated depreciation o
deletions — - 5 i 14 1 4
Translation difference — {9} {6} (9 (2} — (26
Accainiilated depreciation as of
March 31, 2007 (4} (376) (MM} (471} (168) (51 (L3Z3)
Capltal work-ln-progress as of
March 31, 2007 303
Carrving valoe os of March 31,
017 268 747 165 29 a3 2 1807
Capital work-in-progress as of
Aprl 1, 200146 286
Carrving valoe as of April 1. 20016 241 623 149 120 69 1 1.589

The aggregate depreciation expense 15 incladad m cost of sales i the stabement of comprehensive inconie.

Carrying value of L includes $83 million and $98 million as of March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2008, respecrively.
towarcls amsants padd under certam lease-cumi-sale agrecments 1o soquire bl mcluding agreensents where the
codtapainy' lias g ogitiod 10 either piaclase the propertics of rensw the lease on expiry of tie bease period

The conmaciual comnutmwens for capital expendinre were 5249 million and %223 oullion as of March 31, 2009 and
Mlagels 31, 2018, pespecnively.

L8 Goodwill and intawgille psaets

LA.1 Goodwill

Accounting policy

Goodiwill represents the purchase comaderation m excess of the Group's mterest in Hie et farr wahie of wentifiabile
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilines of the acquires, When the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities

and contigent liabilities acquired exceeds the purchase consuderation. a gain is recognized inunediately m the et
profit i the statement of comprehensive income. Goodwill is nweasured at cost less accnmmlated impainment losses.
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Impairment

Goodwill is tested for inpainment on an ammual basis and whenever there 15 an indication that goodwill may be
unpaired. relymg on a munber of factors nchiding operatmg results, business plans and Futire cash Nows. For the
prrpose of impairment testing, goodwill aoquired in a business combination is allocated 1w the Group's cash
generating units (CGU) or gronps of CGU's expected to benefit from the synergies ansing from the business
combination. A CGU is the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely
isdependent of e cash inflows from other assets or groug of assets, Impairment occars when the camrying amoumt of
a CGL inchuting the goodwill. exceeds the estimated recoverable amownt of the CGLL. The recoverable amoant of a
CGL is the higher of ats fair valee less cost o sell and its valie-in-use. Valse-in-use is the presemt value of futire
cash flows expected to be derivedd from the CGLT

Total mparrmeent loss of a CGL s allocated first o reduce the carrying amoant of goodwall allocatsd 1o the CGL
aapd Elsena 1o the ofher assets of the CGU pro-mta on the basis of the camving smount of each asset i fe CGUL An
impaimnent loss o goodwill s recognized in the net prodit in the statement of comprebensive meome and 15 not
reversed 1o e subsequent period,

Following is a sununary ©f chamges in the camying amount of goodwill:

{Dhodlars m mullioms )
Ao of
Mareh 31, 2019 Mareh 31, 2018
Carrying valae af the beginning L 563
Goodwill on Brilliaw Basics acquisition (Refer 1o note 2.9) - 5
Goodwill on Wongdoody acquisinon (Refer 1o note 2.9) 5 —
Goodwill on Fluido scquisition (Refer bo note 2.9) 32 —
Goodwill reclassified (o) fons assers leld for sale, net of reducrion (Refer
nobe no 2.9% 133 {247}
Translation differences {22} 18
Carrving valoe af the end 512 339

For the parpese of impaimnent testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated to the cash
generating units (CGLU} or groups of OGUs, which are benefited from the symergies of the acquisition. The Chief
Operating Decision Maker reviews the goodwill for any impainment at the operating segmsent level, wihich is
represented tuough groups of CGLS.

Durang the three montls ended Juse 30, 2018, the Group mtemally reorgamzed sonme of its busmess segments b
deepen cistomer selationslips, boprove focus of sales ivestawents and incrense mamagemen oversight, Consequent
to the intemal reorganization. there were changes i the repomable business segmems based on “Management
approach™ as defined nonder IFRS 8. Operating Segments (Refer Note 2200 Accordugly, the goodwill lias been
allogated to fhe new opertmg semoents as o March 31, 2009,

The following table preseits the allocation of goodwill to operating segments as ar Marels 31, 2009

{Dxolbars in milkions)
A of March 3.

; [
Financial services 108
Retail 63
Comummnicanion 56
Energy. whilities, Resources and Services 4
Manufacthanng 34
s

Operaning segments without significant goodwall 6l
Total 376
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Consequent 1o reclassificanion from beld for sale (refier note no. 2.9 the goodwill pertamning ro Kalledus and Skava
{together called as Skava) and Padaya acquisitions are tested for impaimnent at the respective entity Level which
amonnds b0 $136 mallion as of March 31, 2019,

The following rable presents the allocation of goodwill 1o operanng sezments (prios o reorganizanion) as ar Masch
31.2008:

(Dol Ears in pnillions )

A of March 31,

Segmenis s
Financial services T3
Manufachinng 9
Retail. Consumer packaged goods and Logistics 48
Life Sciences. Healtheare and Insuraice 68
Energy & uriliries, Conununicarion sl Services 72
300

Operating segments witlout signaficant goodoal] 39
Tutal L]

The recoverable amount of a CGL is the higher of its fair vahee less cost to sell and is value-in-use. The Eair value of
a OGLU s detenuimed based om tee narket capitalization. The value-in-use calculations use cash flow projections
over & period of five years. An average of the range of each assumgeion nsed is mentioned below. As at harch 31,
200% and MMarch 31, 2018, the estimated recoverable amwonnt of the CGU excesded its camying amount.

The key assumphions used for the calculations ane as follows!

1 &)

March 31 301% ___ March 3. ]1

Long term growth mte &-10 8-10
Clperating maargias 17-20 17-20
Dasconit fate 125 13.5

The above discount rate i1s based on the Weighted Average Cost of Capital (WACC) of the Company. The
management believes thar any reasonable possible changes in the key assumgpions would nof canse the camying
amount 1o excesd the recoverable amsount of the cash generating unit.

182 Intangible assels
Accounting policy

Inmangitle assers are stated a1 cost less accumulated mportization sl popaimen. Intangible assers are amornzed
over their respective individual estimated uscful lives on a straight-line basis. from the date that they are evailable for
use. The estimated useful life of an identifiable imtangilile asset is based on a manber of Mhetors including the effects
of obsolescence. demand, conypetition. and oflver economic factors {such as the stability of the industry, and known
technological advances. Amoriization metlods and useful lives are reviewed perniodically including at each financial
vear end.

Research costs are expensed as incwrred, Sofrware product developmsent costs are expensed as imcumed unless
technical and commercial feasibiliny of e project is demonstrated, funme sconomic bemefits ane probable. the
Company has an intention and ability to complete amd wse or sell the software and the costs can be measured reliably.
The costs which can be capitalized mchide die cost of muatenal, direct laibosr, overhead costs that age directly
anmribaable 1o preparing the asser for its mwended use
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Impairment

Intangitde assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes i circumstances indicate that teeir
CATYIng ambonnks may wof be recoverable. For the purpose of imapamment testing. the recoverble amount {1e. the
higher of the fair valwe less cost 1o sell and the value-in-use] is determined on an mdividual asser basis unless the
asset does not gemerate cash flows lat are largely independent of those from otlver assets. In such cases, the
recoverable amount is determined for the CGL 10 which dhe asset belongs

If sl assers are cousidered to be inpaired, the impakrment 10 be recognized in the ner profin i the stateiment of
comiprehensive incoms is measired by the amout by which the carrying value of the assets exceeds the estnmated
recoverablde amoumi of the assel. An ingadmment loss is reversed in the net profit in the stement of comprehensive
aiscointe i thene lins been o cleusge i fhe sstmates nsed 1o determane the recoverable amwount. The camying amoi of
the assel 35 moreased to s revised secoverable amounm, provided thar thas amount does oot excesd e carmying
anourd that would have been determuved (net of any accmmulated amortization) had no nnpament boss been
recogazed for the assel in prior years.

Following are the changes m the camying valae of acquired intangible assets for fiscal 2019

i Dhollars e muilliean )
Land uw
Cuslasmrr Suftmare wights  Marketing

rrlated related related prlaned Chibirrs Teaal
Giross earrying valme as of April 1, 2018 [T ] 11 4 i i)
Achdstions dhrng e pervod - 1 - — — 1
Acquisition through Tusimess combination (Refer
mote g0, 290} 47 = = 5 ] &1
Reclassified under assets hebd for sale (Refer mote
oo, 29} 24 &0 —_ & —_ ol
Tramsbation daflierences {3} —_ {1} {1 il iy
Gross carvying valee as of March 2, 2019 138 4 10 14 i2 1%
Agcumulated amoriization as of April 1, 2015 44} [E]) [iT) 12y [E )
Anprizaion expherne (18} [LEY] —_ il 23 (A2}
Reduction m vaboe {Refer mole mo. 2.9) 7] — —_ — —_ {13}
Reclassified under assets held for sale (Refer mote
B 19 (2] (28) — (33 —_ [E13]
Tramslation dulferences i — -— — — 1
Acemmulatod amortieation as of March 31, 2009 (L1N] (b {1} (2] 41 lﬂ
C-rq'lnjrllur:ul-f.\ilrtl 30, MGl iK% M 9 8 g 1)
Carrying value ss of April 1, 2013 4 — 10 : : M
Estimafied Useful Life (in v#ars) 1-10 i.8 50 510 i-5
Estimated Remalnlng Usefil Life (in vears) 07 1 42 28 343
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Follewing are the clapes wm e canying value of acquiresd meangible saets for fseal 2018:

{ Dhollarm o mallive
Sub- Land use
Cudomer  Software  comiraciing rights  Muarketing
relared related  right relaied relared relared Chihars Tatal
Giross carrving valme as of April 1. 2017 116 [+ 3 1k 14 1 115
Addition through busimess combinastion
(refer note o 1.9 r ) — — — — — i
Diedetion’ retirals 27 —_— (K} - 41 (53 1A%
Reclassafied under assets hebd for sale
(Rafer note no. 2.%) {245 [0} —_ - (] — (kL)
Tramslation differences 1 I — I — (i i
Giroas carrving valise as of
Alwirch X1, X018 L3 ] — 11 4 4 ik
Accumulated smortiration s of
Apadl 1, 2007 159 1% [E]] [N (7 (3] 95}
Amoriutalion expense {20 {12} — — 2} il 35
Dedeton’ reticals i — ] — 4 5 aw
Reeclassified under assets held for sale
{Refer mobe mo, 2.9 9' k} ] - - A - Al
Tramslaten differences (13 — — — -~ — i1y
Accnmulsted amortization o of
&uh A1, Hu& i44) (3 — il (&4 {21 52
Carrving valwe as of March 30, 2018 4 — — 10 F: ] EL
E‘qu‘lng\.'llue-l\uf.lpd.l 1, W17 b-1d 41 — ¥ T 4 12k
Estimated Uselul Life (i vears) =10 —_ - L] L i
Estimated Remalning Useful Life (in
years 1-2 — - 13 L] i
Following are the changes in the camying valoe of acquired intangible assets for fiscal 2017:
i Deollars. i enill ]
Sub-  Laoal wer
Customer  Software  coptracting rights  Markering
related redated  wight related related welated Dihers Toral
Gross carrving valie as of
April 1, 2016 117 62 3 11 14 1 217
Translation differences (1) — — (1) — — {2}
Goross, carrying value as of
March 31, 2017 1146 [ 3 I 4 {1} 215
Accumulated amortization as of
April 1, 2016 (46} B 1) () 5) 4} (63)
Amortization expense (14} (%) - -- 2) [E3] (28]
Translation differences 1 (1) - -~ — 1 1
Accumulated amortization as of
March 31, 2017 (590 (19) i3) (1) 7} (L] (95}
Carrying value as of
March 31, 2007 57 43 = @ 7 4 120
Carrving valae as of April 1, 2006 Tl 53 — ik W f 149
Estimated Useful Life (in years) 3-10 58 — A0 310 i3
Estimated Remaining Useful Life
(im ¥ears) 1-6 36 - iR 1-8 -4

The amorhzation expense has been
statenent of comprelenave incoms,

mecided wmwder deprecintion and

ansorization expense m ihe consoldated
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During Fescal 2007, the managensent based on an intemal evaluation reassessed the remainig wsefisl life of cermany
software technology assets acquired as a part of busisess comipations. Accordingly. the remaining wsefiul life of the
sand asset which was 8 vears has been revised fo 3 years, Amorfization expense for fiscal 2017 is higher by 53
million due o the revision,

The aggregate amorization expense is incloded in cost of sales in the consolidated statement of comprebensive
T,

Research and development expense recognized i the consolidated statempent of comprehensive ivoome. for the years
endd Magch 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 were 5110 million. $116 niillion and $1 18 million. respectively.

2.9 Business combinations and Disposal gronp held for sale
2. Business combinations
Accounting Policy:

Bismess combapanons have been accomted for wsnsg the scqusinon msetod wnder e provisions of IFRS 3
{Revisad), Busaness Contbinatsons.

The cost of an scquisition 18 measued af the for value of e assets mnsfamed. aqury insmanents isswed and
liabilies incusred or asswmed an the dare of acquisinion. which is the date on which control s mansferred 1o the
Group. The cost of acquisition also incledes the fair value of any contingent consideration. Identifiable assets
aoquired and Liabilities and contingent liabiliies assimred i a business combination are measured initially at their
Tair vahse on the date of acquasition.

The inferest of non-controlling sharcholders is initsally measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests’ proporticnate shane of fe acquires's identifiable met assets, The clwice of measurement basis is made on
i acdquisition-by-acqudsition basis. Subsequent o acquisition, the camving amonnr of on-controlling interests is tee
amowy of those erests at inirial recognition plus the pon-comrolling interesss” shave of subsequent changes in
equity of subsidiaries.

Bisaess combimtions bertween entitses wwber conunon control 15 ourside the scope of IFRS 3 (Revisad), Busaness
Combinmeons asd s acconnted for ar carmying valoe,

Trapastion costs that the Group menrs i conpection with o busoess comlnnation such as finders” fees, legal fees,
dune ciligence Fees, and other professionn] and consnliing fees are expensed as incusred,

Brilliant Basics Holdings Limited:

On Seprember 8. 2007, Infosys acquired 100% of the volng mmerests in Brilliasr Baskcs Holdings Limdred.. UK.
(Brilliant Basics) n product desizn and customer experience mmovator with experience in execuing ghobal programs.
The busniess scquisilion was completed by enfening mite a share purchase agreement for ¢ash consideration of $4
mnillion, contingent conswleration of up to 53 mullon and an addinonal consideration of 52 mallion, refered 1o as
retention bonus, pavable to the employees of Bnlliant Basics at each anniversary year over the next nwo years,
subject to their contitmeons cmploymient with the group at each anniversary,

The payment of contingent consaderation 1o sellers of Brillam Basics 15 dependent upon the achievement of ceram
financial targets by Brillean Basics over a peniod of 3 vears ending on March, 2020,

The fair value of connngent consideranion is determinad by disconnnpg the esunated amowy pavable 1o the sellers
of Brilliant Basics on achievenwnt of cemain financial targers. The key mpurs used i determanation of the fasr valwe
of contingent consideration are the discount ate of 10%% and the probalalines of acluevanent of the financial argets
The undiscounted value of contingent copsideration 1 52 mallion for ench of Marcl 31, 2018 and March 31,2019,

The excess of the pirchase consideration paid over te fair value of assets acquired lsas been anmbuted to goodwill.
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The purchase price hns been aliocated based on wanagement™s estimates ond mdependent apprazsal of fiar values as
fillows:

| Duzilliars in neslisoms §

Acqquiree’s. Fair valse Purchase price

Componint carrying smount il jusimnents allocated
Net Assens® —
Inrangitle assers - customer relanonships —
Dreferred tax liakilities on imangible assets —

I.|-|

|JI

Goodwill
Total purehase price

"-I'U"I-illi‘l

- Includes cash amd cash equivalents scquired of less than 51 million
The gocdwill is not tax deductibbe.

The gross mpomd of tade recervables acquined andd 115 far valoe 15 less thaa S1 mallion akl the amoumts bave been
subsmntially collectad.

The faar vadoe of encl major class of consuderntion as of the acquisition date 15 as follows:

(Deollars i mallions )

Consdderation

Lomponent wetiled
Cash Paad 4
Fair value of comtingent consideranion 3
Total parchase price T

The mansaction costs of less than §1 mollion related o the acquisiion have been inchsded under admanistrative
expenses in the statement of comprelvensive income for fiscal 2018

Wongdoody Holding Company Ine.

On May 22, 2018, Infosys acquired 100% of fe voling imferests in WoneDoody Holding Company [nc.,
(WongDoodyh an US-Dassd, full-servace creative and consumer sights agency. The busingss acquisition was
comapleted by entenng b a share purchase agresment for a total cousideration of up 1o 575 wallion, whach includes
a cash comsaderntion of S35 million. contingent consideration of wp to 528 million asd an addinonal considerarion
of up te 59 million. referred to as retention bonus, pavalde to the certain emplovess of WongDoody over the next
thres venrs. subjest 10 their contineons enaployvinet with the group,

WongDeody. brings to Infosys the creative talent and marketing and bramd engagewent expertise. Further the

acquisition s expected to strengthen Infosvs” creative, branding and customer expenence capabilities to bnng
nmevative thinking. talent and creativity to cliemts.
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The purchase prace has been allocatad basexd on management”™s estinates and mdependent apprapal of fur values as
follows

(Dilbars i il 1

Acqairee’s Parchaue

carrving Fasir vales pirixe

Coanpanent At il sy allocared
Net Assefs® 5 - 5
Intangitde assels - customer contracts aud relationships 0 20
Inmangitle assers - Trade namne — 1 1
3 21 6

Goodwill 25
Total purchase price 31

. Tnclwdes cash amd cash mrm'wrfﬂlu m‘lm'rnf q,l"s-.'."nL arillian.
Goodwill i ax deductible

The fair valoe of each major class of consudermtion as of the acquisition dage is as follows:

{ Dallars in pllsons )

Conslderation
Compenint seothed
Cash Consideration 38
Fair valse of contingent conmsideration I—
Total purchase price 51

The gross amwamt of rade receivables acquired and its fair value is $2 pallion and the amount has been fully
collected.

The payment of contingent consuderation to sellers of WeongDoody s dependent upon the achievemsent of certam
fimancial targets by WongDoody. Ar the scquisition date, the kev wygwaes used in determinarion of the Gaar value of
conringent consideration are the discount rate of 16%: and twe probabilites of achievement of the financial rargets.
The umdiscounted value of contingent consideration as of March 31. 2009 15 517 million

The ransaction costs of less than 51 mallion related to the scquisinon lave been inchsded wmdder admanisoanive
expenses 1 the statenrent of comprelsensive income for fiscal 2015,

Infosys Compaz Fre Limited (formerly Known as Trosted Searce Pie Lid)

Omn Novemiber 16, 2018, Infosys Consulting Pre Linnited {a wholly ovwmned subsidiary of Infosys Lumted) acquired
60% stake m Infosys Compaz Pre. Lk o Smgapore based IT services company. The business acquisition was
comipleted by enfermg into a share purchase agreement for a total copsideration of up w0 3GD 17 mallion
(approxumately $13 million on acquisiion date). which okludes a cash consideration of SGD 10 nullion
{approxumately 58 million on acquisition date). contingent consideration of up to 3GD 7 millicn (approxonately 53
million on acquisiticn dare).

The purchase prace has been allocated based o management™s estimates and independent appraisal of fair values as
Telbows
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(Dodlars i illions}

Acquiree’s Purchase

carrying Falr valme price

Coanponent A il s nmer s allorarid
Net Assers® I3 - 13
Intangille assets — customer contracts and relaonships — [ [

Dweferred tax liabilities on intangible assets — (1) i1}
13 hi 18

Less: Mon-comrolling interests {7}
Total purchase price 11

. Iuclndes cash and eash eqruivalents aequired af 3 9 million,

The Eazr valoe of eacly major class of consideration as a1 the acquisition dare is as follows:

(Diaillars i pallions)

Consideration

Cpanponent st
Casly Consideranon H
Fair value of comtingent consadaration i
Total purchase price 11

The gross amonat of ade receivaldes acquired and its Tair value i 57 nullion ad e anowy bas been substantally
collected.

The pavinent of comtangent consideration to sellers of Tufosys Compaz Pre. Lid i dependent upon the achievemen of
certauy revembe targets by Tufosys Congpaz Pre. Lid. At the acqusinnon date, the key mputs used i deterunsnon of
the famr value of contmgent comsideration are the discount rate of 9% and the probabilities of aclievement of the
finamcinl targets. The undiscounted valog of contmgent considerntion as at March 31 2019 s 55 millon (SGD 7
maillion}

The transaction costs of less than $1 million related to the acquisition have been incladed wnder administrative
expenses in fhe statenwent of comprelensive income for fiscal 20159,

Fluido Oy

On Octobser 11, 2018, Infosys Consulting Pre Liosited (a wholly ovned sulsidiary of Dnfesyvs Lisited) sequised
100 s of voting nterests in Fhodo Oy (Fhiddo), a Nordse-based salesforce sdvisor and consuliugge parter i cloud
consulting, imglementation and waining services for a total consideration of npte Ewro 65 million {approximately
575 millien). comprisang of cwh consideration of Ewo 45 miltion (approximately 552 oulbion), contingent
comsuderation of apte Ewme 12 aullon (approxiately $ 14 mallon) and retention payouts of wpeo Euro § mallion
(approxsmately $9 mallion), pavable 10 the emplovess of Fhndo over tee next theee vears, sulyect to delr continmons
employmyent with the group.

Fliizdo brogs to Infosvs Salesforce expertise. alongssde i agile delivery process that sunplifies and scales digtal
efforts across chanmels and touchpoints. Further. Fluido strengthens Infosys” presence across the Nordics region with
developed assets and client relationships. The excess of the purchase consideration paid over the fair value of assets
acqured las been armbuted 1o goodwill,

The purchase price has been allocated based on management s estimates and independent appraisal of fair values as
fodlowrs:
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{Diollars im millions

Acquiress Furchase

earrving Falr value price

Coanponeni mtumi il s hinseis. allocnied

Net Assets® 2 — 2

Intangible assets — customer contracts ad relationships — 21 21

Tutangible assets = Salesforce Relationships - 8 ]

Inmngible assers ~ Bramnd — 4 F]
Deeferred tac liabilitses on imangible assers — {7h (73

2 26 28

Goodwill 32

Total purchase price [

= Inclndes carh and cash equivalents acquived of 3 4 milton
Gooddwill s ot 1 deduciible

The far value of ¢ach mapor class of conswderation as of the acquisition date is as follows:

{un & emlhioni

Comslderarion

Compensit wrliled

Cash consideration 3z
Fair value of comngent cossderanion R |

Taotal purchase price Gl

The gross amount of made receivables soqudred and its fair value is 54 million and the ansount is filly collected.
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The pavanet of contimgent constderation to sellers of Flndo 1s dependent upon tlse achievensen! of certan fimancial
trgets by Flakdo, At e acquisiion date. te key dnputs nsed m deternmnation of the fiir value of coutingent
consideration are the discount rate of [6% and te probabilities of achievement of the financial fargets. The
undisconnbed value of contingent consideration a5 of March 31, 20019 was EUR 8 nullion (5% mallion).

The iramsaction costs of $1 million related to the acquisition have been inclinded tmder adminisirative expenses in the
statement of comprelensive inconse for fiscal 2019

Hitachi Procurement Service Co., Lid

Om Apnil 1, 2009, Infosys Consulting Pre Linuted (a wholly owwed subsidinry of Infosvs Lumated) acquared 1% of
the votmyg naterests iy Hitachs Procurement Service Co., Ll (HIPUS) Japao, a whollv-owned subssdiary of Hatachi
Led, Japan, for a tonal cash consideration of TPY 3.2% ballicn dapprosamately 530 million) after fulfilment of closang
conditions. The company paid an advance of JPY 3.2% allion (approximately $30 million) to Hitacla towards cash
consideration on March 29, 2019, HIPUS handles mdirect materials pusclasing fmctions for the Huscli Group, The
naze of Hitacli Procurement Services Co., Lid has been changed 1o HIPUS Co.. Lrd with effect from Apnil 1. 2019,

As of Tune 19, 2019 the Company 1 in the process of fmalizing the accoumturg for scquisition of HIPUS, mcheding
allocation of purchase consaderntzon to idennfiable assers and halalities,

Stater M.V,

Om May 23, 2019, Infosys Consulring Pre Limited (a wholly owsed subsidiary of Infesys Limited) acquared 75% of
voting interests m Stater NV (Stater), a wholly-owned subsidiary of ABN AMRO Bank NV Netherland. for a total
consideration of upto Euro 134 Million (approximately $171 Million). As of June 1% 2009 the Company is in the
process of finalizing the accounting for acquisitten of Stater, wchading allocation of purchase cousideranon W
denrifiable assers and liabilities.

I, Disposal group held for sale
Accounting policy

Non-curren assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale if their camyving amount 15 otended to be
recovered principally through sabe rather than through contining nse. The condition for classification of beld for sale
15 met when fe non-current asset or the dispesal group is available for nmmediate sabe and the same is highly
probable of beimg completed within one year from the date of classification as held for sale. Non-cument assels and
cisposal groups held for sale are measured at the lower of canmying amount and fair value less gost o sell. Non-
cumment assets sl Disposal Group that ceases 1o be classified as held for sale shall be measured ar the lower of
carryving amsount before the won-cument asset and Disposal Group was classified as held for sale adjusted for amy
depreciation’ amortization and it recoverable ameount at e dare when e Disposal Group no kager meets e
“Held for sale” criteria

Craring the three months ended MMarch 2018, the Company initated identification and evaluation of potential buyers
for its subsiclianies. Kalladus and Skava (togeber refemed to a5 “Skava™) amd Panava, collectively referred 1o as the
“Dhsposal Group™, The Disposal Gronp was classified and presented separately as “held for sale™ and was camed at
the lower of canying valwe and fair valoe. Consequently, a reduction in the fair value of Disposal Group bebd for sale
amouring fo 518 million m respect of Panaya has been recognized m the consolidated statement of comprehensive
uscome for fiscal 2008, During the daree moaths ended June 30, 2015, on remsasirement, mchidnig consideration of
progress in negouations on offers from prospective buvers for Panava, the Company recosded a seduction in the fair
value of Disposal Group el for sale amounting 10 539 muillion i respect of Panayva
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Durang the three montls emded December 31, 2018, based on evaluation of propesals peceived and progress of
negotiations with potentaal buyvers, the Company conchuded that the Dispesal Group does nod mieet the ¢nteria for
“Held for Sale’ classification becarse it is w0 Jouger laghly probable thar sale would be consununared by Masch 31.
2009 { rwelve mentls from date of il classafication ~ as held for sale™) Accordingly, w accondance with IFRS 5
=" Mon curent Assets held for Sale and Dascontinued Operations™. the assets and liabilities of Panaya and Skava
have been included on o line by line basis in the consolidated financial statements for fiscal ended and as at March
312009,

Cm reclassification from “Held for sale”, the nssets of Panayva and Skava have been remeasured at the lower of cost
aned recoverable mpow resulting i recognition of an adjustment in respect of excess of CATVIEE MNOUN! over
recovernble ol on reclassification From “Held for Sale” of $65 mullon (comprang of $52 nullion towands
goodwill andd 513 million towards value of customer relationships) in respect of Skava in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive meome for fscal 2019,

110 Revenne from operations
Acconnting policy

The Group denves revenes provasily from business [T services comprising of software development and related
services, consulting and package mnplementation asd from the Lcensie of sofrvage products and platfornes across
ot core mwl digaral offernngs 1ogether called as software related services™)

Effective Apnl 1, 2018, the Growp adopred IFRS 15 ~Revene from Contracts with Customers™ nsing the cumulanive
catcl-p transifion mietlwod. applied to contracts that were ot completed as of Apail 1. 2018, In accordaie with the
cummelative catch-ap tansition method, the comparatives have not been retrospectively adpested. The following s a
smmary of pew andior revised sigmificant accounting policies related to revenne recogmtion. Refer Note 2,00
“Revense from operations” in the Company's 2018 Anmal Report on Form 20-F for the policies in effect for
revenee priot o Aprl 1. 2008, The effect on adoption of IFRS 15 was insignificant.

Feveme is recopnized upon mansfer of control of promised products or services fo cnstonwers in an amount that
reflects the consideration we expect o receive in excluange for those products or services.

Arrangements witl custeaners for software related services are eather on a fixed-price, fixed-tmeframe or on & tme-
and-marerial basis.

Revenue on ne-and-matenial contracts are recogmzed as the related services are perfonmed and revemse from the
il of e bast invobekz 1o the sepoiting date is secogimped as unbilled severee, Revenne from fxedpaice, fived.
tunefrane contracts, whsre the perfonmmnce obligations are satisfied over fime and where there 15 B0 uncertainty as
fo measirement or collectability of consideration. 1% recommized as per the percentage-of-completion method. When
there 15 umcertandy as to measurement of wlnmate collectability. revenue recogmition 15 pestpened unnl sich
uncertainty ks resobved. Efforts or costs expended have been used fo measure progress towards completion as there is
a direct relationship between input and productivity. Mamtenance revenue is recomnized ratably over the tenn of the
underlving mamtenance armngement

Revennes in excess of mvoicing are classified as unbilled revenue while mvoicing in excess of revenues are
classified as confract liabalities (which we refer to as uneanred revenmes),

In amrangenvents for softwane developusent and related services and mainnenance services, the Group has applied the
gnidance in IFRS 15, Revenve from contract with custoaner, by applyving the revenne recognition criteria for each
distonet performance obligation. Tl amangements wil autoness generally meet e cntena for consadenng
software developosent ad related services as distiner performance obligations. For allocang the trasaction price,
thye Giroug has peensred the revenne m respect of each perfonmance obligarion of & contract at its relative standabone
selling price. The prce that is regulardly charged for an item when sold separately s the best evidence of s
stapdalone selling prce. In cases where the Groaup s unable 19 determane the standalons selling price, the Group uses
the expected cost plus margin approach i estimating the standalone selling price. For software development and
related services, the perfonmance obligations are satisfied as and when the semvices are rendered since the austomer
generally obtans control of the work as it progresses,
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Revenue from lcenses where te customer obilains a “right to use” the licenses 15 recopmizad at te tone the licemss s
made avalable 10 1the customer. Revenne from hicenses wihere e customer obtazis a “right fo access™ is recogiized
over the access penisl Astangemsents to deliver software products generally have three elements: license.
unplémentation and Amnal Teclmical Services (ATS). The Group has applied the principles umder IFRS 15 to
account for revemees from fese performance obligations. When implenventation services are provided in conjunction
with the licensing amangement and the license and implementation have been identified as two separate perfonmance
obligations, the transaction price for such contraces are allocated to each performance obligation of fe contract based
on their retative standalone selling prices. In the absence of stumlalone selling price for mglensewtanon, e
perforiance obligation is estmmated using the expected cost phis mangin approach.  Where the leeuse is reqitired o
be substantially custemized as part of e implementation service the enfire arangement fee for licemse and
inglementation is considered 1o be a sngle performance obligation and the revenue is recognized using e
percentage-of-complenon wetlod as e lmplementation is perfonmed. Revenne from chiear mabng, support and
otlser services ansing due 1o the sale of software products 15 recogmized as the performance obliganons are sansfied.
ATS revenng is récoguided ratably over the permod m which the services are rendered.

The Group accounts for volune discoamnts and prcng inceniives o customers as o reduction of revem based on the
ratable allocation of the disconnts’ moentives to each of the underlying perfonmance obligation that comesponds to
the progress by the customer fowards eaming the discount’ incentive. Also, when the level of discoumt vanies wath
mreases i levels of revenne tmnsactions. the Group recognizes the hability based on its estimate of the customer's
furure purchases. If it is probable thar the criteria for the discount will ot be met. or if the amount thereef cannog be
estinated reliably. then discount is not recognized until the payment is probable and the amoumnt can be estimated
reliably. The Group recognizes changes in the estimated amount of obligations for discounts in the period in which
thie cliee occurs.

Deeferred contract costs are incremental costs of obiaining a contract which are recognised as assets and amortized
over the tenm of 1he coamact,

Conract modificarions are accounted for when additions. delesions or changes are approved edtler 10 the conwact
scope of contract price. The accounting for modifications of contracts mvolves asessimg whether the services added
b0 an ¢xbsting contract are distnet aind whather the prcnyg 15 at the stamlalone selling price. Semvices addad that are
not distinct are accounted for on & cunmlative catch up basis. while those that are distinet are accounted for
prospectively. either as & separate contract. if the additional services are priced at the stadalone selling price. or as a
temmimation of the existing contract and creation of o new contmet if wot priced at fhe standalone selling price.

The Group presents revermes net of indirect taxes in its statement of comprehensive iBoome.
Revemnes for Oscal 20019, 20018 and 20017 are as follows:

{Dhodlass m nllices)

Wear embed March 3.
EArscunTy HITT) 1018 2007
Revene from soffware services 11,184 10,371 9 6050
Revenue from procuces and platforms 614 568 139
11,799 10,938 10,208
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Disaggregale revenne information

The table below presents disaggregated revemses from contracts with customers by geogmphy. offenings and
confract-tvpe for éach of our business segments. The Group believes this disaggregation best depicts how the nature,
anoun, timing and wneertainty of revenues and cash flows are affected by indusiry. market and other economic

factors.
Worar emeded March 31, J01% Doty s mmlhoms i
Energy.
Finsaal Utidides, Life
Servicrn  Relwil  Cemmunicasen TSIt Seismery  Oihers
Particulary il a1 i s Sqmvicr Alannt ing Wi Tech il i Tutal
Revemuer by Geography
Nenh Amerea TG 1,255 THE BIE 619 545 438 (11 T.141
Europs & S4E 7 =T a0 ] =57 BN 847
Endhi 172 3 g - 1z 20 1 TS m
Biest ol the world 113 120 413 15 13 ] 1€ 18 1509
Toeul EFH s 1444 1,865 il L LE] Tl 3T ihes
Revemur by offetiag
whriives
Dhgtal 1874 &k 45 47 nr 285 155 4 A
Core p R ) a1 (R il 484 bl F1r ] 148
Suhestal 3,389 1,588 1462 1,453 [NEH 560 =] 309 11,084
Products anid plarforms
Dhigitsl 104 43 a5 10 0 12 .. | -] po L0
Care i 1 I pu 11 1 1% H i
Subbstal 463 =0 Pl 30 31 [E] 45 ] [1%]
Total LTTE 1038 1438 | 4R 1163 LN 3 2T N
Drbginal N E] 671 LT a7 T w7 1854 a lasd
Core i 5l #1 1,046 fis 545 L] I &4
Revemur by confraci
pr
Fined Price 168 122 S0l a1 04 450 a7 - [
Time & Materials 18 ki b2} 622 157 442 04 168 £ 800
Tatal LT 1935 1448 1853 L16% 252 T3 BT

tip Fimancial Services inelide ﬂJrcrj.?n'.w.r i Financicl $entoes and Inurance

& Retail inclivdes entergrises i Retadl, Consumer Packaged Goods and Logistics

#r Commmnication includes eoherprises in Conmnmication, Felecom OEM and Media
i Life Sciences Includes erterprises fn Life sclences and Health core
A Chthers inclnde operating segmaents of bustnesses in fndin, Japan, China, Infasvs Public Services & other

Priblic Service enterprises

Digital Services

Dagital Services comprise of service and solution offerings of the Group thai enable our clients fo transfomm their
businesses. These mclude offerings that enhance costomer experience. leverage Al-based analytics and big data.
engineer digital products and IoT, modemize legacy techmology systems. migrate to clowd applications amd
ungement advasced cyber securiny systems,

Core Services

Coge Services comprise waditional offermgs of the Group thar have scaled and industrialized over a number of years.
These primanly mclude application nenagement services, proprietary application developusent services, independent
vilubalion salufions, product engpingering sxd management. msinshine naanagensent services, waditional euferprise
application ingplementation, support and BHegraton Services.
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Prodwcts & platforms

The Group also derives revenees fooan the sale of products and platfonms nechiding Finacle - core banking solutioa.
Edge Suite of products. Infosys Nia - Artificial Intelligence (AT} platform which applies nexf-generation AT aid
machine learming and Infosys McCamish- msnrance platfonn

Trade Recelvables and Contract Balances

The Grouwp classifies the might to comsidermeon i exchange for deliverables as either a receivable or as unbilled
TeVene.

A receivable 15 a fight to comssderation that is wxcodinonal upon passage of tmse. Revemse for time and owmtenal
contracts e recogised as related service are perfonned. Revenue for fixed price mamlenance conbracts is
recogmized on a straight line basis over the period of the conmact, Revennes m excess of billings s recorded as
unbilled revenue and 15 classified as o financial psset for these cases as nght o consaderation 1s unconditonal upon

passage of time .

Revenue recognition for fixed price development contracts is based on percentage of completion method. Inveicmg
to the chents s based on milestones as definved in e Contradt. This would result in the ming of revenne recogmition
being different from the mming of billing the costomers. Unbilled reverme for fived price development contraces
(confract assets) is classified as pon-financial asset as the contractual nght to consideration 15 dependent on
comipletion of contraciial milestones.

Invoicing in excess of earmings ae classified as umeamed reveme,

Trale receivalle ad unbillesd sevenies are presented net of mnpaiment in the consolidated stataments of francial
posine.

Duiring fiscal 2009 , the company recognized revenne of 5319 mllion ssmg from openmg uieamed revenue as of
Aprl 1. 2018,

As of March 31, 2009, umbilled revenue for fixed price development contracts amounited to 3474 million.

Chat of the unbilledd revenues pertunimg to fixed pnce development contracts amousting 1o 5431 million as a1 Apnl
01, 2018 $383 million has been reclassified to made receivables upon billing to customers on completion of
milestone during fiscal 2019,

Performance abligaiions and remalning performance obligations

The rensaiming perfonnance obligation dischosure provides the aggregate amount of the ransaction price ver 1o be
recogmzed as of 1he end of the repoming period and an explasation as to when e Group expects 10 recognize these
MBOWHS 10 revenue, Applving the pracrical expedient as given m IFRS 15, e Growp has not disclosed the repssining
performnance obligation related disclostnes for contracts where the reventie recogazed comesponds directly with the
vilug to the custoaner of the entiny's perfomce completed 1o date, pypcally those contmets where imvaicing 15 on
tane aowd natenial basis, Remmnng performance obhigation estmnates are subject 10 cluaee and are affected by
several factors, including temminations. changes in the scope of contmacts. pertodic revalidations. adjustuwent for
revenee feat has not matenialized and adpestnsents for cumency,

The aggregate value of performance obligations that are completely or partially nnsatisfied as of March 31, 2019,
ofleer than those meeting the exclusion criterta menticned above, is § 7414 million. Out of this. the Group expects o
recogmize revemee of apound $0%% within the next one vear and the remaining thereafter. This mclodes contracts that
can be rennapated for comvenience without a substantive penalry since, based on aETent assessnwent. the occurmence
of the same is expected 10 be remote.

The unpact on accout of applving e erstwlule TAS 18 - Revewse instead of IFRS 15- Revenue from comtract witly
cistomers odn the fisasceals tesuilts of the Group for the vear ended and as an Mageh 31, 2019 i insagnificant. On
aceowyt of adoption of IFRS 15, unbilled revenues of 3474 mallion as of March 31, 2019 has been conssderad as
non-fisancial asset,
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111 Expenses by nature
{Diodlags m il liows b
Wear ended March 11,

201% 18 7
Emplovee benefit costs 6,468 6,034 5.612
Depreciation s amonizanoen charges (Befer 1o Mote 2.7 and 2.8) 87 289 15
Travelling costs R e 310 333
Cost of technical sub-contractors. el ] 571
Cost of software packages for own use 133 138 s
Third party atems bonght for service dehivery 1o chients 231 152 120
Operaning lease pavinents (Refer o Nowe 2.15) 83 82 73
Consultancy and professional clargzes 189 162 114
Commumnication costs &7 Th &2
Repairs and maimtenance 188 174 191
Rates and Taxes 2F 25 ..
Provision for post-sales client supgom — 2 12
Power and fuel 32 32 34
Comnussion o non-whele e direstors 1 | :
Branding siwl marketing expenses 69 47 5]
Inapairnent loss recognized | reversed) under expected credit loss
T 35 11 21
Insurance chasges e 4 3
Contribuion towards Corporate Social Responsibiliny 3% et | 3
Others 37 1 36
Total cost of sabes, selling and marketing expenses and
administrative expenses 9.103 8,280 7,688
Orperating profit

Operating profit for the Group is comgured considenng the revenues, net of cost of sales. selling and markenng
expenses and administrative expenses.

11T Employes benefits
Accounting policy
Corafuity

The Group provides for gratuty. 2 defined benelit retirenvent plan ('the Gratwity Plan”) covenng ehgible emplovees
of Infosvs and s Tnshian subsedinnies. The Granuty Plan provides a lunp-smn pavment to vested employvees at
retirement, dently, meapacaton oF termunation of englovinent, of an anomy based on e respective engloves's
salary aud the temnre of emplosyment wirh the Groap.

Liabilities with regard to the Grnnty Plan aré determined by actuanal valuation. performed by an independent
acmary, at eacls balance sheet date using the projected umir credit method. The Company fully comributes all
ascertained Hiabilities to the Infosys Limited Emplovees’ Gramity Fund Tmst {the Trust). In case of Infosys BFM and
EdgeVerve. contmbutions are made fo the Infosys BPM Employees' Grataty Fund Trust and EdgeVerve Systems
Lunated Employess’ Granury Fund Toust, respecuvely. Trustees adminster conmbutions made 1o the Trests aod
contributions are investad i a scheme with Life Inswrance Corporation of India as permined by Indion Lo
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The Growp recognizes e net obligation of o defined benefit plan i its balance sheet a5 nn assel o habality, Gains
andl fosses through re-measswements of the net defined benefin lability | asset are recogmized m other comprehensive
mcome and 1ot reclassified to profit o loss m subsequent period. The actual retum of the portfolio of plan assets. i
excess of the vields computed by apphang the discount rate used to measuge the defined benefit olbligation is
recogiized in other comprelensive income. The effect of any plan amendments are recognized in net profits i e
statenvent of comprelensive inconse.

Provident fund

Eligible employees of Infosys receive benefits from a providens fiusd, which is a defived benefit plan. Both the
eliptde emploves axd the conypany mnke mombly contnlamons to the providen fund plan equal to a specified
percentage of e coversd amployess salary. The company contnlbates a portion of e contbutions 1o the Infosys
Liamured Erployees’ Provident Fund Trust. The must invests in specific designated mstnunents o pentted by Indian
lInw. The remainimg portion is contmibuted 1o the govermment scdunnistered pension fimd. The rate at wiich the anuual
mterest is payable 1o the beneficianies by the must is being administered by the govemment. The company has an
oblizntion 10 ke good the sloatfall, if sy, between e retam froos the nvestwents of the Tost and e notfied
interest mte.

In respect of Indian subsidiames, eligible employees receive benefits from a provident fund, which is a defived
contribution plan. Both the eligible emploves and the respective companies make monthly contribations to this
provident find plan equal to a specified percentage of the covered emplovee’s salary. Amounts collected wnder the
provident fiund plan are deposited in a govenmment administersd provident find. The companies have no funther
obligatkon 1o the plas bevond thear momhly conmburions.

Superannuation

Ceramn empovees of Infosys. [nfosys BPM and EdgeVerve are pamticipans i o defived contribution plan. The
Grotp bas po further obligations o the Plan beyend its mombly conmibations whicly are pertodically contribured 1o a
trust i, the corpas of which i3 mvested wiili the Life Insurmnce Corporation of Indsa,

Compensated absenoes

The Growg has & policy on compensated absences which are both acowmulating and non-sccmmulating in natre. The
expedted cost of accummlating compensated alsences s determauned by actuanal valuation performied by an
isdependent acnaary at each balance sheet date using projected unit credit method on the additional amount expected
to be paid‘availed as a pesult of the wmnsed entitlement that has scommulated af the balance sheet date. Expense on
pol=accimnulating conipensated absences is recognized in the perod in which the absences ocenr,
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1121 Cratuity

The following tables set our the funded stams of the granury plans and e anwants recognized in the Group’s
financial statements as of March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018:

{Dhollags m nallices)
As ol
March 31, 2019 Mareh 31, 2018

Change in bene it obligations

Bepelit obliganons o1 the bemnning 134 172
Service oost 23 23
Inferest expense Iz 11
Remeasurenwents - Achuanal losses [/ {gainsh 5 (k)]
Transter - 4
Bepefits paid (1%} {17
Translarion differences {11} —
Benefit obligations at the el 195 154
Change in plan asscis

Fair value of plan assets at the begimning 187 184
Inferest Incomns 13 12
Reppeasimemens — Renomns on plas assets excheding ansounts mehided in

HATETeST Hicane 1 A
Conmbanions 25 5
Benefits paid (18] {1
Translation differences i1y 1
Fair valwe of plan assets ai the end 197 157
Fuaded status 2 3
Prepasd grafuty benehit 6 7
Acciued graminy (4} [EX]

MNeq gramary cost for fiscal 2009, 20015 and 2017 comprises the followirg components;

{Diodlars o mallioms
Vear ended March 10,

2019 2018 7
Servioe ool i 23 L
Wet interest on the net defined bewefit liabality ¢ asset {1} i (2}
Nt gratuity cost 22 12 17

Ansoarnt for fiscal 2019, 2018 and 2017 recognized i statement of other comprebensive incomne:

{Diolllawrs n musllioes
Vear enided Yareh 10,

0y 018 097
Re-measurements of the nel defined benet Hability © asset
Acmarial {zains) / losses ] 9 1
{Reetur)  loss on plan assets excludimg amounts incloded in the
ned nterest o e nel defined bepefit labality [ asser {13 2% (2%
Total 4 [LLN] 8
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{Diodlags m mellioes )

Vear conded March 10,
012 2018 2007
(Gain} / loss froan change m demographic assumgfions — —_ —
{Gain / loss from change m fimancial assunaptions 4 {67 8
(Gain) / loss from chanege m expenence adpsnents 1 3] 2
5 (93 i

The graniaty ¢ost recogmuzed m e statenent of conprehensive ingome apportioned between cost of sales, sellmg
agel marketing expenses and admpnstmanve expenses on e basis of doect emplovee cost 15 a5 follows:

{Dhodlags mn millices)

Viear eanled March 310,
2013 EIIT 2007
Cost of sales 20 20 15
Sellaing and foarketiig expeises I 1 l
Administrative expenses 1 1 1
2) 22 17

The weighted-avernge msunpeions wed to detenmne bepefit obligations as of March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018
ane set ont below:;

As of
March M. 2019 March 2. 21§
Discount rate T.1% T8
Weighted average rate of incrense in compensation levels 5.0 8.0%
Wisighted average duration of difined benefit obliganion 5.9 Veirs 6.1 vears

The weighted-average assunypiicis wssd o determinge net periodsc besefit cost for fiscal 2009, 2008 and 2017 are set
out bebow:

Year emded March 31,
FUES E Pl
Drasconiit pate fog tlie veas 7.5% 6.9% 78%
Weighted average rate of increase in compensation levels 5.0% B.0% B0
Dhscoums? rate In Imifia, the marker for kigh quality corporate bonds being not developed, the yield of

government bonds is considered as the discount rare. The tenure has been considered

kg o account e past long-tero trend of emplovees” avernge remmning service lifie

whiscl reflects e average estimated term of the post. employment benefit oblizations.
Weighted average rate  The avenge e of increase in compensation levels s detenmined by the Comgany,

of increase in consiclering factors such as, the Company's past compeosaton revision tresds asd
compensation levels managenkent’s estumate of fvhure salary nicreases
Antrition rate Anriton eale eoissdered 15 the managzensent’s estinate based on the past long-term wend

of emploves Ramover in the Company.

Assumptions regarding famwe mortality expenience are sef in accondance with the published stanstics by fhe Life
Insurance Corparation of India

Gratuity is applicable majorly to employees drawing a salary i Indian mupees and there are no ofher significant
foreign defined benefit gratuity plans,
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The company contributes all ascertanred habalines towasds gramury 1o e Infosys Enplovees’ Gransity Fund Trusy.
In case of Infesys BPM and EdgeVerve. conmbutions ane imade to the Infosys BPM Employees’ Gramity Fund Trust
ane EdgeVerve Systems Linned Gramaity Funwd Trust, respectively. Trustees admiauster contributions made ro the
tusts, As of March 31, 2008 and March 31, 2017, the plan assets have been priamanly invested in msurer masged
funis.

Actual pelum on assets for fiscal 2009, 2008 and 2017 was 514 naillion, 514 mallsen and $14 malhon, respactively,

Semsitivity of significant assumptions wsed for valuation of defined benefit obligation:

(Dollars i pilbons)
Linpact froms sie pereeniage polsl increase | dit rease in Ax ar Mareh 31, 2019
Dasconmt rate o
Weighred average rate of increase 10 compensation levels 3

Semsatvaty for significant acmagial asumpions 15 compured by virying onge actuann] assumption wsed for the
valuation of the defined benefit obligation by one percentage. keepmg all other acmarnial assunypions constant, In
practice, his is ot probable, and changes i some of the assunipiions sy be correlated

The Grougs excpects to contribube 23 million to the gramity tasts during fiscal 2020,
Manurity profile of defived benefit obligation:

1 | Dolkars oy pulbions)
Witliigi 1 vear 29
1-2year 30
2 -3 year 3l
5 -4 year 32
4 -5 year 4
3 = 10 veass 168

2122 Superanuuation

The Group contribated 531 millioa. 527 million and 523 million to the supernauuation plan duning fiscal 2019, 2008
and 2007, respectively.

Supermunation contribations have been apportioned between cost of sales, selling and muketmg expenses and
adaistrative expenses on the basis of direct employes cost as follows:

{Dodlas mn meillioes )

Year ended March M,
101% 1018 2017
Cost of sales 28 24 2
Selling and marketing expenses - F | 2
Adinnitrtive expenses | 1 |
3l 17 5

2123 Provident fund

Infosys has an obligation to fund any shortfall on the yvield of the trust’s investments over the admimistered interest
rates on an anmeal basis, These admimistered rates ore deternuned anmeally predominantly considenng the social
rather than economic factors and in meost cases the achial retum eamed by the company has been higher m the past
years, The actuary has provided a valuation for provident fund lisbilites on the basis of guidance issued by Actuanial
Society of India and based on the below provided assumiptions there s no shortfall as at March 31, 2019 and March
31, 20018, respectively.
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The details of the benefit olliganion 1s given below.

(Dl i yenllSous i

Anal
Alarch 31, 2009 March 31 20018
Benefit obligation at the peniod end Bih 792

Nl labdlity recognized in Balance Sleet —_ =

The plan astets have been prmanly imvested m govenument sequmties,

Assunptions used i derermining tee present value obligation of the inrerest mre guaraiee wider the Detenministic
Approach:

As ol
Adsrels 31, 20019 March X1, 2018
Governosent of Indi (GOT) bowd vield T.1% T.5%
Femaining temm o manity of pomfolio 547 years 5.9 years
Expected guaranteed mierest rate
First year B.65% BA55%
Tleereafter 3.60% 8.55%

The Group contmbwied 578 millioa. 575 mallion amd 369 millicn to the providen fund duning fiscal 2019, 2018 and
2007, respractively,

Provident fand conmibutions have been apportioned between cost of sales, selling and marketing expenses and
dcliningstrative expeises on the bisis of divect employes cost as follows:

{IDodlans m ol hows

Wear ended March 3.
e HE 2T
Cost of sales 69 67 Gl
Sellang and marketng expenses i 5 5
Adurinistrative expenses 3 3 3
78 78 L]

1114 Emploves benefit cosls include:

{Daodlags mn nullioos

Yenr ended March 11,
201% 2018 207
Salanes and boous 0 6,338 5410 5.501
Dhefimed contribation plans 4 40 37
Defined benefit plans 86 g4 74
6,468 6,034 5612

U Iuelvdes srock compensanion expense of 529 mifllton, 813 prilifon and 317 millton for fiscal 2019, 2018 and
20017 respecrively. (Refer ro Nore 2,18

The gramuiry and provident plans are applicable enly to enaployees drawing a salary in Indian rupees and there are no
oflser significant foreign defined benefit plans.
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The employes benefit cost is recognized in e following line itevs i the consolidated statement of comprehensive
o

{Daodlags mn nullioes
Year ended March 11,
201% 2018 2007
Coan of sales 5. TRD 5379 4,987
Selling and marketing expenses 52 415 403
Aclorinistriive expenses 226 230 220
6468 G054 2612
113 Equity
Accounting policy
Ordinary Shares

Ordaary shares are ¢lassified aa equiry. Increnwutal costs divectly atmbunalile 1o the isamiee of new ordinary
shiares, shiare optacas and buvback are recoznized as a deduction frons equity, wer of awy fax effects,

Treasury Shares

When any entity within the Group purchases the company's ordinary shares. the consuderanion paid inclnding any
darecily armiburable incremental cost is presented as a deduction from toral eqpary. wanl they are cancelled, sold or
retssued, When treasury shages age sobl or rerssved subsequently, the st recerved 15 recogmizad a5 an nKrsEe m
epuary, and the resulting surphis or deficir oo s wansaction i massferved 1o from share premivag

Share flpllﬂl winel slure prﬂfﬂlllﬂ

The amoumt received in excess of the par value has been classified as share premiume Additionally. share-based
compensation recommized in the consclidated statement of comprebensive income is credited to share premnnn
Amsoarnits have been urilized for bons issue and share buyvback frons sliare premwium account.

The Company has oaly one class of shares referred o as equiry shages havisg a par value of £5/-, The Company las
allotted 2,184, 191.4%0 fully paid up equity shares (inchsling treasury shaves of 10,486,661} of face value B85/ each
g the tree nsonutls ended Sepramber 30, 2018 pursuant 10 a bowis. issue approved by the shareholfers througly
postal ballor, Record date fixed by the Board of Directors was September 5, 2015, The bonus shares were issued by
capitalization of profits ransferred from general reserve. Boans share of one equiry share for every equiry share Teld.
aaid o bomss isne. viz. o stock dividend of one Amencon Depositary Share (ADS) for every ADS held, respectively.
has been allomesd Consequently, e rato of aqury slares umderlyvirg the ADSs lebd by an Americnn Depositary
Receipt holder rematus unclangsd. Oprions granted under the sock option plan have been adjusted for boans shuares.

The compayy alioated 1,148.472,332 fully pad-up shares (nor adjusted for Sepramber 2008 bonus issue) of face
value T5- ench durmg the three months ended June 20, 2015 pursmant 0 bonns issue approved by the sharcholders
through postal balkot. For both the bonus issues. bonus share of one equity share for every equity share held, and a
stock dividend of one Anwrnican Depositary Share (ADS) for every ADS held. respectively. has been allotied.
Consequently, the o of squry slares nndedying the ADSs bebd by an Amencan Deposatary Receipt bolder
remains machangzed,

20,324,982 and 10801 956 shares (not adjusted for September 20 18 bomis 1ssue) were held by controlled must, as of
March 31, 200% and March 31, 2018, respectively.

Retained earnings

Retamed earmings represent the amount of sccumualated samings of the Growp
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Other Reservies

The Special Economic Zone Re-mvestiment reserve has been created owt of the profit of the eligible SEZ unit in
temns of the provisions of Sec 10AA (Wi} of Inceme Tax Act, 1961, The reserve should be unilized by due
Company for acquaning vew plant and machinery for the parposs of its business i terms of the provisions of the Sec
10AA (2} of the Income Tax Act, 1961,

Capifal Redempiion Reserve

In accordance with section 69 of the Idian Companies Act. 2003, the Company creates capital redemphion reserve
eipual 10 the nominal value of te shares bought back as an appropration from geneml reserve,

Other components of equity

Onbser components of equiry consist of curency ranskacion, re-imeasurenient of met defined benefir labaliny asser, fair
value changes of equity msinunems fair valued through siher compreliznsive income, changes on fuir valuation of
VesTIIens, et oF Tanes.

Capital Allocation Folicy

In line with the capatal allocation policy ammounced in April 2018, the Board. m its meeting held on Jamsary 11,
2019, approved the following:

() A special dividend of *4/= per equity share (approximately S0.06 per share):

() Buyback of Equity Shases from the open market rowte through Indian stock exchanges of up 1o T8.260 crore
(Maximum Buyback Size) af a price pot exceeding T5000- per share (MMaxioum Buyback Price) subject to
shareholders’ approval by way of Postal Ballot,

Adfter the execution of the above, along with the special dividend of 23/- per share (approxumately $0.08 per share)
already paid in June 2018, the Compawy would complede the distribution of 213,000 crore. which was announced as
past of s capinal allocation pelscy i Apnl 2018,

The shareholders approved the proposal of buyback of Equity Shares recommended by its Board of Darectors m its
mieeting eld on Janmary 11, 2019 throngh the postal ballot that concluded on Manch 12, 2019, At the Maximam
buvlack price of TROM- per shane awd the Maximmm bovlisck size of 18,260 crore, the mdicative maximum manber
of Equity shares bought back would be 1032500000 Equity Shares (Maxinnm buyvback shares) comprising
approxinately 2.36% of the paid-up equaty share capital of the Company as of Mach 12, 2009 (the date of
conclasion of postal ballot for approval for buyback).

The tuyback was offered ro all eligable equry slarehobders of de Conpany (oiher den the Pronsoters, the Prousoder
Group and Persons i Coatrol of the Company) under the open marker route fwough the stock exchange. The
Compamy wall fad e bovback from ns free reserves os defined under Companaes At 2013, The buyback of equiry
shares through the stock exchange conunenced on March 20, 201% and is expected to be completed by September
201%. During fiscal 2009, 12652000 equity shares were purchased fromn the stock exchange which inclhodes
1L.818.000 shares which have been purchased bat not extinguished as of hMarch 31, 2019 and 3.656.000 shares which
have been purcleased but have not been senled and teerefore nor extingnished as of March 31, 2009, In accordance
with section 69 of the Companies Act. 2013, dunng fiscal 2009 | the Company has created “Capital Redemption
Reserve’ of $1 million equal to the nominal value of the shares bought back as an appropration from general
reserve,

Subsequent to March 31, 2009 the Company has bought back 57,600,000 equity shares from the Indian stock
exchanges.

The Board. at s meeting ou August 19, 2017, approved a proposal for the Company to buyback its fully pasd-up
equity shares of face value of B5/ each from the eligible equity shaseholders of the Company for a anseunt ot
exceeding R13.000 crore (52 billion). The sharebolders approved the said proposal of buyback of Equity Shares
tgough e postal ballot thar concleded on October 7, 2007, The Buyback offer coinpimsed 4 pugelmse of
113,043,478 equry Sliares agegregating 4.92% of the paid-up equity share capital of the Company af a prce of
®1.150 per equity share. The buyback was offered to all eligible equity shareholders (inchsling those who became
equity shareholders as on the Record date by cancelling American Depository Shares and withdrawing yimderlying
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eqpuary shares) of 1the Coanpany as on the Record Date (1. Noveimber 1, 2017) o a propostonate basis taough e
“Tender offer” route. The Company conchuded the byback procedures on December 27, 2007 and 113,043,478
équaty shares were extimguished. The company has wnlized ats secunties premaim and general meserve for the
buylack of ats shages, In acconlance with section 69 of the Iudinn Compames Act, 200 3, the compay bas created
‘Capital Redemption Reserve’ of 39 million equal to the nominal value of the shares bought back as an appropriation
from: gemeral reserve for fiscal 2018,

The Comgpany’s objectve when managnyg capital i 1o safeguard its ability to conninue as 2 goasg concer apd b
mamtain an ophmal capatal simchire so as to maxinnze sharelolder vahve, In order to mantain or achieve an optimal
capitl structure, the Company sy adjust the amonnt of dividend pavisent. retum capatal to sharehobders, 1ssue new
shares of buy back psiied shages. As of March 31, 2009, the Conypany las only onbe class of equinty shares and lss 5o
debi. Consequent to the above capital stmcire there are o externally imposed capital requirements

Boams e

The Company has allomed 2,154,191 490 fully pasd up equity shares (inchuding measury shages of 10.486.661) of
face value B35 each dunng the three montls ended September 30, 2018 pursuant to a bonus issue approved by the
shareholders through postal ballot. Record date fixed by the Board of Directors was September 5, 2018, The bonus
shares wege issued by capitalization of profits mansferred from general reserve. Bonus share of one equity share for
every equity share held. and a bowss issue. viz.. a stock dividend of one American Depositary Share (ADS) for every
ADS held, respectively, has been alloned. Consequently. the rato of equity slares wsderbying the ADSs held by an
Amserscan Depositary Recetpt bolder reiising umelmiged. Options granted under the sock option plan have been
adljusted for boms shares,

The bonns shares alloned rnks pan passu i all respects and camy the same nghts as the existing equary shareholders
agid are entitked 1o panacipate in fid, in sy dividend and othes corparate actiea, recommniended and declared after the
new edquity’ shares are alloted.

The nights of equary shareboldess are ser om below.
2151 Votlng

Each bolder of equity shares 15 entiled 1o one vate per shige, The equaty shares representedd by American Depasitary
Shares (ADS) camry sinlar nights to voting and dividends as the otfler equify shares, Each ADS represenis one
underlving equity share.

1137 Dividends
Accounting policy

Final dividends on shares are recorded as a liability on the date of approval by the shareholders and interim dividends
are pecorded as a laabilaty on the date of declamtion by the conipany’s Board of Directors.

The Company declares and pays dividends 1o Indian mapees. The remunance of dividends oanside Dixlia 35 governed
by Indiam law om foreign exchange and is subject to applicable distnbation taxes. Dhividend distnbution tacx paid by
subsidianes may be reduced / availabde as credit against dividend distnbateon tax pavable by Infosys Lumited.

Effective from Financial Year 20018, the Company's policy is to payout up o 7% of the free cash flow of the
comesponding Financial Year m such manner (including by way of dividend and / or share buyback) as may be
decided by the Board froq e 1o tnse, subject to apphcable laws and requisate approvals, if any. Free cash flow 1s
defined as net cash provided by operanng activities less capital expendinme as per e consolidated statensent of cash
flows prepared wsder IFRS. Dividend payour inchudes dividend distribation tax.
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The followmg e provades detmls of per share dividend recogmzed during fiscal 2019, 2018 and 201 7:

Fincal 200% Fiacnl 218 Fiscal 2007
Dividend per Equity Share (%)
Inferim dividend™ 700 6,50 5.50
Final daviclegich 1025 T.38 713
Special dividend™ G — —
Dividend per Equity Share ADS (%) 853
Interim dividend 010 0.10 LLELY
Final davicesttr 016 LN oll
Special dividend 014 — -

1 Convered ad the pronthh exelange rane in the month of declararion of dividend.

f .{r.f;'mmfj-hr Srp:nurbnr 2005 barny share fsnne, wierever -'rﬁn'r'rn”r.

M Represents interine dividend for the respective fiseal vear

W Represents final dividend for the preceding fiseal vear

B0 Repwesents special dividend of B5- per share japproximearely 3008 per share) declared in fiseal 2008 and
apectal dividend of e per equity share fapproriunatel 30,06 per share) declared i fivcal 2009,

Dumng fiscal 200%. on account of the final dividend for fiscal 2015, special dividend declared in fiscal 2018 and
fiscal 2009 and interim dividend for fiscal 2019, the Company has mowred a pet cash outflow of $1.956 millien.
{exchuding divadend paid on treasury shares) inclusive of corporate dividend tax.

The Board of Divectors in their meeting o April 12, 2009 recommended a final dividend of £10.50/- per equity share
{approsamately $0.15 per equity share) for fiscal 2009, This payasent is subject 10 the approval of shasebolders i the
ensntigg Annnal Geperal Meenng of the Comgany, to be held on Jupe 22, 2009 and o approved would result i o et
cash outflow of approximately S780 milliwn. (excluding dividend paid on treasury shages) including dividend
distribution fax. The final dividend of " 10500 per equity share (approxmmately $0.15 per equity share) and the
resudtant expected casly owtflow 15 based oo the outstandmg maaber of slares after considening shares bought back by
the Company till the book closure dote e June 15, 2009

2133 Liguidation

I the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of shares shall be entitled 10 receive auy of the remaimmg
aasets of the company. after dismbuation of all preferential amounts. However. no such preferential amoumts exist
cummently. other than the amounts held by imevocable controlled trusts. The amount distnbuted will be in proportion
to Elve mamber of equity shares held by the sharchobders. For immevocable controlled tmusts, the corpus would be settled
i favor of the beneficiaries.

1,154 Share options

There are o voring, dividend or liqusdation rights to the holders of options isswed under e company’s slare option
plans,

.14 Oiler income, nel
Accounting palicy

Other income 15 comprised prapanly of interest weonee, dvidend wconse, gainless on iovesnpents and exclage
gaanloss on forwasd apd oprions conmacrs and on wanslaion of oter assets and labilies. Interess income is
recogzed using the effective mierest method. Dividend mrcome 15 recogmized when the mght o recgive pavisent is
etablished,
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Effective April 1. 2013, the Group has adopted IFRS mterpretatson IFRIC 22- Foreign Cumrency Tramsactions aud
Advance Consideration which clanfies the dare of wansaction for the purpose of determining the excliange e 1o e
on imitial recognition of fhe related asset. expense or income when an entity bas received or paid advance
consideration i a foreign cummency, The effect on account of adoption of this amendinent was msignificant.

Functional currency and presentation currency

The funcrsenal currency of Infosys, Infosys BPA. Edgeverve, Skava and controlled wmses 15 the Indian nupee. The
fimctional ensrencies for foreign subsidianes are their respective local currencies. These fhaancial stateiments are
presented i US. dollars (rounsded off to the neasest million) 1o facilitate the mvestors” abiliny to evaheate Infosys’
performance and financial postiion by comparison o similar conypanies domiciled in other geographic locations,

Transactions ard transiarions

Foreign-currency denomdinated nonetasy assets and liabilines ase mansloed into the relevant functional currency at
excliange rates in effect at e balance sheet date, The gains or losses resulting from swcls ranskations age nchsded
the net profit in the soement of comprebensive imompe. Non-monetary assets and pon-monetary liabalities
denoumnated m a foreign currency and measnned at fair valie are translated at the exchange rave prevalent at the dare
when the Bur vahe wis deternuned. Nog-monetay assets and nog-monetary labilines denomuated 1 2 foreign
cilsreiey il merired at histopcal cost afe translated ot the exchange sate prevalem at the date of traiss Hom.

Trmsachion gains or kesses realized wpon senbensent of foregn cumrency rnsactions are included 1o detennining net
profit for the period m which the wamacton s senled. Revenue, expense and cash-flow rems denominated i
foreign cumrencies are translated info the relevant funsctional currencies using the exchange rate in effect on the date
of the mnsaction.

The iranslation of financial statements of the entines of the group from functional cumrency to the presentanon
cumrency is performed for assets and liabilines using the exclange rate in effect at the balance sheet date and for
revene, expense and cash-flow items using the average exchange rate for the respective periods, The gains or losses
resuliing fredn snch oanslation are anchuded in currency manslation resarves under other conrponents of equary. Wlen
a subsidiary i disposed of, in full, e relevant amowet is mansferred 1o the net profit in the swaremsent of
comprebensive icome. However, when a change in the parents ownership does not resalt in loss of control of a
stilsadiary, snch claiges are recorded throikeh eqinry.

Goodwill awd fair value sdyustients ansu on the scquision of a foreign entity are treated as assets and labalinies
of the foreign entity and wanslazed a1 the exchange mate in effect ar the balance sheet date.

Cavernment grants

The Group recogmzes povermanent grants only when there is reasonable assurance that the conditions attached to
them shall be complied with. and the grants will be recerved. Govemmsen! gromts related 10 assets are Weated as
defermed icome axd are recognized m the net profit in the statement of comprebensive icome o0 a systematic apd
rational basis over the useful life of the asset. Govenunent grants related fo revenue are recognized on 8 sysiematic
basis in the statement of comprebensive icome over the periods necessary to match them with the related costs
which they are intended o compensate.
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Olser incons: consists of the following:

{Dhodlars m mallioms )
Wear cuded March 3.

201% 018 2007
Interest income on financial assets carmied at amortized cost | 260 352
Interest inconee on financial assets fadr vahwed through other
comprehensive moomne a2 106 28
Davidend income on investsents carried at fir value throngh
profit or loss — | 1
Gaan / {loss) on pivestiwents camied al fur valie theough profit o
loss =4 9 18
Exchange gains / (losses) o forward and options contracts 27 — 89
Exchange gains / (losses) on translation of other assets amd
Tiatndines 18 6 (34}
Onlsers 49 71 22

411 513 450
115 Leases
Accounting policy

Leases under which the group assunses substantally all the risks axl rewards of ownership are classified as finance
leases. When acquired. such assets are capitalized at fair value or present value of the mininnan lease payments at
the meeption of the lease, whichever is lower. Lease paviments wnder operating leases are recognized as an expenss
on o straight he basis in the statement of comprehensive moome over fhe lease term.

The Group bas vinous operating leases. mainly for office bunldimgs. that are renewable on a penodic basis. Rental
expense for opemating leases was 583 malhon, 382 nulleon and 573 mmllson for fiscal 2019, 2018 and 2017,
resprechively,

The schedule of finme minimum rendal payments in respect of none-cancellable operating leases is ser out below:

{ Dol bars x pulivons |

Asaf
Magch 31, 1019 March 11, W18
Within one year of the balance sheet date o0 T
Duie in & peniod berween one vear and five vears ] 213
Dwe after five vears 128 134

A muajoriny of dee groig's operating lease arrangements extend up to a mavinngn of tei vears from teis respactive
dates of inception, amd relate 1o rented prensises. Somwe of these lease agreements conain a price escalation clause.

116 Employess” Stock Option Plans (ESOP)
Accounting policy

The Groug recognizes copemsation expense relating fo share-based payments  pet profit using fair-value
asccordance with IFRS 2, Share-Based Payment. The estimated fair value of awards is charged o imeome on a
strangli-lene basis over the requisite service period for each separately vesting portion of the award as if the award
wikh in=stilstance, mulple awasds with a comésponding acrease 1o slare premau.
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2015 Stock Incentive Compensation Plan (formerly 2011 RSU Plam) (the 2005 Plan): On March 31, 2016,
pirssait to tlee approval by the shaselolders thaough postal ballot, e Board has Been auhonzed o itrodisce, offer,
issuie anwd allot share-lased ascentives o eligible anplovess of the Company and ns subsidianes weder the 2015
Stock Incetive Compensanion Plan (the 2015 Plan). The maxinnmm manber of shares wsder the 2013 plan shall not
exceed 24038 583 equury shares (this imcludes 11,223,576 equiry shares which ase held by the must towards the 2011
Plan o5 ot March 21, 2016} These matruments will generally vest over a period of 4 vears and the Company expects
to graal the instogents wisler the 2005 Plan over the period of 4 1o 7 years, The plan munbers mentioned above
would further be adjusted for the September 2008 bomis 1ssue,

Consequent 1o the Septemsber 2018 boms kave, all ourstandieg ophions granted nader e stock option plan have
been adjusted for bonus shares. Unless otherwise stmed | all 1he prior period share wumbers, share prices and
weighted average exercise prices in this note have been adjusted to give effect 1o the Seprember 2018 bonus soe

Controllad mest holds 20,324,982 axd 10,801,956 shages (not adpested For Septamber. 2018 bonus dssue) as of Marcly
31, 2019 and March 31, 2008, respectively wmder tee 20035 plan, out of which 200,000 and 100,000 {wot adjusted for
September. 2018 bonws issue) equary shares have been earmarked for welfare activities of the employees as o1 March
30, 2009 aal Maxch 31, 2018, respectively

The following is the summary of grants made durme fiscal 2019, 2018 and 201 7 under the 2015 Plan:

Parricubars Fiscal 2019 Flaeal 2018 Fiscal 2017
R517 and ESOQP

Sakil Parekh, CEO aiwd MDY= Refier Note [ bl 260,130 226,048 -
LU.B. Pravin Rao, COO and WTD- Refer Note 2 below GE.250 140,500 =
D Vishal Sikka® — 1,200,498 241400
Otlser KMP** 2GR, 100 631100 1 AST.000
Emplovess otleer than EMP 644230 3345220 G422 080

4340, TiH 5544566 F 161,080

Incentive units- cosl settled

Oher emplovess T4.0%0 100,080 224420
T4, 0} 100,080 24,420
Total grants 4,414,750 5644446 8,385,500

Tnfornration in i table above is adiested for Seprember 2008 bouns issue, wherever applicable,

. Upen Dy, Fishal Sikka's resignation from the roles of the conpanny, the unvested BEUs and ESOPs have been
Soufeited
% Refer note 2,19 for detnils on appainturert aud resignation of KUPs
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Nale:
I, Stock incentives granted to Selll Parckh, CEQ and MDD

Prursuant re the apprenal of the sharcholders through o pestal ballor on Febrary 20, 2008, Salil Parekh (CEQ &
MDY ix eligibie ro receive nnder the 2015 Plan and s per i tevms of ks emplovmenn agreeuein!

ai an el gramt af RSUs af fair value 23,25 crore jappravimarely 3.5 anillion) wihich will vest aver tine fo 3
eqqual amal installments apon complesion af each vear of service frour the respective gromt date

B ar owre-rime grant of RSUS of falr value T0.7F crore (approvimarely 515 wiiflion wlich will vesr aver nwe fn 2
equal ammial installmens upos complesion of each vear of serviee frour the grant dite ard

¢ avivarael gremr af performance based RSUs of fair valve 813 crove tapprrocimarely 82 niiflion) whitch will vesr after
coniphletion aof three vears, snlfecr to achiciement of performiance fargers sef by te Board oF i conmiiitles.

e Board Based ar the recomme dnrd of the Nomination and Rewuneration committes approved on Felrumy
27, 2018, the aronual tove Based grawi for fiscal X008 of 36,512 RSUs fadfusted for Seprember 2018 bovns issuel and
tha ane-fune e based grons af [69. 536 RSUs fadiusted for September 10038 bonns isswel, The graws were made
effective February 17, 2018,

Frrther, the Botrd, based on the recommendations of the Nownnarion and Bewnreration Commiree, granted
2I7.200 indiusied for Seprember 2008 bonns izsie) performence based RSUs to Salil Parelh with an effective dote
of Mav 2, 2008 The granes would vest npon successitl couplenon of theee fill fical vears with the Company and
will be derermuned based on achtovenenr of certain perfovmanee targers for the safd theee-vear perfod.

The Board based an fe reconunendatians af the Nomirarior amd Remureration committee approved on Joimary 1,
2008, the eninnal Hme based grans for fiseal 2009 af 42 930 RSUs. The grant was sade effective Febrnain 1, 20019

Though the annnal tiue based grans for the renaining emplavanes term onding an March 31, 2023 have not been
_g'ﬁrl-.lr.l'q-\‘i1 s q,l",lﬁmﬁr A6 200% stoce the service cominencement ditfe Frrrﬂﬁu the g dare, the ORI b
revarded eogplovment stock compenzation expense in accordance with IFRS 2, Share based payvanerts,

2.t the recommendation of the namination and remunerarion commities, in aceordance with the rerues af the
enplayment agreement, inder the 2015 Plan, the Board approved grant of 65,250 RSUs o U B. Pravin Roo, based
ar s performunrce (n flscal 20018, The granes were made effective Felrnary 1, 2018

The R5L% and stock options would ves! genenally over a peniod of 4 years amd shall be exercisable within the penod
a5 approved by the Committee. The exercise price of the RSUs wall be equal to the par value of the shares and the
exercise price of the stock options would be the market price as on the date of grant.

As at Magch 30, 2009 and March 31, 2018, incentive units owstasding (net of forfeimres) were 177454 and
223,514 (adjusted for Seprember 2015 boows issue). respectively.

Break-up of emplovee stock compensation expense

i Dodlass wm mellices )

Year ended March 20,
2% il nT
Granted 1o:
KMP® 5 23 5
Employees ather than KMP 24 15 12
Tatal 0 13 17
Casls settled stock conmpeusanion expense inchsdsd m the above 1 1 -

i Included @ veversal of srock compensarion coir af 55 anillfon for fiscal 2008, rewards forfeiivre of stock
incentives granted fo D, Fishel Sikke npoo i resignarion
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The carrving value of labiline towagds cash settled share based pavisents was 51 million each respectively as ot

March 31, 201% and March 31, 2018

The activaty in the 20015 Plan {fomerly 2011 RSU Plan) for equaty-settled share based payment tmnsaction dunng

fiscal 2009 is set owt below:

Yoear ended Marels 31, 20019

Shares arising Welghted avernge
ot of opti exerclie price{S)
2015 Plan RS0
Ouistanding at the beginning TA00818 0.04
Giranitexd 4,340,700 005
Exercised 1364510 004
Forfested and expired TOEELD 004
Omitstanding at the end 9181198 0,05
Exercisable ar the end 135256 0.04
1015 Plan-ESOP
Charstanding ar e beginming 1933526 762
Granted — -
Exercised 1IT.350 T35
Fortertad and expired 193,300 743
Oratstanding at the end 1623176 T.d6
Exercisable at the end GOE. 500 746

Bifarination i the abave table is adfnsred for September 2008 boving issue, wherever applicable.

The activiry o the 2015 Pl for equirv-senled share based pasisent mransaction dunng fiscal 2018 s set out below:

Yoear ended Xarch 31, 28

Shares arfidng Welghted average

ol of oplions exerclve price($)
2015 Plan -R5U
Cmitstanding at the begmmning 5921746 0,04
Granted 4561216 004
Exercised 1,296,434 0.0k
Forfeited and expired 1656, 1 LS
Cratstandding at the end TS00,818 0,04
Exercisable ar the end A4 10 0.0
015 Plan-ESOF
Ctstanding at the beginming 2395300 763
Gl 983150 .31
Exercised 104,824 763
Forfeied and expired 1,335,500 742
Oratstanding at the end 1933826 762
Exercisable af the end 3931504 7.63

Inforsnaiton i the above rable i adivsred for Seprember 2008 bows fssue
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Thie activary i the 2015 Plan for squir.

setiled share based paymsent ansaction dunng fiscal 2017 1 et cant below:

Yoear ended Mareh 51, 2007

Shares ariving Weighred average

aud of options enercle price5)
2015 Plan -RSL
Cmitstanding at the begimning 443010 0.6
Granited 5,740,380 004
Fogfened and expired 201,520 004
Exercised 68,124 —
Oratstanding at the end 5915746 0,04
Exercisable an e end — —
2015 Plan-ESOF
Catstanding at the begimning — —
Granted 2A1LT .63
Fostered and expared 165,400 163
Exercised — —
Oaistanding at the end 1398500 768

Exercisable at the end

Difernrarion in the abeve talle iy adinsred for September 2008 bovius issue.

Drang fiscal 200%. 2018 and 2017, the

weighted average share prce of ophions exercised mmder the 20015 Plan on the

clate of exercise was 510,00, 57,74 and $8.05 (adjusted for Seplember 2018 boous psie), respechvely

The following table sunumarizes infonmation abowt equity seftled RSUs and ESOPs outstanding as of March 31,

2009
Opnions outanding

Weighted Welghted
Mo, of shares AVETAgE AVETAgE
arirving out remnaining exrrcise
Ramgre of ¢xerchs prices per share (5) al apii contracimal bife price (%)

2015 Plan: ADS and IES
0 - 0.07 (RS} 9.181.198 1.70 0.0%
6 - B (ESOP} 1.623.176 5 746
10,804,374 2.20 1.16

Infrnraron in the abeve alle by adinsred for September 2008 bovius issue, wherever applicable.

The following mble sumnanzes nfon
2018;

natkon abonr equiry sertled BSUs and ESOPs owstuxling as ar March 31.

Ogitlons outstanding

Weighted Welghted

N, of share AvErage average

ariving oul e ndng EXETCise

Ramge of pxereiue prices e slare (5) af aproms comtractual e price (%)
2015 Plan

0w 0,06 (RSLTH 7500515 1.589 004

6 - & (ES0M 1935826 660 T.62

DA 257 1.59

Infarnwation in the above table s adjnared for Soptemiber 2048 bowns issue,
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The fair value of each equity senbed award 15 esitmated on the date of gram using the Black-Scholes-Mermon model

watli i followiin: assumpplios:

For optisns grawied in
= Fiseal 2015

Equiry Fiweal T0E9-

Particulsrs Shares RS ADS- RSLU

Weeighted average share price (%) / (5~ ADS)® 696 10,77

Exercise price (£)/ (- AD%)* i3l 0.06

Expected volatility (o) 21-2% 21-26

Expected life of the option (vears) 1-4 14

Expected daviclends (%a) 2.65 265

Risk-free inrerest rvte (%s) T-B 2.3

Weighted average fair value as on grant dabe (%) / (5- ADS)® 8 10.03

For optians grated in
Fiseal 2018 Fiscal 2018

Equity  Equity shares  Fiacal 2008-  Fiscal 2018

Parriculars Shares REL ESOP ADSRSU ADS. ESOF

Weighted average share price (%) / ($- ADS)* i 461 831 7.32

Exercise price (%) (5- ADS)* 2,50 459 004 733

Expected volatiline (2] 2025 25.28 2i-26 25.31

Expected life of the option (years) 1-4 -7 1-4 -7

Expected dividends (%) 278 178 274 274

Risk-free interest ratg (2a) G-7 6-7 1-2 1-2
Weighted averaze fair vahse as on grant date () /

(5= ADS) 333 127 7.74 147

For options grambed in
Fiscal 2017 Fiscal 2007

Equisy  Equity chares  Plaeal 2007, Fiseal 2007

Particulars Shares BSU ESOP ADSRSU ADS ESOF

Weighted average share prace (T) /(5 ADS)* 534 494,58 7.89 T.63

Exercise price () (5- ADS)® 2.50 499 [iXeEE] 763

Expected volarility (%a) 24-29 27-29 26-29 27-31

Expected life of the option (years) -4 -7 1-4 3-7

Expectid dividends (*c) 2,37 237 e 229

Risk-free inrerest rane (%s) faT 6.7 1-2 1-2
Woeighted average fair valse os om grant date (%) /

(5- ADS)* | 142.5 7.42 1.73

* Adjusted for Septemiber 2018 bonus issue

The expected term of the RSU / ESOP is eshmated based on the vesting term and contrachial term of the RSU /
ESOP, as well as expected exercise belavior of the employee who receives the RSU /| ESOP, Expected volanliry
during the expecied temm of the RSLU / ESOP is based on historical volatility of the observed market prices of the
coqupany’s publicly traded equity shares during a period equivalent fo the expected tenm of the RSU / ESGP.
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117 Income taxes

Accounting policy

Incouse 1ax expense comprises current and deferrad mecane 1, Income tax expense s recognized in 1he net profit oy
thse statement of comprebensive ncome except o the extent that it redates o Menws recogmzed directly m aqury, m
which ¢ase 1t 15 recominred im ofher comprehensive moome. Cument moome tax for curent and prior peniods is
recogmized af the smnowt expected fo be paid 10 o7 recovered from the 16 authonties, nsing the tax mtes ad tax s
that leave b enncted or substantively enacted by e Talance slet date, Deferred moome tx assets and hababites
are recognized for all temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their camying
amoumis in e financial stabements except when the deferred income tax anses from the initial recognition of
goodwill or an asset or Hability in & trnsaction that is ot a busmess combination asd affects neither accounting mwor
taxable profit or loss at the rime of the transaction. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reponing date and are
reduced to the extent tiat it is no longer probable that the related tax benefin will be realized.

Deferred income tax assets asd habihines are measured wsing tax sates and tax Bows that have been enacted or
substantively enscted by e balance sheet date and are expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which
trose temporary differences are expected to be recovered or senled. The effect of changes in tax rares on defermed
mscome fax nssets mwd labilines i recogized as nxcome of expense m the period that meludes e enactment or the
stulstantive ensctinent date. A defesred ipcone 1X assel 5 recognired to e extent that it is probable 1har fumise
taxatibe profit will be available against which the deductible empormry differences and tax losses can be ntilized
Defered mcome taxes arg md provided on the undistibuted eamurgs of subspdinnies amd branches where it 15
expected that the eamuings of the subsichary or branch will not be distnbuted in the foreseeable funme, The group
offsets curment tax assets and current tax liabilities, where it has & legally enforceable right to set off the recognized
amouns and where o infends either to settle on 8 nel basis, or to realize the asset and settfle the liability
sinubtaneously. Tax benefits of deductions ecamed on exercise of employves share ophons i excess of compensation
charged to inocane are credited o share preminm

Income tax expense m the consolidated stabement of comprebensive incoms congprises:

{IDodlans sl liows
Wear smbed March 11,

2019 18 27
Current taxes
Donmestic taxes (i) 121 Gl6
Foreign taxes 217 (123 126
817 709 842
Deferved taxes
Dhonestic faxes 3 {80y i}
Foreign tacies {17 28 7}
(143 (52} 4]
Incoine tax expense Ll 657 B34

Duming fiseal 2019, the Company entered mite Advance Pricing Agreensnt (APA) m an overséas naisdictions
resulting in o reversal of income tax expense of 57 mallion which pertanvad o prios perods.

In December 2017, the Company concluded an Advance Prcing Agreement (“APA™) with the US Intemnal Revenue
Service (TIRS”) for the US brancly ¢covening fiscal vears 2001 to 2021, Under the APA. the Company sl the IRS
have agreed on the methodobogy 1o allocate revermes and compate the taxable income of the Company's 'S Branch
operations. In accordance with the APA. the company reversed income tax expense provision of $223 millien which
pertained fo previous periods which are no longer required. This comprises of reduction in cwment tax expense of
5253 million, offser by a reversal of $21 million on sccount of deferred tax assets pemadnikz 10 the temporary
differences which are po longer required and an increase in deferved tax liability of $7 million pertaining 1o Branch
profit tax on account of conchusion of APA. The Company bad to pay an adjusted amount of approximately $223
naillion due ro e difference berween the taxes payahle for prior periods as per the APA and the acnil raxes paid fog
stich periods. The coimgany paicd 5215 ouillion il Mapele 31, 2019
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Additionally, incomse tax expense for fiscal 200%, 2018 and 2017 includes neversals (et of provisions) of S18
nullion. 345 mallion and 523 wullion. respectively. pertanang to prior periods on account of adjudication of certai
daspured matters i favor of the conpany across vanous pisdichions.

Fumther, the “Tax Curs and Jobs Act (HE. 17 was syzeed iio law on December 22, 2017 (“US Tax Reforms™), The
LIS rax reforms las redisced fedeml tx mtes from 35% ro 21% effective Jansary |, 2008 amongst other measures.
Daang fscal 2013, the US mx reformps las resalied moa posinve mopact of 324 gnllion on accomn of credits
pertuinig to deferred ax Labalities on branch profir. The impact of US wx refomss is expacted 1o be 5ot significant
for fubure periods,

A reconciliation of the meoine tax provissn to the anoind computed by applvng the stakiatory Incone tax rite to e
income before mcome facoes is sununarnized below:

{Dollars i millions)
Year emded March 31.
1% 5 017
Profit before inoome taxes 3005 143 297
Enacted tax rates in India EE RS b 3461% 34.61%
Computed expected mx expense Lo .06 1.029
Tax affiset die to poiraable beome for Indaan tax puiposes (186 {321} {205
Overseas taxes (Lix] 109 i12
Tax provision {reversals) {25) {233) 23)
Effect of differential overseas tax rates - 8 16
Effect of exempt non-operating inconse (%) (L] (10}
Effect of unrecogmzed defemed tax assets 13 29 14
Effect of non-deductible expenses 50 & 4
Branch profit tax {net of credits) 4 {321 —
Subsphingy dividend distribagion T - e —
Onbsers 4 3 [l
Income tax expense L] 687 A

The merease in the corporale STy X e to 34,94% i fscal 2019 fom 34.61% m fiscal 2008 and 2007 15
consequent to changes made in the Finance Act. 2018,

The foreign tax expense is dise to mcome taxes payable overseas, principally m the United States. In India, the
comupany las benefited ffom cermain income tax imcentives that the Goverment of India had provided for expont of
software and services from the units registered under the Special Economic Zopes Act. 2003 (SEZ). SEZ units which
began the provision of services on or after Apail 1. 2005 are eligible for a deduction of 100 % of profits or gains
derived from the expon of services for e first five vears from fee fnancial vear i which the unir comppesced e
provision of services and 502 of such profits or gains for a further five vears. Up 10 509 of such profits or gaims is
also available for a further five years sulyject to creation of a Special Economic fone Re-investment Reserve out of
the profin of the ehigible SEZ muits and unlizanon of such reserve by the Company for acquiring new plant and
msachiery for e purpose of s bsiness s per the provisions of the Iscome Tax Act, 1961, (Refer 1o Onhey
Reserves under nofe 213 Equaty).

Durng fiscal 2008, e Company received 5130 million as dividend from Infosvs BPM, its majoniny owned
subsidiary. Dividend dismburion rax paid by the subsidiary on swely dividend leas been reduced as credic against
drvidend disribution tax payable by Infosys. Acoordingly. the group las recorded a charge of 527 million as incomse
tax expese dinng fiscal 2018,

Chiber mwcome for fiscal 201% anwd fiscal 2018, includes interest on imoome tnx refimd of 57 mullion and 541 millioa.
respechively,

Entire deferred incone tax for fiscal 2009, 2015 and 2007 relates 1o origasanon and reversal of remporary differences
except for a credit of $24 mullion (on accoumt of LS Tax Reformns explamved above}, for fiscal 2018,
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As o resln of these tax incentives, o poion of the company’s pre-tax meeane has not been subject to 1ax in recent
years. These tax incentives resulted in a decrease in o income ax expense of 5386 million. 5321 million and 5293
million for the vear ended March 31, 2019, 2018 and 2017, respectively. compared to the tax amouns that we
estimate we would have been required 1o pay if these mwentives had not been available. The per share effect of these
tax incentives computed based on both basic and dileted weighted average munber of equity shares for the vear
ended March 31, 200%, March 31, 2018 and March 21, 2017 was 50,09, 50.07 (adjusted for Seprember 2018 boms
issue) and S0.07, (adjssed for Seprember 2015 boms issie), respectively

Infosys is subject to a 15% Branch Profit Tax (BPT) i the U5, go the extent its U5, branch's wet profit during the
vear 15 greater than the micrense m e pet assets of the ULS, branch dunng the vear, compated io sccordance with the
Tntemal Revenwe Code. As of Mach 31, 2019, Infosys” US, branch net assers amoumted o approximanly 3751
million. As at March 31, 2009, e Company has a deferred tax lability for branch prodin of 329 nullion (pet of
credins), as the Company estimates that these branch profils are expected o be dismbuted it foresseable fiare,

Dreterred moomne 1y lsabilities have pot been recogmzed on emporsy differences amounting to $869 mellwa and
5774 million as of March 31. 201% and March 21, 2008, respectively. associated with investments in subsidiaries and
branches as it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future

Diefered nweoms ax assets have not been recognized on accimniilated losses of S379 million and $297 million as of
March 31. 2019 and March 31, 2018, respectively. as it is probable that future taxable profit will be not avaalable
ngains! whnch the unsed tax losses can be utilized m e foresecable future, The balance as of March 31, 2018
excludes the accunntlated losses of disposal groups held for sale. (Refer note 2.9)

The followmg mble provedes details of expiraton of wmused 1ax losses for fiscal 2019:

Dollars m nullious
Yienr
2020 25
2021 i1
22 20
2023 0
2024 el
Thereafter 267
Tatal 379
The following able provides details of expisation of wised 1ax losses for fiscal 2018:

Droldans im mnllions
Year
2019 14
2020 37
021 b
2002 z1
2023 in
Thereafter 174
Tatal 97
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The followimg mble provides the details of come tx assets and icome tax balaliges as of March 31, 2019 and
March 31, 2018

i Diolllnes i snsl i

Aaal
March M. 2019 March M, 2018
Income tax assets 75 G931
Crgrent npcoane tax hiatakities {227} {314}
Nel currenl income tax assels [ {liabikities) ot e emd T48 617

The grods movement 1o the curent moome tax asset | (laliliny) for fiscal 2009, 2008 ancd 2007 1 as follows:

{Dodlars m malhioss)
Year ended March 2,

2% Hi18 2T
Net current income tax asset / (labilicy) arn the beginning 617 282 .
Translation differences {34} (&) &
Income tax paid 973 1059 §43
Cuarent npeome X expense (BT} (709} {842}
Income tax on other comprelieisave incomwe | 12} |
Reclassified under assets hebd for sale {refer note no 2.9 3 %) —
Reclassified from held for sale (Refer note 2.9) 2 — —
Inconne Tax benefit ansing on exercise of Mock options | - -
Tax inspact on buyback expenses 1 — -
Additons troungh business combination {1} — —
Nel current income tax assed [ (Hability) af the end T48 617 281

The movenvent in gross deferred inoonse tax assets and liabilities (before set offfy for fiscal 2019 is as follows:

(Dol w malbomi
Chaage Adsdiiion
Cinying thiwsgh Thisagh Bealamified Carrymg
a bl it hatimes Clnmges s Elall Tramnlafers wile il
il b, 3018 aaid Bass commbinanos. i (8] for Sale chiferwnce  Vlaagh 11, 100%
Deferred income txy @y
Property, plai snd cuiprmest i3 T - - - ) i
Aconied comsperation 1o
ompleyess 2 2 — — = — i
Trade reeeivabloy s J 5 — — — iy i
Compsunatcd abagmoes 56 a — — - 3] T
Pont nales elient suppen 15 1] - == = i1 1%
Derivative inancis! manaments 2 [F4] —_ 1 - - ]
Entangibles 1 1 - — - — 2
Creudini related po branch profis 2 [E}] — = - - "
hers 18 11 = 1 5 {2 33
201 P — 1 £ (k] pt]
Dreferred lncomse van Raksdlivies
Intangible avsst (6} @ (E1] - {Ixy 21 (1%
Brancd profit tax 7 [13] — = — - (T&)
Derivanve (insscisl Eunments - {14} — [# - - (18}
Cithars (L] (3] [H}] — iy 1 (L 1H]
!_!7P [1F] (L] [£4] [1E1] (L }] (143
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The movenwent in gross deferved moonse tax assets md labilities (before set off) for fscal 2018 15 05 follows:

(Do i millioenl
o haagen
Carrymg threagh o hamge Carving
vl a ol palic gl a5 Hed Toawilarrn vadue 33 al
Aprid 1. 3087 and bon [ far Sale Aillerence  March 11, 2018
Deferred income tay asseds.
Froperty, plat and equipmest ]| 12 - - - EE]
Computer saftware & {(3] — — — —
Aecried eomspermanon 1o employees ] &) - - 1 2
Trade receivables I i - - — b5
Compamatod akagnae % — — — 2] %
Pont sales client support 15 - - - - 15
Derivative financial senumembs —_ X s = e E
Estangiblen 3 £y} - - 1 1
Credits relisted oo branch prodiis —_ 13 —_ —_ il n
Cthars ) I = %) ) i3
[E:] 4 — L] F FLT]
Drefewred dnessne vy Balbdlivies
Intangible svert {32 13 13 —_ {8}
Bennch prodir tax (42} (2%} -_ - (1) {7
Dgrivating finansisl mumimant [ 1] == = == ==
Chhers (1} 4 1 = 1 {4}
{104 ) 1 1 13 {1} (3T}
The movensent in gross deferred income tax assets and liabilities (before set off) for fiscal 2017 is as follows:
{ Diolllar, an exallinn b
Changey
Carrying thraugh Changes Carrylng
sulue as of predin rough Transhatien wvabue as of
April 1. 2016 amd lose ol difference March 31, J0IT
Deeferred imcome ax assets
Property, plant and equipnsem 27 (L] - — 21
Compater saffware & (2] = — s
Ageried compensation o engplovess. 10 - - () o
Trade receivables 13 ] — — 21
Compemsated absences i [E3] = v 5§
Poat sales chient sisppost 12 X — —_ 15
Tetangalbes 1 I — — k]
Orthers T 4 = | 22
137 146 — F] 155
Deferved imcome fax [abilities
ltmabile asset (3%) & — — (32}
Branch profit tx (30 - - 1 {50
Dernvative fimancial mstnunents —_ (11 —_ —_ {11
Orliets * ] [E3] {1 (1) (111
(e} (L)) i1l — {104

. i luded in others is the impact on adoption of IFRS 9 of $1 nullion

296/319

EDINETOOOO
O000000000000(E05959)
ooOooood



The tax effects of significant temporary differences that resulted 1 deferred income 1% assers and Labiliy is as
fiollows:

{Dodlars m mallioms s

As ol
March 11, 2019 Mlarch 51, 2005
Deeferved mcomae 1 assets after se1 off 199 196
Deferred income 1ax liabilities after ser off (98] {82}

Deferred moome tax assets amd deferred meome tax labilies lave been offier wherever the group has a legally
enforceable right to see off current incone 1ax assels against cwment income tax Habilites and wheve the deferved
inconne tax assets amd deferred inconse tax liabilities relate 10 income taxes levied by the sane taxamon authoriny.

T assessing the reliability of deferved income tax assets. managenwent considers whether sonse portion or all of the
deferred income tax assets will not be realized. The ultimate realization of deferred income tax assets is dependent
upon the generation of fumre taxable ipcome during the periods v which the temporary differences become
deducrible. Management considers tee scheduled reversals of defemed inconse tax Habalites, projected fune taxable
income apd tax plaming sirategies in making this assessnwent. Based on the level of historical taxable mcome and
projections for furure taxable income over e periods in wldch the deferred pcome tax assers are deducrible,
mapagenent believes that the group will wahze the bafits of those deductibde differences, The anount of the
daferred income g assets constdersd realizabile, however, could be rechacad i e pear remn if esmumes of funire
mxable inconve during the casry forwazd pereod are reduced.

As at March 31, 20019, claims agatnst the Group not acknowdedzed as debts from the Income tax anthorities
amouried to B2851 crore (3312 mullon)

Ansount paid to stanitory anthorities against the above 1ax claims ansounted 1o 85 924 crose (5857 million).

As at March 31, 2018, claims agaist the Group not scknowledzed as debes from the Incomse tax anthornines
aspponkiited 1o 3,041 croe {$467 mllsoar), Amnoiuit paid to stanitary sidborities aganst this amcimeed 1o 96,540 crope
(51003 million).

These noafters ase pendiig before varons Appellate Adwmhonties aid e maisgenent nchsbing is nx advisors
expect et its position will likely be upbeld on wirtianate resolution and will not bave a material adverse effect on the
Group's fimamcial position and results of operations.

.18 Reconcillation of baskc and dilated shaves vsed in computing earnings per equity share
Accounting policy

Basic eamungs per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity holders of the
comapany by the weighted average munber of equaty shares outstanding duning the penod. Diluted eamings per equaty
share is computed by dividing fhe net profit sitnbwiable o the equity belders of the compauy by the weighted
avierage number of équity shares conssdered for denvang basic eamungs per eqinty share and also the weighted
average munber of equity shares that conld have been issued upon conversion of all dihmive potential equity shares.
The dilative posential equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the equity shares been actually
issud ar fair value (Le. the average markes value of e cwstarling equiry shaves). Dilwiive potential equiry shases
are deenred converted as of the beginning of the period, unless issued at a later dare. Dilutive potential equiny shazes
are determined mdependenily for each perod presented.

The mumber of equity shares and porenmally dilunve equity shares are adpsted rerospectively for all penods
presented for amy share splits and bonus shares issues mchuiling for changes effected prior 10 the approval of the
fimancinl statements by the Board of Directors,
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The following 15 a reconcilition of e equiry shases used m e conpatation of basie and dilunsd eamangs per equary

share:
Year emded March 51,

e 2018 017
Basic canuings per equity share - weighted average number of
edquity shates outstanding (882 4347130157 4 510,664,649 4871278 8494
Effect of dilwtive commeon equavalent sliares - share options
ontstanding 6. 290,615 4483056 1.514.596
Dahwted eamugs per equary shage - wesghited average manber of
equary shares and conunon aquivalent slares onrstanding 4.353,420,772 4.515147.740 4571793 490

0 pveludes eanwy shares
L m'lljusmrﬂlfhr Bowns shares, ||'f|nrr1'.-rar|:.p.l'?n1b.|'r Rr_’.ﬂ"r fo pate 203

For fiscal 2019, 2008 and 2017, Mil. 154,476 and 224580 munber of options to purchase equity shares, respectively.
had an anti-dihstive effect (adjusted for September 20018 boums isswe).
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2.19 Related party transactions

List of sabsidiaries:
Fantioulanr X t==- 3w 1. M Llarah AL 3003
Inforyn Trchnolgue (Chmah Co. Lumamed {Infowyn Chana) Chana B 0%
Inforys Teibaokges 5. de B L e © V. (lafosys Menso) Meme [ 1o ] o0t
Infeiys Tecknologae (Swrdee) AR {Inforym Swedm) Sowrdem oo 120
Enfoans Techoologer (gl Cosspanry Lassred {Infoays Syhoaghon) Chana B 130
Infonys Toonologia T Braul LTOA {Saouyn Bl firant FICE 160t
Infoays. Now Mabdaings LLC (lafiouy, Newa s Hesd 150%s
Edge'Verve Sysirem Lieested (EdgeVervey Lrakes ED% (LIl
Tafosns Apams Cransl 1 0f Lontaiangas Mumap Coninlua CazbHi A B0 % 120%
Skt Syibemmn Py L (Skivi Syaledn ) Lewha N4y 0%
Eallidon Inc (Kalhohon) s P (=LY
Inforvs Challe Sl Tl Lo -
tboans Aastin Lamard™ sl AEtas ot Tt
Infirites, Comvaltmg Lida 71 Bewnld 90y 555
taforrs O LLORT2 Rnias = =
Dfosns Lamembwnag 50 | =517 Lsnembusn p NE —_
Infionyi Amsnias Inc . {Enfors Amsenca] LiS! I L= Y
taforys Tochantages | Py L (ks e Aniales HEE 190%
Rk, Pablie Sevvices, Teus. LS. (Rafonys Pulblie sm,ma us 100 150%
Taferys Canids Pobli Servnes lec ™" il — —
Infiorys Cansday Public Sermom Lido® Caruda - =
Enfurnys D Lamned (Fommealy Dnfosys DIPO) Lummeed) Tusken T Ak
Infemyn §00ech Rorpobilic) Lensed w1070 Crech Repobds: 9.5 PSR
Infgays Polsed, Sp 100 Polst Ll ] i EE
Infonys. MeCamand Sy LLC 1% s O S
Pontund Geaop Pry Leg™ LR o Lol Lh
Eifemirn BPO Mmoo LLC 1T s 59 5 % DRFEY
Enfoays Comsnlung Haoldng Al {lafouys Lodedons) Savraeriand B (£ L0
[ M L& | | SR s - 1%
Infonss Mamapnneei Conuieny Per Lamaed ™ Ao Hinids L= i
takimys Comsaha g ALY sargesLagsl 1004 L=
Enfovin Comsaltmg CrsbH™ Cerrmaany B0 (L= Y
Infemiys Cromvaling SAT™ Frasce By 1o0%
Inforys Comubimg v r.o M Cech Rrpobibic 0% 100%
WMimR Lol (ot y Lomaessiior Wlanumpenionn Comsehuans Co | Ludp? (5= o 0%
Commnlting Cougmy Lid® UE e 180%
H&f.'n-hul"-‘* Tt Nermemlands L o0
Inferivs Comsalinig S 20 ™ Peclimad R0 150
Muaprmned Conulbissis Pormugal, Usprescad, Lde, ® Poctagal B 130%
S.C. Inforyn Comwalimg 3RS Fomazm e 190 %
IEnfoays Comahumg 5 KL Angeonas B 120"
Infenys Comvaling (Belgrars) ¥V 7 Belprim 9 90% [T
Pamys bne. (Panaya) s FEE 1608
Py Lad lagsel Bt 150%
Parayva CrohHE {aremany B4 120 %
Passayvs Lagun T Ladfo® T By 15di%
Nouh Conmbung LLC Mok ™ s - -
Nuah bat AL Compronltme Boe (Mo Canalay 15 Cansls = o
Bnlkant Baucs Holdemg Losaied {BnTaoni Bauscs 10 LK B B Y
sl Blaces Lamword 11 e 1004 120%
BalThtrnt Blrssscs (WENA ) DRBCCT Desbuin. Y 120%
Enforys Comsubtmg Par Luzsted {Snfoum Sapapore ¥ Sangapoey o (L LY
Infioiys Madie Emé FZ LLOV™ Drsban Lo L0
Fhasda (a21nim Tonslandl 1004 —
Flasd Sweden AB (Exteraf*® Sewrdem 1008 -
Flesdo Moy AS5T9 Weraruy B —
Fludo Dicrumark A50 Denmmark i =
Flado Shovakaa v r.o1® e Bty =
Flmda Newea AEIT Saveddem 00y -
Infosys Compaz Per Lid {foarmmealy Trusaed Source Poe Ly 5% Sangapoay B -
TriFeeis, Sevith et (P15 La L7500 Susath Afwis - =
WoongDioody Halding Compasy lne (WangDeody) ™1 s FICTEN -
AT e anons. a0 s B —
Wongloteh:, Incit us B0 -

e Whally-onaed subsidiary af Infosvs Limited
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2 Incarporated effective Novenber 20, 2017

e Majorin evned and conrolled subsidiary of Infosvs Linited

e Under grtaarion

5 Whelly owwed swbsidian: of Bfouys BPM

o Whelly owned swbsidiartes of fnfosns Consulting Holding AG

T Majorin evwned aud comrodled subsidiaries of Iufosvs Consalting Holding AG

A Whelly evvned subsidian: of Panaya e,

®  Ligwidated gffecrive Novewber 8, 2007

- Whally ewived subsidiary of Noah. Liguidated effective Decemiber 20, 2017

T O Sepremiber 8, 2007, Infosys aequiired F00% of the voring interests in Brilliont Basies Holding Efocived

13 Whally-onwned sulsidiors of Brilliont Basics Holding Limited,

L] ﬁ'l'ln.i'{lhmnnﬂ sbatdiary q_-.l'ﬁlr.l‘mn l‘.'uﬂ.r.mfl'fug Pre Lid

8 O May 22, 2015, Infosys acquired 100 af the vating fterest i WongDoody

45 Lignidared effcetive May 4, 2018

de Whally-anaed sbsidiar: of WongDeody

1% Incorperated gffective Augnss 6, 2008

18 Oy Octaber 1, 2018, bfosys Consniting Pie. Lid, acqunived 108% of the voting firievesrs in Flutde Ov and its
ailsialinries

1% Whally-onwied sibstaion: of Flnido Ov

G0 O Novewsher 18, 2018, Tnfosys Consndring Pre. Lid, acquired 80 of the voting interest i Infosys Compaz
Pre. Led

- Ineorporared effecive Deceniber 19, 2015

23 Incarporated effitciive November 28, 2018

0 Ineorporared effeciive Noveniber 27, 2008, whally ovned subsidiary Infons Pullic Services fne

24 Liguidated effective May 8, 3017, wholly owmed subsidtary of Infosys Public Seriices Joe)

Infipsys lias provided gusragtes for performance of cemain contracts enterad mro by its subsidiaries.
Assvorlate

Daing fiscal 2018, the Company bas wrinen down the entize carrying value of the investment i its associare DWA
Nova LLC amounting 1o 511 million. DWA Nova LLC has been hiquidated we f November 17, 2017

Dividenis

Dwiring fiscal 2017, Infosys Consulting AG (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants AG) paid a dividend of $4
million 1o its leolding company, Locestone Holding AG and the ta on such dividend received was Nil.

During fiscal 2009, 2018 and 2017, Infy Consulting Conpany Ltd. (formerly Lodestone hanagement Consultants
Led. ) paid a dividend of SMik. 53 mallion and 55 mllion, respectively. to its holding company. Lodestone Holding
AG and the tax on such dividend received was Nil.

During fiscal 2018, the Company received $130 millien as dividend from Infosvs BPM. Dividend distmbution tax
paid by e subsidingy on such dividend has been reduced as credit agamst dividend destribution 1ax payable by
Infosys. Accordingly. the group has recorded a charge of $27 million as ivcome tax expense during fiscal 2018

Dunng fiscnl 2018, S.C. Infosys Comsulting S.RL. pud a dividend of $1 nulbion respectively, to ats holding
conapairy, hifosvs Consulting Holduig AG and te tax on stich dividend received was Nil

Dunng fiscal 201% and 2018, Infosys Consulting s.r.o. paid a dividend of 51 mallion and $1 millson respecrively, o
its lselding company, lifosys Consulting Holdig AG and the tax on such divadend received was Nil.

Drang fiscal 2019 and 2012, Infosys Consulting BV pad a dividend of $3 million and $1 million respecnvely, o
its olding company. Infosys Consuliing Holding AG and the tax on such dividend received was Nil.
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List of other related parties:

Pantaculars ] _ Surtry  Haturs of relatssehip

Infosys Lionited Emplovees” Granity Fund Trust Tindaa Post-emploviment benefit plan of Infosys
Infosys Limited Employees’ Provident Fund Trist India Post-employment benefit plan of Infosys

Infosys Lionited Employees’ Superanmation Fund Trest  Inedaa Post-employment benefit plan of Infosys

?;ﬁ}'g BPM Limited Emplovess’ Superansiation Fuixl o Post I benefit plan of Infosys BEM

Infosys BPM Limited Employees’ Granuty Fund Toust  Indsa Post-employment benefit plan of Infosys BFM
EdgeVerve Systems Limdted Emplovees® Granary Fund Post Jovment beaefit phi GE Edgeveive

Trust Tnelia

EdzeVerve Systems Limdred Enplovess” Superamation 1
Fumd Truist Tndia Post-emploviment bepefic plan of EdgeVerve
Infosvs Emplovees” Weltare Trust Tnsan Comtrlied Trust

Infosyvs Emploves Benefits Tiust Tiielaa Contslled Trist

Infosyvs Science Foundation India Contrelled Trost

Refier to Mote 2.12 for infonnation on transactions relating to the post-emaplovment benefit plans mentoned above.
List of Bey Mansgerial Personnel (KMP)
Whole-time directors

Salil Parekh was appointed as Chief Executive Officer and Managmg Director effective Jamary 2, 2018, The
appomtment is for a tenn of & yveass with effect from Jannary 2, 2008 to January 1. 2023 and the remumeration is
approved by shaneholders thromgh postal ballot dated Febmary 20, 2018,

UL B, Pravin RBao, Cliel Operating officer was appoanted os Intemn-Cligf Exscutive Officer and Managing Director
effective August 18, 2017, Subsequently he stepped dowm a5 the mterim CEC and Managing Director effective
Jannary 2. 2018 and to continne as Chief Opemting Officer and a wisole-time director of the Compamny.

Dv. Vishal Sikka resizned as Chief Execonve Officer ad Managmg Director effective Angust 185, 2007 and as
Executive Vice Chamnmem effective August 24, 2007

Mon-whole-time divectors
Nandan M. Milekam (appointed as Non-execwtive aml Non-independent Chainman effective Angust 24, 2017)
Miclel Gilsbs was appointed as ain Independent Doector effective Tuly 13, 2018

Ravi Venkatesan, resigned from lus position as Co-Chmmnan effective August 24, 2017 and respgmed as nxember of
tlse Board effecuve May 11, 2018,

Kiran Mazumdar-Shaw
Roopa Budva
D Puaata Kumar-Sinka

[N, Prahlad

D Sundaram (appointed effective July 14, 2017)

Prof, Jeffrey Lelunan, {resigsed effective Augisst 24, 2017}
R, Seshasaves (resigned effective August 24, 2017)

Prof. Jobn Erchenremby (resizeed effective August 24, 2017)

Executive OfTcers

Nilanjan Roy was appoimted as Chief Financial Officer effective March 1. 20019
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Ravi Kumar 5, President and Depury Chiel Operating Officer
Mlohit Joshi, President
Krnshiamuarthy Shankar, Group Head-Human Resources and Infosys Leadership Instinate

Inderpreet Sawhiey, Group general Counsel and Chief Compliance Officer (appointed as executive officer effective
Jaly 14, 2017}

Jayesh Sanghragka was appointed as bwerim Chief Financial Odficer effective November 17, 2018, He resumed his
responsibalines as Depury Clied Fususcial Officer effective March 1, 2019,

M.D. Rangamath resigned as Chief Fmancial Officer effective November 16, 2018,

Sambeep Dadlany, Preswdent (resigned effective July 14, 2017)

Guopi Knshnan Radhakrslnan, Acting Geperal Counsel (resigned effective June 24, 2017)

Rajesh K. Murtly, President {appoinred effecnive Ociober 13, 2006 and resigned effecrive FTamary 31, 2008)
Transactions with Key Alanagerial Personnel (KAL)

The table below describes the related party tansactions with key management persomel which comprises directors
and executive officers under IAS 24

| Drodlags = nllioen)

Particulars Yenr ended March 21,

FIE] 2018 07
Salanes and other employes benefits wo whale-time directors amd
executive officers1HD 0 (4 14 g 12
Commuassion and other benefits to nop-exeoutive / independent
directors 1 2 2
Total 15 in 14

B Inclndes emplovee stock compenzation expense of 35 wiillion for cach af the fiscal 2009 and 2007 and reversal
of emplover stock eompersation expense of 82 willior for fivcal 2015 tovardy kev mavagerial personne].

25 Inelwdes for fiscal 2017, $0.57 willion pavable under severance agreement to David Kewredv, who stepped
dovm a1 General counsed aind Chief complianee afficer with gffect from December 41, 2006

@ O Decomber 2 2007, the Board appointed Salll Porekh as the Chigf Executive Officer and Managing
Divecror af the Compariy with effect from oy 3, 20058,

# Inclwded a0 reversal of stock compensarion cosr of 35 millton for fseal 2018 rowards forfeinire of srock
ncentives granted to D, Vishal Sikka wpon lis resignation. (Refer o nore 2. 16)

1,20 Segment reporting

IFRS 8 esablishes standards for tee way e public bsusess emerprises repon mfonuanon abowl operating
segments and related disclosures abour products amd services, geographic areas, and mapes cnstomsers. The Groip's
operations predonsinantly relate 1o providing end-to-end business solutions 1o enable clients o enhawce business

performance,

During the tlwee months ended Jupe 30, 2018, the Group intermally reorganized sonme of its Dismess segments to
deepen customer relationslups. mprove focus of sales mvestowents and increase management oversight, Consequent
to the mtemal réorgnmization. therd were changes m the reportable mness segments based on “Management
approacly” s defined wader IFRS & Operatng Segmeents. Therefore, enterprises m Insarance which was earhier
considered under the Life Sciences. Healthcare and Insurance busingss segment are now considered under the
Finangial Services business segnent and enterprises m Commumcation. Telecom OEM and Media which was earlier
under Energy & Utilities, Conmmunication ad Services is now shown as a separate business segment. Segmental
operafing inconse has changed in line with these as well as changes i the allocation method. The CODM evaluates
the Group's performance and allocates resources based on an analysis of various perfonmance nwdicators by business
segmeints. Accordingly, nfonmnation has been presented along business semments. The sceonbting principles used i
tlse preparation of the financial starements are consistently applied o record revense and expendimre in individual
segnpents, and are as s2f out in the accounring policies.
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Bisiness segments of the Group are ponsnly enferprises m Financial Services and Hsourance, ewlerprises
Maoufactaring, enterprises in Retatl, Consmwer Packaged Goods and Logistics. emerprises i the Energy, Utilines,
Resources and Services. enterprises i Commumication. Telecom OEM and Media, enterprises in Hi-Tech
enterprises m Life Sciences and Healtheare and all oflser segments. The Fmancial services reportable sepments lias
been ageregated ro inclede the Financial Services operating segment and Finacle operating segment because of the
similanity of the ecomomic characteristics. All other sepments represent the operating segments of businesses in
India. Japan, China. Infosys Public Services & other Public Service enterprises. Consequent to the above change in
the composition of repomable busimess semments, the prior vear congparatives for fiscal 2015 axd 2017 lawve been
restated

Revenue and wennfiable operating expenses in relanon 10 segowans are categorczed based on tenss that are
ssdivadually idepmfiable o thar segmem. Revenne for all ower segnsents’ represents revenne generated by Infosys
Public Services and revenue generated from customers located m bndia, Japan and Clina aod sther Pablic Service
enterprises. Allocnted expenses of segnwents mclude expenses incurred for rendenmy services from the Group's
offshore software developmwent centres and on-site expenses, which are categorized n relation 1o the associated
efforts of the segmen. Certamy expenses such as deprecunion, whicl form a sigmficant component of fotl expeines,
are not specifically allocable to specific segments as the underlying assets are used mierchangeably. The
management believes that it is not prachical to provide segmient disclosures relating to those costs and expenses, and
sccordingly these expenses are sepamtely disclosed as “unallocated” and adjusted agamst the total moome of e
Group.

Assets amd liabilities used i the Groug's business are not identified to any of the reportable sepments. as these are
used interchangeably berween segmsents. Managenvent believes that it is curmently not practicable 1o provade seament
disc bosures relating to total assets and liabilities since a meaningful segregation of tee available data is onerous.

Basaness segment revenne mfonnation 15 collated based on mdividual customers invoiced or i relation 1o which the
revenne is otherwise recognized.
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2.20,1 Busimess seginents

Diallary m alhoni)
Eneigs.
Uribities,
Famamcial Ersamroe Al o e
Voar smdedd Marck 11, 5519 Swrvices Eeiad Commumication  ssd Servics Massfsciunisg BTk Lide Srivmcs segmanin Tt
Hevemury L RoEr ] 1038 | 455 1483 L1563 5352 T4} 3T LT
Hentifiablg operating axpinse. 2031 T4 £18 #d L] a3 f ] PO R
Alloeated expesncs T8 ]-_i-'i N2 2 255. 154 147 1 1840
Segment profii [ H Te ) 1ad Lok m o2 18 hest
Unaliocgable expenues ZER
Dperrating predii 2506
Oher wome, net | reler fale o,
2,14 and X9 411
Fueduction in the fair value of
Dhsponal Group held for sals
{Ricder Note 29 (39)
Adprament in respect of excess
of eMTying Mwount over
ricevrable amount on
reclasification from “Held for
Sale™ (Refer Nete 29) (6%}
Prafit before Inrome taxes 0t
Income o expense B0
et profic 2508
Dieprecuation und nioeaees 28T
Neom-tavh cxpenves olhoy thin
depreviaton ol smmodnation 167
{Dhallars i bl
Energy,
Urilinies,
Erumiiei Al wtleer

Yoar sndhed Xareh 11, 318 Servieen Eriad smil Seavicen Vsl ing  Hi-Tech Lids Scivmce Taisl
Ry vmiri 3504 1,768 1,378 1,187 1038 TH ™ 350 10.9¥
tdemifiahle opernting expenses 1A% . i 1F] L34 21 Fil] e 208 AT
Allocaied expaznas T3 Tl il 251 238 14 135 122 2.264
Segment profi #ET 1 T M 198 HFRS Ile Mo LME
Upallocalile expenes 2E9
Oprraning prefio 1.k
Onher meome, net (pefer sole g
214 and I3 513
Bundwction in the fair valug of
Dhiponial Crrup beld for sale
(Reodar Nots 29 (1E)
Showre in assoviate’s profi | {less)
nstnding mapaimeont ;1!!
Profit befers latome taie 314
Ineoine ta expense aaT
Ner prafi 2,450
¥ expennes other thas
depreciaten el eration o
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(Dhellars o il
Emergy,
Unilitiss,
Fanaaial Rrsuamiae A s
Vean snded Marwh 11 5617 Swrviven Erizl  Commupication  ssd Servioem ) Hi-Texh  Lide Scirmaw min Twtal
[T — 3AET 1,7H8 1,283 1,137 E57] 561 359 E0,208
Edentifinble operting expenses L TaT BoY 1P 312 il ] L] 0 25K
Allncated mupamne ] 1eg 257 s 134 1 133 3180
Segment profi L L] ] i L T s MK
Unallocable expemes 258
Operating prefie 18
Orhier ineine. nex %
Shoag in assoqiaie’s profi / loss)
mslodeg mpaimmet L)
Prafir befere lacome 1t 2,074
Encomne LAX eXpense [
Net prafir 114
Diepreczabon and amotiaticon 254
Nem-cash expenses other thas
depreciancn il moriiwtion 1
2.20.2 Bevenue by Geography
The following mble s21s foth our revenne by geography for fiseal 2019, 2018 and 2007:
{Dallars m mmllsoms )
Norik
America Euroge Indin__Fest of the Wirld Tatal
2019 T.141 2847 L3519 11.75%
2018 6,605 2506 1,392 10,539
2017 6,320 2.295 1.268 10,208

2203 Siguifcant cHents

Mo client individually accounted for more than 10%a of the revenues for fiscal 201%, 2018 and 2017,

1.21 Litigation

The compaiy 15 subject 1o legal proceedings and claines, which bave arsen in e ordinary cousse of business. The

coqupany s maekgement does nol rensonably expect e these legal actons, when wltmnately conchded and

detesmined, will lave a paterial and adverse effect on the company’s resilts of operations of fiskik:al cotsdition.

305/319

EDINETOOOO

O000000000000(E05959)

ooOooood



€))
2017 12 SEBI SEBI 2019
2015 10
@
2019
HIPUS 81% 3.29
2019 23
N.V. Stater 75% 154
2019 22
2019
2019
2019 45,000,000
2019
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Shareholders and the Board of Directors of Infosys Limited
Opinion on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Infosys Limited and subsidiaries
(“Infosys Limited” or "Group") as of March 31, 2019 and 2018, the related consolidated statements of
comprehensive income, changes in equity, and cash flows for each of the two years in the period ended
March 31, 2019 and the related notes (collectively referred to as the "consolidated financial statements").
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Group as of March 31, 2019 and 2018, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for
each of the two years in the period ended March 31, 2019 in conformity with the International Financial
Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IFRS”).

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States) (PCAOB), the Group's internal control over financia reporting as of March 31,
2019, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated June 19, 2019,
expressed an unqualified opinion on the Group'sinternal control over financial reporting.

Change in Accounting Principle

As discussed in Note 2.10 to the consolidated financial statements, the Group has changed its method of
accounting for revenue from contracts with customers in fiscal year 2019 due to the adoption of
International Financial Reporting Standard 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers.

Basis for Opinion

These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Group's management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on the Group's consolidated financial statements based on our audit.
We are a public accounting firm registered with the PCAOB and are required to be independent with
respect to the Group in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and
regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. Our audits included performing
procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. Our audits also included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements. We believe that our audits provide areasonable basis for our opinion.

/s/ Deloitte Haskins & SellsLLP
Bengaluru, India
June 19, 2019

We have served as the Company's auditor since fiscal 2018.
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